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“We welcome you!”

The City Council meetings the 2nd and 4th Monday of each month at 6:00 p.m.

in the City Council Chambers in City Hall, 300 Main Street

(unless the meeting falls on a State Holiday then subject to change by City Council)
For more information call 501-975-8617 or visit our website at www.nlr.ar.gov

Municipal Institutions Constitute the Strength of Free Nations. By A. de Tocqueville
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October 24, 2018 Council Meeting 6:00 p.m.

“The City of North Little Rock welcomes people of diverse cultures and beliefs. Any religious viewpoint
expressed during invocation, or at any other time during the meeting, reflects only the personal opinion of the
speaker. It is not intended to proselytize, advance, or disparage any religious belief.”

PREMEETING PRESENTATION

5:30 p.m. per Mayor Smith — Mr. Jerry Chism, Director of the Arkansas Department of
Aeronautics re: importance of Municipal Airports and their Economic Impact on our
cities and the State of Arkansas.

COMMUNICATIONS
1. Karen Scott, North Little Rock Finance Director re: Utilities Accounting Department
Financial Statements and Supplemental Information with Independent Auditor’s
Report, December 31, 2017 and 2016.

2. Rick Ashley, Owner — The Ashley Group letter to Mayor Joe A. Smith re:
Conditions at North Little Rock Airport.

3. Dennis Oakley, President — Bruce Oakley, Inc. letter to Mayor Joe A. Smith re:
Conditions at North Little Rock Airport.

4, Keith Richardson, Owner — Richardson Properties, LL.C letter to Mayor Smith re:
Conditions at North Little Rock Airport.

5. Steve Williams, Chairman and CEO Maverick Transportation, LLC letter to Mayor
Smith re: Conditions at North Little Rock Airport.

6. Glinda Craigmyle, Mayor’s Office memorandum re: Restaurant Mixed Drink — NEW
for Longhorn Steakhouse, 3911 McCain Boulevard, by Anthony L. Hubbard.

7. Glinda Craigmyle, Mayor’s Office memorandum re: Retail Beer off Premises, Small
Farm Wine, Grocery Store Wine & Wine — Sampling — Change of Manager from
Matthew Sims, for Wal-Mart Supercenter #4460, 12001 Maumelle Boulevard, by
Tiffany S. Johnson.
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8. Glinda Craigmyle, Mayor’s Office memorandum re: Restaurant Beer and Wine —
NEW for Smokey Joe’s Restaurant, 13503 Crystal Hill Road, by Khader A. Qandah.

PRESENTATIONS
Mayor Smith — presentation to Central Arkansas Water re: Imagine A Day Without

Water

Mayor Smith — presentation to North Little Rock Fire Department re: Firefighters 100®
Anniversary

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARING(S) 3 minutes
Please sign in with the City Clerk before the meeting convenes at 6:00 p.m.

CITIZENS PUBLIC COMMENT ON NUMBERED LEGISLATION 3 minutes
Please sign in with the City Clerk before the meeting convenes at 6:00 p.m.
INCLUDES ALL PUBLIC HEARINGS
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UNFINISHED BUSINESS
None,

CONSENT AGENDA
None filed.

NEW BUSINESS
RESOLUTIONS
R-18-198  Mayor Smith
Declaring certain city-owned items and other equipment as surplus; providing for

auction thereof

R-18-199 Mayor Smith
Amending the 2018 Budget for the City of North Little Rock to reauthorize and
include additional expenditures for specified departmental budgets

R-18-200 Mayor Smith
Authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the First Amendment to the
Energy Attributes Sale Agreement with L’oreal USA

R-18-201 Mayor Smith
Recognizing and congratulating the North Little Rock Fire Fighters Union Local
35 of the International Association of Fire Fighters (IAFF) on their 100" Year
Anniversary
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R-18-202 Mayor Smith
Certifying the amount of a Clean Up Lien to be filed with the Pulaski County Tax
Collector against certain real property located at 114 S. Redwood Street (amount:

$2,053.07)

Convene a public hearing

R-18-203 Mayor Smith
Certifying the amount of a Clean Up Lien to be filed with the Pulaski County Tax
Collector against certain real property located at 713 Vine Street (amount:

$5,739.72)

Convene a public hearing

R-18-204 Mayor Smith
Certifying the amount of a Clean Up Lien to be filed with the Pulaski County Tax
Collector against certain real property located at 6505 Medford Lane (amount:

$5,036.89)

Convene a public hearing

R-18-205 Mayor Smith
Certifying the amount of a Clean Up Lien to be filed with the Pulaski County Tax
Collector against certain real property located at 1823 Schaer Street (amount:
$7,038.62)

Convene a public hearing

R-18-206 Mayor Smith
Certifying the amount of a Clean Up Lien to be filed with the Pulaski County Tax
Collector against certain real property located at 126 Marvin Street (amount:

$5,718.06)
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Convene a public hearing

R-18-207 Mayor Smith
Approving and certifying amounts of liens to be filed with the Pulaski County
Tax Collector against certain real properties in the City of North Little Rock as a
result of Grass Cutting and Abatement of other nuisances

Convene a public hearing

ORDINANCES

0O-18-81 Mayor Smith
Amending the General Service Rules and Regulations for the North Little Rock
Electric Department

O-18-82  Mayor Smith
Amending the Power Cost Adjustment for Electric Rates for North Little Rock
Electric Department Customers

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

All persons wishing to speak must have completed a public comment card and return it
to the City Clerk before this meeting is convened, speakers have 3 minutes to address
their topic

Respectfully submitted,

Diane Whitbey, CAM

City Clerk and Treasurer

Words to Live by:
“Be like the leaf fallen from the tree...accept the place wherever the wind takes you.”
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-Swami Brahmananda — found on the internet

For more information, visit our website at www.nlr.ar.gov.
To view council legislation, exhibits, etc., go to the link above, then click on the
Government Tab, then select Council Agenda.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Ta the City Councit
City of North Little Rock, Arkansas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the City of North Little Rock Utilities Accounting
Department {the "UAD"}, a component unit of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, which comprise the
statements of net position as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related statements of ravenues, expenses
and changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financlal statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internaf control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the UAD as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matters

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the financial statements present only the UAD and do not
purport to, and do not present fairly the financial position of the City as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
changes in its financial position, or where applicable, its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepied in the United States of America, Our opinion is not modified with respect
to this matter.

P.O. Box 13986 ¢ Maumelle, AR 72113 | 8410 Counts Massic Road ¢ North Little Rock, AR 72113 | (501) 753-0608 | Fax (501) 753-6706
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the bnited States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis {pages 3-5}, budgetary comparison information (page 17), and historical pension
information {pages 18-19) be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do naot provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 27, 2018, on our
consideration of the UAD’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of taws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financlal reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the UAD's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

i Va4

Craft, Veach & Company, PLC
North Little Rock, Arkansas
August 27, 2018
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UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEFARTMENT MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

This section of the Utilities Accounting Department of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas (the “UAD") annual
financial report provides a discussion and analysis of the financial activities of the UAD for the year ended December
31, 2017, by the UAD’'s management. The focus of the UAD's discussion and analysis is current year's activities,
changes in net position, and other currently known facts in conjunction with the UAD’s financial statements,
beginning on page 6.

Financial Highlights
1.  The UAD’s assets and deferred outflows of resources decreased by 56,034,704 to $607,152 during the year.
2. Total liahilities decreased by $6,050,070 to $1,153,164 during the year.
3. Net position decreased by $502,059 to (51,545,892) which compares to prior year net position of
5(1,043,833}.

Overview of the Financial Statements
The financial statements include the UAD’s financial statements and notes to the financial statements.

Financial Statements

The UAD's annual report includes financial statements which provide both long-term and short-term information
about the UAD's financial status. Reporting financial information at this level promotes the perspective similar to that
of a private enterprise and assists the assessment of the UAD’s financial status at year end and comparing that
information with upcoming financing requirements.

These financial statements consist of the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows. The Statement of Net Position details all current and
noncurrent assets, as well as all liabilities, and deferred inflows and outflows or resources as of December 31, 2017.
The net position section details the breakdown of net position at the end of the fiscal year. Over time, increases and
decreases in UAD’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating,
respectively.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position show the current year operating revenues and
expenses detailed by category. Revenues and expenses are presented regardless of when cash is received or
dishursed. The change in net position represents the difference between the total revenues and total expenses for
the year.

The Statement of Cash Flows details how cash was received and disbursed during the year. The cash and cash
equivalents shown on the statement agree with the Statement of Net Position.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements which provide information vital

to the understanding of the financial statements.

Financial Analysis
The financial data is presented in a manner that is consistent from year to year, which allows changes in net position
to be observed and used to indicate the UAD's financial position.

The audit report dated August 27, 2018, expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements. This
unmaodified opinion is included on pages 1-2 of this report.

The UAD's net posltion at December 31, 2017 was (51,545,892}, which is a decrease of $502,059 from last year's net
position of 5{1,043,833).






UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

Financial Analysis (Continued)
TABLE 1
SUMMARY OF ASSETS, DEFERRED QUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

2017 2016
Assets:
Current assets s 103,138 $ 2,238,136
Noncurrent assets - 3,653,120
Capital assets 281,649 314,939
Total Assets 384,787 6,206,185
Deferred Qutflows of Resources:
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 222,365 435,661
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 607,152 6,641,856
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 229,020 1,902,020
Noncurrent liabilities 924,144 5,301,214
Total Liabilities 1,153,164 7,203,234
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 999,380 482,455
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 281,649 314,939
Unrestricted (1,827,541} {1,358,772)
Total Net Position (1,545,892} {1,043,833)
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Total Net Position S 607,152 S 6,641,856






UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

Financial Analysis (Continued)
TABLE 2
SUMMARY OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES N NET POSITION
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

2017 2016
Revenues:
Collection S 1,566,518 S 2,352,242
Other 24,215 44,144
Investment income 931 3,358
Total Revenues 1,591,664 2,399,744
Expenses:
Salaries 770,771 1,493,188
Payroll taxes 56,614 108,900
Employee henefits 110,660 378,004
Insurance 8,751 12,201
Postage 53,224 166,349
Professional services 13,368 7,000
Supplies 27,205 61,425
Telephone 58,308 62,919
Maintenance 301,772 417,043
Depreciation 152,436 138,091
Utilities 66,823 106,189
Miscellaneous 70,124 70,235
Total Expenses 1,690,056 3,022,544
Change in Net Position (98,392} (622,800)
Beginning Net Position {1,043,833) (421,033)
Transfer of Net Assets to:
North Little Rock Electric Department (409,048} -
City of North Little Rock General Fund 5,381 -
Total Tranfser of Net Assels (403,667} -
Ending Net Position $  {1,545892) S {1,043,833)

Net property, plant and equipment decreased by $33,290, the amount of depreciation netted with the $161,429 in
additions to capital assets, 553,215 in disposals to capital assets, and Net Asset transfer to the North Little Rock
Electric Department during the fiscal year. As of December 31, 2017, the UAD had $281,649, net of depreciation,
invested in capital assets.

Budget Analysis
Each year the UAD staff, supported by the City Council, develaps an operating hudget for the following year. For the
current year, the actual costs were 96.46% of the budgeted costs.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general overview of
the UAD’s finances and to show accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the City of North Little
Rock, Arkansas; P.O. Box 936; North Little Rack, Arkansas 72115.






UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash
Certificates of deposit
Restricted cash and investments — current
Accounts receivable:
Collection fees
Other
bue from other funds
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Noncurrent cash and investments:
Cash - restricted
Certificates of deposit - restricted
Accrued interest

Less: amount required to meet current obligations
Total noncurrent cash and investments

Capital assets:
Equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSIONS
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES

Current liabitities:
Accounts payahle
Bue to other City Departments
Current partion of customer deposits
Due to General Fund
Accrued expenses

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liahilities:
Interest earned on restricted investments
Customer deposits, less current portion
Accrued pensian liability

Total noncurrent liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSIONS

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND TOTAL NET POSITION

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

2017 2016

$ 76,140 $ 568,001
- 265,377

- 1,065,205

- 195,413

- 3,501

- 4,655
26,998 135,984
103,138 2,238,136

- 727,591

- 3,986,265

- 4,469

- 4,718,325

- {1,065,205)

- 3,653,120
706,287 1,509,706
(424,638) (1,194,767)
281,649 314,939
281,649 3,968,059
384,787 6,206,195
222,365 435,661
607,152 6,641,856
24,686 28,707

- 356,278

- 1,065,205

11,132 39,722
193,202 411,108
229,020 1,902,020
214 33,089

. 3,525,043
923,930 1,743,082
924,144 5,301,214
1,153,164 7,203,234
599,880 482,455
281,649 314,939
(1,827,541) (1,358,772)
(1,545,892) (1,043,833)
3 607,152 $ 6,641,856






UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

2017 2016

Operating revenues:

Collection S 1,566,518 ) 2,352,242

Gther 24,215 44,144
Total operating revenues 1,590,733 2,396,386
Operating expenses:

Salaries 770,771 1,493,188

Payroll taxes 56,614 109,900

Employee benefits 110,660 378,004

Insurance 8,751 12,201

Postage 53,224 166,349

Professional services 13,368 7,000

Supplies 27,205 61,425

Telephone 58,308 62,919

Maintenance — equipment 301,772 417,043

Depreciation 152,436 138,091

Utilities 66,823 106,189

Miscellaneous 70,124 70,235
Total operating expenses 1,690,056 3,022,544
QOperating income {loss) {99,323) (626,158)
Nonoperating revenues {expenses):

tnvestment income 931 3,358
Totai nonoperating revenues (expenses) 931 3,358
Change in net position (98,392} {622,800)
Net position, beginning of year (1,043,833) (421,033)
Transfer of Net Assets to:

North Little Rock Electric Department {409,048) -

City of North Little Rock General Fund 5,381 -
Total Transfer of Net Assets (403,667} -
Net position, end of year $  (1,545,892) S (1,043,833)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements,






UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from ather governments
Payments to empioyees
Payments to vendors
Net cash flows provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
fnvestment income
Net change In certificates of deposit
Purchases of equipment
Net cash flows provided {used} by investing activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Net cash effect of transfers to NLR Electric
Net change in customer deposits
Net cash ffows provided {used) by noncapital financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents - end of the year

Reconciliation of operating income {loss} to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Cperating income (loss)
Iltem not requiring cash:
Depreciation
Changes in operating assets and llabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and accrued interest
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
intarest earned on restricted investments
Net cash provided {used) by operating activities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

2017 2016

S 1,794,302 $ 2,392,549
{782,370} (1,965,235)
{951,393} {718,519}
60,539 {291,205}

931 3,358

4,251,642 329,928
{159,887) (36,448)
4,092,686 296,338
{5,372,677) -

- 143,052

{5,372,677) 143,052
{1,219,453) 148,685
1,295,592 1,146,907

5 76,140 $ 1,295,592
s (99,323) $  (626,158)
152,436 138,091
203,569 {3,837}
113,455 (19,912}
{309,598) 220,611

5 60,539 $  {291,205)






UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations and Reporting Entity

The Utilities Accounting Department (the UAD) of the City of North Little Rack, Arkansas, provided billing and
collection services for the North Little Rock Electric, Sanitation and Recycling departments and certain other
governmental agencies and utilities in Pulaski County, Arkansas. Collections were remitted regularly to these
departments and districts. The UAD generated revenue by charging a collection fee based on the number of bills
rendered. These financial statements present only the UAD, an internal service fund, and are not intended to present
the financial position or changes in financial position of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas (the City}.

Effective April 1, 2017, personnel assigned to UAD that perform customer service functions (customer service clerks,
cashiers, and accounting clerks, as well as supervisors) were reassigned to the North Little Rock Electric Department.
The Information Technology personnel remained in the UAD as of December 31, 2017. The Electric Department
continued to fund the activities of the UAD, still considered an internal service fund,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the UAD have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the economic
resources measurement focus. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities are recognized when exchange
transactions take place. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with
the principal ongoing aperations of the UAD. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues {expenses) in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.

The UAD has adopted GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which incorporates Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB)} pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, to
the extent that those pronouncements or opinions do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board.

Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the UAD considers all highly liquid instruments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments are comprised of certificates of deposit and are valued at the lower of cost or fair value. Investment
income includes interest income and is reflected as other income in the statements of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount billed to entities for which the UAD provides billing and collection
services. Accounts receivable are ordinarily due 14 days after the issuance of the invoice. Accounts past due for more
than 30 days are considered delinquent. Delinquent receivables are written off based on individual credit evaluation
and specific circumstances of the customer. '






UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF NORTH UTTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
Risk Management

The UAD is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; business
interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illness; natural disasters; and employee health and accident
benefits.

The UAD has joined together with other governmental services to form the Arkansas Municipal League (the Paol), a
public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for its members.
The UAD pays an annual premium to the Pool! for its insurance coverage.

The Pool's governing agreement specifies that the Pool will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will
reinsure through commercial carriers for claims in excess of specified stop loss amounts. Settled claims have not
exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the three preceding years, nar has there been a significant reduction in
coverage during the fiscal year.

Compensated Absences

The UAD poalicies permit most employees to accumulate vacation and sick leave benefits that may be realized as paid
time off or, in limited circumstances, as a cash payment. The expense and related liability are recagnized as vacation
benefits as earned whether the employee is expacted to realize the benefit as time off or in cash. The expense and
related liability for sick leave benefits are recognized when earned to the extent the employee is expected to realize
the benefit in cash determined using the termination payment method., Sick leave benefits expected to be realized as
paid time off are recognized as expense when the time off occurs and no liability is accrued for the benefits
employees have earned but not yet realized. Compensated absence fiabilities are computed using the regular pay and
termination pay rates in effect at the date of the Statement of Net Position. Accrued expenses on the Statements of
Net Position include liabilities for compensated absences in the amount of $152,679 and $282,746 at December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively.

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowings used to finance the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets. Net position is reported as restricted when they are to be used for a particular purpose as specified by
creditors, grantors, or donors external to the UAD, including amounts to be deposited with trustees as required by
hond indentures, reduced by the outstanding balances of any related liabilities. The UAD's policy is to first apply
restricted resources when an expense or outlay is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted

net position is available.

Income Taxes

As a governmental function of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, the UAD is exempt from income taxes under
Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code and a similar provision of state law. However, the UAD is subject to federal
Income tax on any unrelated business taxable income.

Date of Management’s Review

Management has evaluated subsequent events through August 27, 2018, the date on which the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 2: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENT INCOME
Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government’s deposits may not be returned to it.
The UAD's depaosit policy is to require collateralization of all depasits in excess of federal depository insurance. At
December 31, 2017 all of UAD's bank balances of $97,025 was insured. At December 31, 2016, $5,631,645 of the
UAD’s bank balances of $6,131,645 were uninsured but were collateralized by the pledging financial instruction.
There were no bank balances uninsured and uncollateralized at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Investment Income

Investment income consisted of interest income of $931 and $3,358 for 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Summary of Carrying Values

The carrying values of hank depasits are included in the Statements of Net Position as follows:

2017 2016
Carrying Value:
Deposits 5 76,140 S§ 5,547,234
tncluded in the following Statement of Net Position captions:
Current assets - cash 76,140 568,001
Current assets - certificates of deposits - 265,377
Restricted cash and investments:
Cash - 727,591
Certificates of deposit - 3,986,265
$ 76,140 3 5,547,234

NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The UAD uses the straight-line method of
depreciation in allocating the cost of the capital assets and equipment to operations over estimated useful lives of 5
to 10 years.

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2017 was as follows:

2017
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Transfers Decreases Balance
Capital assets at historical cost:
Equipment $ 1,509,706 S 161,429 $ (911,633} $§ (53,215} $ 706,287
Less: Accumulated depreciation {1,194,767) {152,436} 869,411 53,154 {424,638)
Total capital assets, net S 314939 S 8993 S (42,222) S {61} S 281,649
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UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT NOTES TO THE FENANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2016 was as follows:

2016
Beginning Ending
Balance increases Transfers Decreases Balance
Capital assets at historical cost:
Equipment $ 1,473,258 $ 36,448 S - ) - $ 1,509,706
Less: Accumulated depreciation (1,056,676) {138,091) - - {1,194,767)

$ 314,939

v
L
1

Total capital assets, net S 416582 S {101,643) §

NOTE 4: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE — OTHER CITY DEPARTMENTS AND GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

Accounts payable to other City departments and governmental entities for the year ended December 31, 2017
consisted of the following:

2017
Electric Recycle Sanitation Total
Collected and uncollected billings to
customers $ - s - $ - s -
Uncollected billings to customers - - - -
Accounts payable - other City departments
and sewer districts 5 - S - S . $ -

Accounts payable to other City departments and governmental entities for the year ended December 31, 2016
consisted of the following:

2016
Electric Recycle Sanitation Total
Collected and uncollected billings to
customers S 4,086,626 S 74944 S 7,571 $4,169,141
Uncollected billings to customers (3,734,288) {71,255} {7,320} (3,812,863)
Accounts payable - other City departments '
and sewer districts $ 352,338 S 368 § 251 S 356,278

NOTE 5: OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

City employees assigned to the UAD participate in the annual other post-employment benefit {OPEB) plan
sponsored by the City {the Plan). Statement No. 45 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Accounting
and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (GASB 45), requires that
employers providing post-employment benefits other than pensions record and disclose annual OPEB cost and
net OPEB obligation in their financial statements and disclose other information about their OPEB plans, including

the unfunded actuarial accrued Hability (UAAL).

The OPEB Plan aliows employees to continue health insurance coverage beyond retirement. Although retirees are
required to pay 100% of the group premium for continued coverage, the higher cost of covering retirees results in
a subsidy to those retirees, which is reflected in the recorded OPEB cost.
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UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARIKKANSAS DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 5; OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS {CONTINUED)

The UAD recorded an OPEB cost of $4,695 for 2017 and $5,666 for 2016, and a net OPEB obligation of $120,025
and $115,330 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The UAD’s share of the UAAL at January 1, 2018 (the
most recent actuarial valuation date) was $36,553 and is not recorded in the financial statements. The UAAL wili
be included in the annual OPEB cost over an amortization period of 30 years. The OPEB obligation and UAAL were
computed using a discount rate of 5.5% and a healthcare cost inflation rate, which begins at 10.0% and decreases
over a period of nine years to an ultimate rate of 5.0%. Additional OPEB Plan disclosures, included required
supplementary information, required by GASB 45 may be found in the 2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas.

NOTE 6: NON-UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN

The UAD implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an amendment to GASB 68. The
provisions of these statements were effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2014. These statements establish standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of
resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures.

Plan Description

All fulltime employees of the UAD are participants of “The Retirement System of the City of North Little Rock”
(the “Non-uniformed Plan”} defined benefit plan. The provisions of the Non-uniformed Plan call for employee
contributions of 4% of gross earnings to be paid through payroll withhaoldings. Each month, the UAD has
contributed 9% of each employee’s monthly compensation.

The Non-uniformed Plan is a single-employer, defined benefit plan established under Arkansas state law. The
Non-uniformed Plan assets are administered by an independent fiduciary agent, but governed hy a Board of
Trustees. The Non-uniformed Plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to all regular, full time,
non-uniformed employees of the UAD. The amount of benefits to be paid to any participant depends solely on
amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings.

Benefits Provided

The Non-uniformed Plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members. Retirement
benefits are determined as a percentage of the member’s Final Average Earnings.

Members are eligible to retire with a full benefit under the following conditions:
¢ Atageb5
+ At age 62 with 5 years of service

Members may retire with a reduced bhenefit at age 55 with at least 10 years of service. Members are eligible for
disability benefits at age 50 with 10 years of service. Death benefits are paid to a surviving spouse based upon
age and length of service.

Contributions

For the Non-uniformed Plan as a whole, it is the actuary’s opinion that the city and member contributions of 13%
as reguired by the Non-uniformed Plan are not expected to be sufficient to finance the cost of benefits earned by
members during the vear. The recommended contribution level for the 2018 Plan Year for the City as a whole is
18.74%. For 2017, the UADYs contributions to the Plan were 567,604,
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UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 6: NON-UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN {CONTINUED)
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Qutflows / Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

The Plan’s collective net pension liability of $25,122,028 was measured as of December 31, 2017, and the total
pension liahility used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January
1, 2018. Fach component unit’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the component unit's share
of contributions to the pension plan relative to the total contributions of all participating component units.

At Decemher 31, 2017, the UAP's proportion was 3.2% and the UAD recorded a liability of $803,905 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the UAD recagnized pension expense of $97,499. At December 31, 2017,
the UAD reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments S 46,636 8 38,162
Changes of actuarial assumptions 101,779 196,961
Changes in proportion - 725,992
Met difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments 73,950 38,765
5 222,365 $ 999,880

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Thereafter

$ (112,660) S (112,660) & (142,478) S (147,249) $ (137,558) $ (124,905)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the January 1, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level of Percent of Pay (3.5% Growth)
Remaining Amortization Period 15 Years
Asset Valuation Method Market Value
Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return 6.5%
Salary increases 4.,0% Annually
Mortality Table Based on the Retirement Plans 2014 Mortality Table
Average Service Life of All Members 11.08 years
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UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 6: NON-UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)
Cost of Living Adjustment {COLA)

The plan does not provide cost of living adjustments (COLA), and none are anticipated or included in these
calculations.

Long-Term Expected Return on Plan Assets

The fong-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return. The target allocation of the plan
and the long-term expected real rates of return are summarized in the table below:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return
Fixed Income 40% 2.25%
Domestic Equity 40% 4.75%
Foreign Equity 12% 6.25%
Alternatives 4% 4.50%
Cash 4% 0.25%
Total 100%
Expected Inflation 2.50%

Single Discount Rate

A single discount rate of 6.50% was used to measure the total pension liability. This single discount rate was based on
the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 6.50%. The projection of cash flows, based on the
assumptions made, found that the pension plan’s net position was not available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members, Therefare, the calculated single discount rate was applied to all periods of
nrojected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the UADs Proportionate Share of the Net Position Linbility to Changes in the Discount Rate:

The following presents the UAD's proportionate share of the net pension liability calcutated using the discount rate of
6.50%, as well as what the UAD’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.50%) or one percentage point higher (7.50%) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
{5.50%) {6.50%) (7.50%)
The UAD's porportionate share of the
net pension liability $1,141,258 5 803,905 § 567,711
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UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 7: TRANSFER OF NET ASSETS

On March 13, 2017 the North Little Rock City Council passed Resolution No. 9168 amending the 2017 budget for
the City of North Little Rock. This amendment was made to re-distribute the budget for Utilities Accounting
Department by excluding remaining information technology staff that would remain in UAD, to the North Little
Rock Electric budget for the remainder of the year. The goal was to streamline operations, improve efficiency
and utilize staff to increase and enhance service to utility customers. Effective April 1, 2017, the Customer Service
Section of Utilities Accounting Department was transferred to North Little Rock Electric’s budget and financials. In
total, $9,109,187 of assets, 59,132,747 of liabilities, and $409,048 of net assets was transferred from Utilities
Accounting Department to North Little Rock Electric Department. Additionally, (55,381) of liabilities and $5,381 of
het assets were transferred to the City of North Little Rock General Fund.
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UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

Operating revenues:
Collection
Cther

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
Insurance
Postage
Professional services
Supplies
Telephone
Maintenance
Depreciation
Utilities
Miscetlaneous

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues {expenses):
Investment income

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Transfer of Net Assets to:

North Little Rock Electric Department
City of North Little Rock General Fund

Net position, end of year

See independent auditor's report.

2017 2017 Actual Over

Budget Actual {Under Budget)
5 2,359,600 [ 1,566,518 S (792,482)
22,500 24,215 1,715
2,381,500 1,580,733 (790,767}
817,019 770,771 (46,248)

- 56,614 56,614

64,765 110,660 45,895
105,202 8,751 {96,451}
49,164 53,224 4,060
8,750 13,368 4,618
70,583 27,205 (43,378}
100,684 58,308 (42,376}
411,363 301,772 {109,591}

- 152,436 152,436
109,194 66,823 (42,371)
15,350 70,124 54,774
1,752,074 1,690,056 (62,018}
629,426 {99,323} {728,749}

- 931 931

- 931 931

629,426 {98,392) {727,818)
(1,043,833) {1,043,833) .
- (409,048} {409,048}

- 5,381 5,381

- (403,667) {403,667)
S (414,407) S {1,545,892)  §  (1,131,485)
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UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

SCHEDULE OF THE VAD'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

LAST 10 YEARS*

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

UAD's proportion of the net pension liability
UAD’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
UAD's covered-employee payroll

UAD’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll

Plan Fiduciary net position as a percentage of

the total pension liability

*Information for years prior ta 2015 is not available.

See independent auditor’s report.

2017 2016 2015

3.2% 6.2% 6.8%
803,905 s 1,627,752 $ 1,267,070

751,156 $ 1,360,069 $ 1,329,702

107.02% 119.68% 95.30%
65.44% 62.24% 69.11%
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UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

SCHEDULE GF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
LAST 10 YEARS*
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

Actuarially determined contribution

Contributions in relation to the actuariafly determined contribution

Contribution deficiency {excess)

Covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

*information for years prior to 2014 is not available.

See independent auditor's report.

2017 2016 2015 2014

116,054 $ 181,025 $ 150522 $ 143,193

{67,604) {81,548) {79,783) (78,584)

48,450 99,477 70,739 64,609
751,156  $1,360,069 51,329,702 $1,314,908

9.00% 6.00% 6.00% 5.98%
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CRAIT, VEACH & COMPANY, PIL.C

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Members of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of North Little Rock, Arkansas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the City of North Little Rock
Utilities Accounting Department {the “UAD”), a component unit of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, as
of and for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated August
27, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the UAD's internal control
over financial reporting {internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the UAD's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the UAD’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness Is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in Internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected cn a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the UAD's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

P.0. Box 13986 » Maumelle, AR 72113 | 8410 Counts Massie Road ¢ North Little Rock, AR 72113 | (501) 753-0808 | Fax (501) 753-6706
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the UAD's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not

suitable for any other purpose.

ek

Craft, Veach & Company, PLC
North Little Rock, Arkansas
August 27, 2018

P.O. Box 13986 & Maumelle, AR 72113 | 8410 Counts Massic Road & North Little Rock, AR 72113 | (501) 753-0805 | Fax (501) 753-6706
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UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS DECEMBER 31, 2017

Findings Required to be Reported hy Government Auditing Standards:

Reference
Number Finding Status

None.

Prior year findings required to be reported by Government Auditing Standards:

Reference
Number Finding Status

None.
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Contract Temp 18-03

CONTRACT
FOR

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
MARION STREET - 16'" TO 18™ STREET

THIS CONTRACT is made this /g%day of /9 ﬁél)é"" , 2018, by and between

THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, herein called the “City,” acting herein through its Mayor,
Joe A. Smith , and _Garver, LLL.C , herein called “Engineer” or “Consultant.”

In consideration of the mutual covenants herein, the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE I -- SCOPE OF ENGINEER’S BASIC SERVICES

1.01  The Engineer will provide all professional services necessary for the complete design and
construction observation of the Project (the “Work™), as generally identified below, and more
specifically described in the Scope of Services, attached hereto as Appendix “A”:

.1 See Appendix A for Scope of Services
ARTICLE 2 — CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

2.01 The Contract Documents shall consist of:

.1 This fully executed Agreement, including all attachments;

.2 Notice to Proceed,;

.3 Written Amendments;

4 Work Change Directives; and
.5 Change Order(s).

ARTICLE 3 — ENGINEER'S TEAM MEMBERS

3.01 Team Members:
Todd Mueller, PE — Project Manager
Chartes Cullen, PE- Project Engineer
ARTICLE 4 — CITY’S DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE
4.01 The City’s Designated Representative is:

Chris Wilbourn, PE — NLR Chief Engineer
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Contract Temp 18-03

ARTICLE 5 - DELIVERABLES:
5.01 Consultant shall provide to the City the following:

.1 See Appendix A for Project Deliverables

ARTICLE 6 — BASIC AGREEMENT AND PERIOD OF SERVICE

6.01 Engineer shall provide or furnish all professional services necessary for the complete design
and construction documentation of the Project. If authorized by City, or if required because of
changes in the Project, Engineer shall furnish services in addition to those set forth above
(“Additional Services™).

ARTICLE 7 - PAYMENT PROCEDURES

7.01 Engineer shall prepare invoices in accordance with its standard invoicing practices and submit
the invoices to City on a monthly basis. Invoices are due and payable within 15 days of receipt.

7.02 As compensation for Engineer providing or furnishing Services and, if applicable, Additional
Services, City shall pay Engineer as set forth in Paragraphs 7.01 and 7.04. If City disputes an
invoice, either as to amount or entitlement, then City shall promptly advise Engineer in writing or
the specific basis of the dispute, may withhold only that portion so disputed, and must pay the
undisputed portion. '

7.03 City shall pay Engineer for Services as follows:

.1 An amount equal to the cumulative hours charged to the Project by each class of
Engineer’s employee’s times standard hourly rates for each applicable billing class, plus
reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection with providing the Services and
Engineer’s consultants’ charges, if any.

.2 Engineer’s standard Hourly Rates are attached as Appendix “B”.

.3 The maximum total compensation for Services and reimbursable expenses is estimated
to be: $39,400,

7.04 For Additional Services, City shall pay Engineer an amount equal to the cumulative hours
charged in providing the Additional Services by each class of Engineer’s employees, times
standard hourly rates for each applicable billing class; plus reimbursement of expenses, as defined
herein, incurred in connection with providing the Additional Services and Engineer’s consultants’
charges, if any. Engineer’s standard hourly rates are attached as Appendix B. Additional Services
will be permitted only if approved in writing by the City and Engineer.

7.05 “Reimbursable expenses™ are defined as the following:

.1 Fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the Project;

.2 Printing, reproductions, standard form documents;

.3 Postage and handling;

4 Models, mock-ups, professional photography, and presentation materials requested by
the City and prepared in-house by Engineer.
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Contract Temp 18-03

ARTICLE 8 —- NON-APPROPRIATION

8.01 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Contract, with respect to any financial obligation
of the City which may arise under this Agreement in any fiscal year after the year of execution, in
the event the budget or other means of appropriation for any year fails to provide funds in sufficient
amounts to discharge such obligation, such failure (i) shall act to teriminate this Contract at such
time as the then-existing and available appropriations are depleted, and (ii) neither such failure nor
termination shall constitute a default or breach of this Contract, including any sub-agreement
attachment, schedule, or exhibit thereto, by the Owner. As used herein, the term “appropriation”
shall mean and include the due adoption of an appropriation ordinance and budget which contains
an allocation of sufficient funds for the performance of fiscal obligations arising under this
Contract.

ARTICLE 9 - ENGINEER’S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

9.01 In order to induce City to enter into this Agreement Engineer makes the following
representations:

.1 The standard of care for all professional engineering and related services performed or
furnished by Engineer under this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by
members of the subject profession practicing under similar circumstances at the same time
and in the State of Arkansas, and that all work on the Project shall meet the specifications
set forth in the Contract Documents. Engineer further represents and warrants that
Engineer and all personnel used to perform the Project, possess the knowledge, skill, and
experience necessary to perform the Project.

.2 The Engineer hereby represents that it (and the individual engineers it employees on this
Project) are licensed to practice Engineering as required by law in the State of Arkansas.
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to authorize performance by the Engineer at
a standard of care that is reduced from that which is required by law and which is expected
of engineers practicing under similar circumstances and conditions.

.3 The Engineer agrees that its designs, Construction Documents, and Services shall
conform to all federal, state, and local statutes and regulations applicable to its Services
and the Project.

4 The Engineer agrees and acknowledges that this duty is non-delegable — and that the
Engineer, by signing drawings or preparing Construction Documents to submit for
purposes of obtaining building and other governmental permits, shall be deemed to certify
that it has taken every reasonable measure to ascertain what codes apply to the Project and
as applied them accordingly. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to eliminate or
diminish the Engineer’s responsibility for compliance of its design, it Construction
Documents, and its Services provided with local, state, and federal statutes and regulation.

9.02 The Engineer further represents and warrants that:
.1 Engineer has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to carry out the
Project contemplated by this Agreement.

.2 The Engineer represents and warrants that Engineer will comply with all laws
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applicable to the performance of the Project under this Agreement.

.3 The Engineer represents and warrants that Engineer’s execution, delivery, and
performance of this Agreement will not constitute: (i) a violation of any judgment, order,
or decree binding on Engineer; (ii) a breach under any contract by which Engineer is bound;
or (iii) an event that would, with notice or lapse of time, or both, constitute such a breach.
.4 The Engineer represents and warrants that the Project will be performed with the degree
of skill and care that is required by current, good, and sound professional procedures and
practices, and in conformance with generally accepted professional procedures and
industry standards prevailing at the time the Project is performed,

.5 The Engineer represents and warrants that Engineer has, and shall maintain in effect

for the duration of this Agreement, all licenses, permits qualifications, and approvals of
whatsoever nature which are legally required for Engineer to complete the Project. If
applicable, Engineer shall also take reasonable steps to ensure that all permitted
subcontractors are similarly licensed and qualified.

ARTICLE 10 - EXCLUDED ENGINEER SERVICES

10.01 Engineer shall not at any time supervise, direct, control, or have authority over any
Constructor’s work, nor shall Engineer have authority over or be responsible for the means,
methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used by any
Constructor, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, for security or safety at the
Project site, nor for any failure of a Constructor to comply with laws and regulations applicable
to such Constructor’s furnishing and performing of its work. Engineer shall not be responsible
for the acts or omissions of any Constructor.

10.02 Engineer neither guarantees the performance of any Constructor nor assumes
responsibility for any Constructor’s failure to furnish and perform its work.

10.03 Engineer’s opinions (if any) of probably construction cost are to be made on the basis of
Engineer’s experience, qualifications, and general familiarity with the construction industry.
However, because Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or services
furnished by others, or over contractors’ methods of determining prices, or over competitive
bidding or market conditions, Engineer cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or
actual construction cost will not vary from opinions of probable construction cost prepared by
Engineer. If City requires greater assurance as to probable construction cost, then City agrees to
obtain an independent cost estimate.

10.04  Engineer shall not be responsible for any decision made regarding the construction
confract requirements, or any application, interpretation, clarification, or modification of the
construction contract documents other than those made by Engineer or its consultants.

10.05 Engineer’s Services do not include any services related to unknown or undisclosed
Constituents of Concern, as defined herein, 1f Engineer or any other party encounters, uncovers,
or reveals an unknown or undisclosed Constituent of Concern, then Engineer may, at its option
and without liability for consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of Services on
the portion of the Project affected thereby until the City retains appropriate specialist consultants
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or contractors to identify, abate and/or remove the Constituent of Concern and warrant that the
portion of the Project affected is in full compliance with applicable laws and regulations, or
terminate this Agreement for cause if it is not practical to continue providing Services.

10.06 Engineer’s Services and, if applicable, Additional Services, do not include:

.1 serving as a “municipal advisor” for purposes of the registration requirements of Section

075 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (2010) or the

municipal advisor for registration rules issued by the Securities and Exchange

Commission;

.2 advising City, or other person or entity, regarding municipal financial products or the

issuance of municipal securities, including advice with respect to the structure, timing,

terms, or other similar matters concerning such products or issuances;

.3 providing surety bonding or insurance-related advice, recommendations, counseling, or

research, or enforcement of construction insurance or surety bonding requirements; and
.4 providing legal advice or representation;

.5 geotechnical, soils or subsurface engineering and/or structural engineering,

ARTICLE 11 - TERMINATION

11.01 The obligation to continue performance under this Agreement may be terminated for cause:

.1 By either party upon thirty (30} days written notice in the event of substantial failure by
the other party to perform in accordance with the Agreement’s terms through no fault of
the terminating party; or

.2 Failure to pay Engineer for ifs Services is a substantial failure to perform and a basis for
termination.

11.02 The obligation to continue performance under this Agreement may be terminated by
Engineer upon seven days written notice if City demands that Engineer furnish or perform services
contrary to Engineer’s responsibilities as a licensed professional. Engineer shall have no liability
to City on account of a termination for cause by Engineer.

11.03 Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement will not terminate as a result of a substantial
failure under paragraph 11.01 if the party receiving such notice begins, within seven (7) days
receipt of such notice, to correct its substantial failure to perform and proceeds diligently to cure
such failure within no more than thirty (30) days of receipt of notice; provided, however, that if
and to the extent such substantial failure cannot be reasonably cured within such thirty (30) day
period, and if such party has diligently attempted to cure the same and thereafter continues
diligently to cure the same, then the cure period provided for herein shall extend up to, but in no
case more that, sixty (60) days after the date of receipt of the notice.

11.04 The obligation to continue performance under this Agreement may be terminated for
convenience, by City effective upon Engineer’s receipt of written notice from City.

11.05 Tn the event of any termination under paragraph 11.01, Engineer will be entitled to invoice
City and to receive full payment for all Services and, if applicable, Additional Services performed
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or furnished in accordance with this Agreement, plus reimbursement of expenses incurred through
the effective date of termination in connection with providing the Services and, if applicable,
Additional Services, and Engineer’s consultants’ charges, if any, upon providing documentary
support to the City’s satisfaction.

ARTICLE 12 - CHANGE ORDERS

12.01 City and Engineer agree and acknowledge as a part of this Agreement that no Change
Order, as defined herein, or other form or order or directive is authorized without written
assurance by the Director of Finance that lawful appropriations to cover the costs of the
additional work have been made, and funds are available. The change order shall be signed by
the City’s Designated Representative, and the Engineer. It is the Engineer's sole responsibility to
know, determine, and ascertain the authority of the City representative signing any change order
under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 13 — DISPUTE RESOLUTION

13.01 City and Engineer agree to negotiate each dispute between them in good faith during the
thirty (30) days after written notice of dispute. If negotiations are unsuccessful in resolving the
dispute, then the dispute shall be mediated by using a mediation service, mutually agreed upon by
the parties, located in Pulaski County, Arkansas with the costs being shared equally by the parties.
If mediation 1s unsuccessful, the parties may exercise their rights at law in a court of competent
jurisdiction in Pulaski County, Arkansas.

ARTICLE 14 — WAIVER OF “REMOTE” OR “SPECULATIVE” DAMAGES

14.01 City and Engineer agree that neither party will be liable for breach-of-contract damages
that the breaching party could not reasonably have foreseen on entry into this Agreement. City
agrees that Engineer’s total liability to City under this Agreement shall be limited to [AMOUNT]
or the total amount of compensation received by Engineer, whichever is greater.

ARTICLE 15 — INSURANCE

15.01 Engineer shall maintain for the duration of this Agreement all forms of insurance required
by law in the State of Arkansas, where the Project is located, and the state in which the Engineer
is located, if different. In addition to professional liability insurance with a per occurrence basis,
the Engineer shall also maintain insurance coverage for comprehensive general liability,
automobile liability, and workers compensation by a carrier satisfactory to the City. The Engineer
shall ensure that any and all Consultants engaged or employed by the Engineer carry and maintain
similar insurance covering their respective portions of the Services.

ARTICLE 16 - COPYRIGHT

16.01 The Engineer and the City warrant that in transmitting Instruments of Service, or any other
information, the transmitting party is the copyright owner of such information or has permission
from the copyright owner to transmit such information for its use on the Project.
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16.02 The Engineer hereby assigns to the City, without reservation, all copyrights in all Project-
related documents, models, photographs, and other expression created by the Engineer. Among
those documents are certain “Instruments of Service,” including the design drawings and the
Construction Documents. The assignment provided for in this Section 16.03 shall result in the City
being deemed sole copyright holder in the Instruments of Service and in all other designs and
drawings created or prepared for this Project; and no other person or entity shall be deemed co-
author or joint copyright holder in the works created or prepared for this Project. The City’s
obligation to pay the Engineer is expressly conditioned upon the Engineer’s obtaining a valid
written comprehensive assignment of copyrights from its Consultants in terms identical to those
that obligate the Engineer to the City as expressed in this subsection, which copyrights the
Engineer, in turn, hereby assigns to the City. The City, in consideration, hereby grants the Engineer
and its Consultants a revocable, nonexclusive license to reproduce the documents for purposes
relating directly to the Engineer’s performance of its obligations under this Agreement, for the
Engineer’s archival records, and for the Engineer’s reproduction of drawings and photographs in
the Engineer’s marketing materials, provided that the Project-related contents of those materials
are approved as requested in Section _ of this Agreement. This nonexclusive license shall
terminate automatically upon the occurrence of either a breach of this Agreement by the Engineer
or the accused commission by the Engineer of a tort or a crime affecting the City or the Project or
upon termination of this Agreement. This nonexclusive license is granted to the Engineer alone
and shall not be assigned by the Engineer to any other person or entity, except that the nonexclusive
license granted in this Agreement to the Engineer for purposes of the Engineer’s performance
hercunder may be sub-licensed to the Engineer’s Consultants (with the same limitations). Subject
to the foregoing, this nonexclusive license shall terminate automatically upon an Engineer’s
assignment of this nonexclusive license to another or its attempt to do so.

16.04 The Engineer shall obtain similar nonexclusive licenses from the Engineer’s consultants
consistent with this Agreement.

16.05 In the event City uses the Instruments of Service on other projects not specific to this Scope
of Work, the City releases the Engineer from all claims and causes of action arising from such
uses,

16.06 Except for the licenses granted in this Article 12, no other license or right shall be deemed
granted or implied under this Agreement. No other Project-related data, expression, or documents
may be reproduced by the Engineer or its Consultants for any other purpose without the express
written permission of the Owner.

16.07 If the City subsequently reproduces Project-related documents or creates a derivative work
based upon Project-related documents created by the Engineer, the City shall (where permitted or
required by law) remove or completely obliterate the original professional’s seals, logos, and other
indications on the documents of the identity of the Engineer and its Consultants.

16.08 The Engineer shall maintain the confidentiality of all Project documents and information
and shall not publish or in any way disseminate or distribute any Project-related document,
including, but not limited to, correspondence, estimates, drawings, specifications, photographs, or
any other material relating to the Project without the express written authorization of the City.
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ARTICLE 17 — DEFINITIONS

17.01 Constituent of Concern — Any substance, product, waste, or other material of any nature
whatsoever (including, but not limited to, Asbestos, Petroleum, Radioactive Material, and PCBs)
which is or becomes listed, regulated, or addressed pursuant to (a) the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §§9601 et seq.
(“CERCLA"); (b) the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. §§1801 et seq.; (c) the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §§6901 et seq. (“RCRA"); (d) the Toxic
Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§2601 et seq.; (¢) the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§1251 et
seq.; (f) the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.; and (g) any other federal, state, or local
statute, law, rule, regulation, ordinance, resolution, code, order, or decree regulating, relating to,
or imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning, any hazardous, toxic, or dangerous waste,
substance, or material.

17.02 Constructor — any person or entity (not including the Engineer, its employees, agents,
representatives, and consultants), performing or supporting construction activities relating to the
Project, including but not limited to contractors, subcontractors, suppliers City’s work forces,
utility companies, construction managers, testing firms, shippers, and truckers, and the employees,
agents, and representatives of any or all of them. '

17.03 Designated City Representative — the individual or entity named as such in the Agreement.
17.04 Reimbursable Expenses — expenses defined in Section 6.05 of this Agreement.

17.05 Remote or Speculative Damages — losses that were not reasonably foreseeable as a
consequence of the breach, on the Effective Date, by the Party that breaches this Agreement.

ARTICLE 18 - MISCELLANEOUS

18.01 Choice of Law; Venue — The parties hereto agree that this Contract shall be construed under
Arkansas law, excluding its conflict of laws rules. The parties further agree that proper jurisdiction
and venue for any cause of action arising from this Contract shall be vested in either the U.S.
District Court for the Eastern District of Arkansas or the Circuit Court of Pulaski County,
Arkansas.

18.02 Non-Waiver — No delay or failure to exercise any right under this Contract shall impair any
such right or be construed to be a waiver thereof. No waiver shall be effective unless in writing
signed by the party waiving. A waiver of a right on one occasion shall not be deemed to be waiver
of such right on any other occasion. A waiver of a right on one occasion shall not be deemed to
be a waiver of any other right on that occasion.

18.03 No Assignment — The Project to be performed pursuant to this Contract is personal in nature,
and Contractor may not, voluntarily or by operation of law, assign or transfer any of its rights or
obligations under this Contract without the prior written consent of the City.

18.04 Merger — This Contract constitutes the full understanding of the parties, a complete
allocation of risks between them and a complete and exclusive statement of the terms and
conditions of their agreement, related to the Services provided hereunder. All prior agreements,
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negotiations, dealings and understandings, whether written or oral, regarding the subject matter
hereof, are superseded by and merged into this Contract.

18.05 Data Transmission — City and Engineer may transmit, and shall accept, Project-related
correspondence, documents, text, data, drawings, information, and graphic, in electronic media or
digital format, either directly, or through access to a secure Project website, in accordance with a
mutually agreeable protocol.

18.06 Modification — No conditions, usage of trade, course of dealing or performance,
understanding or agreement purporting to modify, vary the terms or conditions of the Contract
shall be binding unless hereafter made in writing and signed by the party to be bound, and no
modification shall be effected by the acknowledgment or acceptance of any forms containing terms
or conditions or variance with or in addition to those set forth in this Contract,

18.07 Severability — Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or
unenforceable under any Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions
shall continue to be valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the Contract
Documents shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and
enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken
provision.

18.08 No Presumption against Drafter — Each of the parties hereto has jointly participated in the
negotiation and drafting of this Agreement. In the event an ambiguity or a question of intent or
interpretation arises, this Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly by each of the parties
hereto and no presumptions or burdens of proof shall arise favoring any party by virtue of the
authorship of any provisions of this Agreement.

18.09 Counterpart Execution — This Contract may be executed in two or more counterparts, each
of which is deemed as original but all constitute one and the same instrument,

18.10 Filing — This document shall be filed in the official records of the City Clerk of the City of
North Little Rock, Arkansas. Either party may additionally file this document in any other
governmental office deemed appropriate; however, the parties waive all claims and defenses in
law or equity based upon such additional filing.

[Signatures on Next Page]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties have caused this Contract to be duly executed
on the above date intending to be bound thereby.

GARVER, LLC

By: By: <) 3
Bh‘anuddeII, Vice President
ATTEST: Contract reviewed and approved by:

i

< CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

AMY BECKMAN FIELDS
North Little Rock City Attorney

BY: /] /atie S0
eputy City Attorney Date
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APPENDIX A — SCOPE OF SERVICES

21 General

Generally, the scope of services includes the madifcation of the plans and construction support services
for improvements to Marion Street from 16' Street to 18" Street. Improvements will consist primarily of
860 feet of a 2-lane curbed roadway with a storm sewer system and a sidewalk.

2.2 Final Design

The original contract between the City of North Liitle Rock and Garver for the Marion Street
improvments dated January 29, 2014, was for the design and bidding of the project between 15t Street
and 18" Street. After preliminary plans were completed, at the direction of the City Engineer, the plans
were revised fo only include the block between 17" Street and 18% Street. Garver will revise the current
erosion control plans, maintehance of traffic plans, survey control plans, plan and profiles, cross
sections, quantities, and technical specifications for 17t Street to 18" Street to include the block
between 16" and 17 Street.

Front end and bid documents fo be provided by the Owner.

Garver will also prepare, submit, and coordinate approval of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP) with ADEQ.

2.3 Property Acqguisition Documents

Preparation of right-of-way/Easement acquisition documents will be performed by the Owner.
2.4 Bidding Services

Garver will not perform Bidding Servives for this project.

2.5 Construction Phase Services

During the construction phase of work, Garver will accomplish the following:

1. Issue a Notice to Proceed letter to the Contractor and attend preconstriuction meeting.

2. Aftend progress/coordination meetings with the Owner/Contractor.

3. Evaluate and respond to construction materiai submittals and shop drawings. Corrections or
comments made by Garver on the shop drawings during this review will not relieve Confractor
from compliance with requirements of the drawings and specifications. The check will only be for
review of general conformance with the design concept of the project and general compliance
with the information given in the contract documents. The Contractor will be responsible for
confirming and correlating all quantities and dimensions, selecting fabrication processes and
techniques of construction, coordinating his work with that of all other trades, and performing his
wotk in a safe and satisfactory manner. Garver's review shall not constitute approval of safety
precautions or constitute approval of construction means, methods, techniques, sequences,
procedures, or assembly of various components. When certification of performance
characteristics of materiais, systams or equipment is required by the Contract Documents,
either directly or implied for a complete and workable system, Garver shall be entitled to rely
upon such submittal or implied certification to establish that the materials, systems or
equipment will meet the performance criteria required by the Contract Documents.

4. Issue instructions to the Contractor on behalf of the Owner and issue necessary clarifications
{respond to RFis) regarding the construction contract documents.

5. Review the Contractor's progress payment requests based on the actual quantities of
contract items completed and accepted, and will make a recommendation to the Owner
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regarding payment. Garver's recommendation for payment shall not be a representation that
Garver has made exhaustive or continuous inspections to (1) check the quality or exact
quantities of the Work; (2) to review billings from Subcontractors and material suppliers to
substantiate the Contractor's right to payment; or (3) to ascertain how the Contractor has
used money previously paid to the Contractor.

6. Maintain a set of working drawings.

7. Provide parttime resident construction observation services for the 120-calendar-day
construction contract perfarmance time. The proposed fee is based on approximately 1
hours per day, 5 days per week, during the 120-calendar-day construction contract
performance time. [f the consfruction time extends beyond the time established in this
agreement or if the Owner wishes to increase the time or frequency of the observation, the
Owner will pay Garver an additional fee agreed to by the Owner and Garver.

8. When authorized by the Owner, prepare change orders for changes in the work from that
originally provided for in the construction contract documents. If redesign or substantial
engineering or surveying is required in the preparation of these change order documents, the
Owner will pay Garver an additional fee to be agreed upon by the Owner and Garver.

9. Participate in final project inspection, prepare punch list, review final project closing
documents, and submit final pay request.

Construction observation services will be provided by Garver's Resident Project Representative, who
will provide or accomplish the following:

» Consult with and advise the Owner during the construction period.

» Coordinate with the firm providing construction materials quality assurance testing under
separate contract with the Owner.

+ Maintain a file of quantities incorporated into the work, test reports, certifications, shop
drawings and submittals, and other appropriate information.

+ Maintain a project diary which will contain information pertinent to each site visit.

The proposed fee for Construction Phase Services is based on a 120-calendar-day construction
contract performance time. If the construction time extends beyond the time esfablished in this
agreement, and the Owner wants Garver to continue the applicable Construction Phase Services, the
Owner will pay Garver an additional fee agreed to by the Owner and Garver.

In performing construction observation services, Garver will endeavor to protect the Owner against
defects and deficiencies in the work of the Contractor(s}); but Garver cannot guarantee the performance
of the Contractor(s), nor be responsible for the actual supervision of construction operations or for the
safety measures that the Contractor(s) takes or should take. However, if at any time during
construction Garver observes that the Contractor's work does not comply with the construction
contract documents, Garver will notify the Contractor of such non-compliance and instruct him to
correct the deficiency and/or stop work, as appropriate for the situation. Garver will also record the
observance, the discussion, and the actions taken. If the Contractor continues without satisfactory
corrective action, Garver will notify the Owner immediately, so that appropriate action under the
Owner's confract with the Contractor can be taken.

214  Project Deliverables
The following will be submitted to the Owner, or others as indicated, by Garver:

Three copies of the Final Design with opinion of probable construction cost.
One copy of the revised Final Plans to each potentially affected utility company.
Three copies of the Final Plans and Specifications to the Contractor.

Two copies of approved shop drawings/submittals from the Contractor.
Electronic files as requested.

Ol wh =
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215

Extra Work

The following items are not included under this agreement but will be considered as extra work:

1.

Noeopwn

©w

Redesign for the Owner’s convenience or due to changed conditions after previous alternate
direction and/or approval.

Submittals or deliverables in addition to those listed herein.

Review and approval of utifity relocation plans.

Design of any utility relocations.

Retaining walls or other significant structural design.

Street lighting or other electrical design.

Environmental Handling and Documentation, including wetlands identification or mitigation
plans or other work related to environmentally or historically (culturally) significant items.
Coordination with FEMA and preparation/submittal of a CLOMR and/or LOMR.

Providing plans for more than one construction project if owner decides to split the project into
segments.

10. Services after construction, such as warranty follow-up, operations support, etc.

Extra Work will be as directed by the Owner in writing for an additional fee as agreed upon by the
Owner and Garver.

For clarification, this agreement does not include any geotechnical work or materials testing. The
Owner will contract directly with a geotechnical subconsultant for materials testing.

2.16

Schedule

Garver shall begin work under this Agreement within ten (10} days of a Notice to
Proceed and shall complete the work in accordance with the schedule below:

Phase Description Calendar Days
Final Design 30 days from Start Date
Appendix A - Scope of Services 3of3 13017410
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APPENDIX B
NLR - Marion Street
Garver Hourly Rate Schedule: July 2018 - June 2019

Classification Rates

Engineers / Architects

Designers

2-Man Crew (SUMVEY).......eieiiee e $ 186.00
F:Man Crew lSUNEY): qmes s w e $ 232.00
2-Man Crew (GPS SUMVEY).....c.oeieeiei e, $ 206.00
3-Man Crew (GPS SUMVeY)............coevvvvieiiiiiiieiiiiiiicsiieaneen, $ 252.00

Construction Observation

$ 140.00
$ 173.00

$ 345.00
$ 58.00
$ 79.00
$ 110.00
$ 140.00
$ 172.00
$ 219.00

Agreement for Professional Services
NLR - Marion Street Garver Project No. 13017410





APPENDIX B

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
MARION STREET (16TH TO 18TH)

FEE SUMMARY

Title | Services Estimated Fees
g Final Design $7,450.00
Subtotal for Title | Services $7,450.00

Title Il Services
Construction Phase Services $31,950.00
Subtotal for Title Il Services $31,950.00

LA2013V13017410 - NLR - Marion Streef\Contracts\ClientiWorking Files\16th to 18th Street\201T\APPENDIX B - Garver Fee
Spreadsheet - lump sum or hourly {updated for 2017).xisx






APPENDIX B

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
MARION STREET (16TH TO 18TH)

FINAL DESIGN

WORK TASK DESCRIPTION E-5 E-2
$203.00 $118.00
hr hr
. Civil Engineering
Revise Final Plans
Cover Shest 1
Typical Sections 1
Plan & Profile Sheets 8
Cross Sections 8
Maintenance of Traffic Plan 4
Driveways 1
Drainage Improvements 1
Sidewalks 1
Typical Details
Erosion Control Plans
Final Review/Walkthrough with City 1 1
Coordination with Utility Companies 1
Coordination and Meetings with Owner 1 1
Coordination with DOT
Coordination with Health Department
Technical Specifications 1 8
Quantities 16
Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 1
QC Review 1 2
Subtotal - Civil Engineering 4 55
Hours 4 55
Salary Costs $812.00 $6,490.00
SUBTOTAL - SALARIES: $7,302.00
DIRECT NON-LABOR EXPENSES
Document Printing/Reproduction/Assembly $74.00
Postage/Freight/Courier $0.00
Office Supplies/Equipment $0.00
Travel Costs $74.00
SUBTOTAL - DIRECT NON-LABOR EXPENSES: $148.00
SUBTOTAL: $7,450.00
SUBCONSULTANTS FEE: $0.00

TOTAL FEE: $7,450.00
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK

MARION STREET (16TH TO 18TH)

CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

TOTAL FEE:

$31,950.00

WORK TASK DESCRIPTION E-5 C-3 C-2 E-3 X-3
$203.00 $140.00 $115.00 $142.00 $110.00
hr hr hr hr hr
- _Civil Engineering
Preconstruction Meeting 2 2
Utility Coordination Meeting 2 2
Progress Meetings with Contractor/City 4 6
Monthly Pay Requests 10
Shop Drawings/Material Submitials 2 12
Record Drawings 8
On-Site Meetings 4 14
Resident Construction Observation 140
Conlfractor's iayout, etc, 2
Quality Assurance of Contractor Layout 20
Prepare Change Orders 8
Final Project Inspection and Punchlist 2 8
Subtotal - Civil Engineeting 18 0 154 66 10
._Structural Engineering
Response 1o Inquities
Shop Drawings
Subtetal - Structural Engineering 0 0 ] 0 0
- _Mechanical Engineering
Subtotal - Mechanica! Engineering 0 0 0 0 0
14. Electrical Engineering
Subtotal - Electrical Engineering 0 0 0 0 0
Hours 18 0 154 66 10
Salary Costs $3,654.00 $0.00 $17,710.00 $9,372.00 $1,100.00
SUBTOTAL - SALARIES: $31,836.00
DIRECT NON-L ABOR EXPENSES
Document Printing/Reproduction/Assembly $62.00
Postage/Freight/Courier $0.00
Office Supplies/Equipment $0.00
Travel Costs $52.00
SUBTOTAL - DIRECT NON-LABOR EXPENSES: $114.00
SUBTOTAL: $31,950.00
SUBCONSULTANTS FEE: $0.00
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COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE

Mayor Smith:

| am writing in regards to the North Little Rock Airport. As you know my family has been involved
in real estate development in the North Little Rock area with six shopping centers in North Little
Rock, as well as numerous other single tenant properties in the city. Those are in addition to the
six shopping centers we have in Little Rock, plus other centers in Jacksonville, Pine Bluff,
Magnolia, and centers outside this state. Our properties in North Little Rock alone contribute
approximately $933,363.24 in property taxes which support our schools. Our tenants generate
hundreds of thousands of dollars in sales taxes benefitting the city and employing hundreds of
residents who contribute to the North Little Rock economy.

In 2001 | made the decision to purchase an airplane. The next step was to decide whether to
hanger it in North Little Rock or Little Rock. | made the decision to hanger in North Little Rock
since it’s where our home office is located. The decision was difficult because the facilities were
very substandard compared to Little Rock. | was one of the first corporate owners to make that
decision and since that time | have encouraged others to hanger their corporate aircraft there
because of the excellent service | have received from the FBO in maintaining and servicing the
airplane,

The other airplane owners and | who use the North Little Rock facility were under the impression
if we would support the airport the city would bring the facilities up to standard FBO facilities
seen across the country, not only in major metropolitan areas, but cities smaller than North Little
Rock which provide FBO facilities superior to the North Little Rock FBO. I also served on the
airport commission and was heavily involved in promoting the airport and trying to help it grow.
During my time on the commission we made multiple attempts to bring the FBO facilities up to
better standards, but got little or no interest from the city as to the needs of the airport. In
speaking with other corporate aircraft tenants, we are in unanimous agreement that it is past
time for the city to show an interest in the airport and bring the facilities up to standards
comparable to other FBO's of similar size communities across the country. We are the largest
general aviation airport in the state and have the worst facilities in the state. | personally know
of several other owners who would consider moving their airplanes from Little Rock to North
Little Rock if the airport would upgrade the facilities.

The current state of our FBO is unacceptable to me and in my opinion, it should be unacceptable
to the city. The North Little Rock Airport can’t expect FBO operators or tenants to continue to
support the airport with substandard facilities and lack of infrastructure. The airport can’t attract
aviation businesses that create jobs to come to the North Little Rock Airport under the current
conditions. The airport is a major city asset and should be recognized as one. If the current tenant





base frowns on the lack of support, then you can imagine why an aircraft operator traveling
across the country doesn’t even consider landing in North Little Rock. If they choose to land in
Little Rock, then they will most likely not support the restaurants

and hotels in North Little Rock; a loss of economic benefit which could be brought to North Little

Rock.

I have always been proud of how the citizens supported North Little Rock when we were
competing for things such as Verizon Arena, Dickey Stephens Park, and most recently the
Downtown Plaza. The airport should be no different. It is past time to bring our airport facilities
up to date and have something to be proud of. | would encourage the City Council to consider
investing its resources to improve the FBO. | believe it is an investment that will generate great
rewards for the city of North Little Rock.

Sincerely,

Kick Ashley &%/

The Ashley Group

wiep 9.4 _Am. PM.

BY Vg el
g-g18-18

%Ewmw.ﬁtycmmdmm







Biuee Obbley, Ihe.

P.O. BOX 17880 NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72117
501-945-0875

26 September 2018

Dear Mayor Smith,

| am writing this letter today to express my concern regarding the FBO at the North Little Rock Airport.

' -During the 1990's Bruce Oakley, Inc. kept its corporate aircraft across the river at Central Flying Service.

During the early 2000’s Tommy Murchison began calling on Oakley and after a few years convinced us to
move to North Little Rock after we purchased out first jet aircraft in 2005. Oakley has enjoyed an
excellent relationship with the NLR FBO ever since.

Now to my concern —the FBO looks the same as it did in 2005. There have been no improvements to
speak of and quite frankly the NLR FBO has fallen behind. When you compare the facilities and
amenities North Little Rock has to offer with Central Flying and TAC in Little Rock and with the other
FBO’s of similar size that Oakley frequents around the county there really is no comparison.

The City of North Little Rock is at a crossroads — you have something to build on, the question is — will
you. | firmly believe the North Little Rock Airport can be an incubator for economic development and
growth but not in its current condition. | am calling on you and the City Council to give serlous
consideration to major renovations of the North Little Rock Airport and constructing a new hangar.

On a side note — we should close on the Gribble Street property next week and with some luck begin
construction on our headquarters early 2019.

If you require additional information or have further questions regarding the Airport or if Bruce Oakley,
Inc. can help you please let me know.

Sincerely,

Dennis Oakley
President

siLED 9 Y4 AM.
BY V. a ema)l

DATE q- A8-1€

Diame Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Lit

RECEIVED b 2GS .
v.4 .
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ll& PROPERTIES, LLC

September 28, 2018

Mayor Smith:

This letter is in regards to the North Little Rock Airport. As you know | am heavily involved in real estate
development to include, commercial, multi-family, mixed-use, self- storage, office and industrial
projects. We have developments all over Arkansas and surrounding states. We are currently developing
a $150 million dollar multi-family complex that will include 960 luxury apartments in North Little Rock.
Our business ventures in Arkansas and surrounding states require our company to own and operate
corporate aircraft. We have owned several aircraft over the past few years and have been approached
multiple times about relocating our base of operations from the Little Rock Airport to the North Little
Rock Airport. With our company being based in North Little Rock this would seem to be an obvious
choice. We have considered moving our aviation department to North Little Rock, but the lack of
comparable facilities will not justify North Little Rock Airport as a choice. We travel all over the country
for our business and there is a certain standard you come to expect when you arrive at not only major
metropolitan airports but satellite airports as well. It's not just when we travel, but when we have
potential development partners or clients visit they arrive and depart from the Little Rock Airport which
has modern facilities which include a nice FBO facility, restaurants, and conference rooms.

If North Little Rock were to bring the airport facilities up to standards we would strongly consider basing
our two-corporate aircraft at the North Little Rock Airport. | feel confident there would be others who
would follow as well. It’s just not an option under the current conditions.

If | can be of any assistance to help with this project, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Keith Richardson

D e = e e R e S
9800 Maumelle Blvd, N. Little Rock, AR 72113 501-758-2441 0 501-758-7186 F www.richcre,com







dMaverick

TRANSPORTATION LLC

Dear Mayor Smith,

The purpose of this letter is bring to your attention the concern that I have relating to the
facilities for non-commercial aircraft at the North Little Rock Airport. As you are aware
we have had multiple jets based at this facility for many years. Frankly, it is a little
embarrassing when I fly customers into our corporate offices in North Little Rock from
Detroit, Atlanta or Chicago to make an impression on them as to the competency of the
Maverick organization to meet their expectations all over North America. Whether these
folks are from the United States, Canada or Mexico...where we live and how we live
sends a clear message to these potential customers and existing customers related to who
we and our passion for doing things the right way. That’s our brand. We have spent tens
of millions of dollars at all of our facilities to make sure that the message of commitment
is loud and clear to our customers and to all of our 2,000 employees. You will find that
attention to detail not only in North Little Rock but at all of our facilities whether that be
in Ft. Smith, St. Louis, Chicago or any location that has our brand. In addition to what
you have seen in North Little Rock...we are about to announce that we will be expanding
our campus to include a new CDL School, building a new state of the art 50,000 sf
service center, complete remodel of existing maintenance facility to include an employee
lounge area with cafeteria, game room, exercise facility, movie theatre and more. In
addition, at the beginning of the year we plan to begin construction a motel on our
property to house the more than 100 employees who spend the night in North Little Rock
on a daily basis. The only exception to this well-choreographed image is the FBO at the
North Little Rock Airport. Why do I continue to use this facility? There is only one
reason and that is because of the job that the personnel have provided for my company
and family for years. Unfortunately we have reached a breaking point.

[ have been complimented for years by Senators, Congressmen, Governors and Mayors
on the impression that our facility makes on travelers driving to the North Little Rock
area or thru our state. Itake a great deal of pride in meeting that “responsibility”.
Economic development is critical to the quality of life we can expect to have as citizens.
When you have something to build on...you need to consistently put your best foot
forward because you never know which of these individuals potentially will have the
most impact on our local community. You are either in the game or you are not. Idon’t
think that the message resonating from the City of North Little Rock is impressing
anyone.

I have visited with the other businessmen who have chosen to keep their jet aircraft based
in North Little Rock and our feelings are consistent. An old trucker that I knew years ago
told me that “one of the great things about owning a trucking company is when a

customer gets mad at you, those trucks can roll into another town just like they rolled into
this one.” That adage holds true and it applies to planes, too. T am not threatening to leave





N. Little Rock....but where we spend the tens of millions of dollars on facilities in the

years ahead will always remain optional. That is true for the other customers you already
have.

Respectfully,

Sl

Steve Williams
Chairman & CEO

piED 9. Y aM, PM.
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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

MR

NORTH LITTLE ROCK
JOE A. SMITH vV,.v PHONE (501) 975-8601
MAYOR ‘ ‘ FAX (501) 975-8633
mayor@nir.ar.gov

CITY HALL
P.O. BOX 5757
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72119-5757
website: www.nlr.ar.gov

MEMORANDUM
TO: Members of the North Little Rock City Council
FROM: Glinda Craigmyle
DATE: October 1, 2018
SUBJECT: Alcoholic Beverages Permit Request

For your information, I have enclosed a copy of the Assignment and Comments of
Officials form from the State of Arkansas, Alcoholic Beverage Control Division.

The following applicant has applied for a new restaurant mixed drink permit:

Anthony L. Hubbard
Longhorn Steakhouse
3911 McCain Blvd.
North Little Rock, AR

Please note the 15 day comment period referred to in the final paragraph of the
Comment page.

Thank you.

Attachments

man_ aM._ 33D e
BY, (2’ l% ,@,gﬁ L&% s i}fﬁm
pare |0 (- 1)

Dinme Whitbay, City Clerk and Collector
North LittleJRock, Atkanses
NECEWED by o

N

"An Equal Opportunity Employer”
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Date Received: 09/20/2018 Date Assigned: 09/21/2018

Applicant: ANTHONY L. HUBBARD

Green Card Number (Permanent Resident Alien):

Home Address: 2405 Bearskin Drive, Sherwood, AR, 72120

Home Phone: Business Phone :

Trade Name: | ONGHORN STEAKHQOUSE
Former Trade Name:

Business Address : 3911 McCain Blvd., North Little Rock
Type Of Investigation: Restaurant Mixed Drink - NEW

Dancing, if requested:

Comments / Remarks :

Copies Of Assignment and . ‘Mayor Joe Smith & City Council
Comment Form Mailed to: ‘

Michael Davis, Chief of Police
' Doc Holladay, Sheriff'

s . . .
Larry Jegley, Prosecuting Attorney

Assigned to Investigator:

D.0.B: 06/02/1971

Cell Phone: 501-992-7251

County pylaski

Stockholders / Partners / LLC
Members:





ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL DIVISION Im ﬁﬁ%ll m

COMMENTS OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS

APPLICANT'S NAME: ANTHONY L. HUBBARD

TYPE OF APPLICATION: Restaurant Mixed Drink - NEW

BUSINESS NAME: | ONGHORN STEAKHOUSE

BUSINESS ADDRESS: 3911 McCain Blvd., North Little Rock, AR, 72116

DATE OF APPLICATION: 09/20/2018

NAME OF PUBLIC OFFICIAL:

TITLE OF OFFICIAL:

OFFICIAL MAILING ADDRESS:

PHONE :

SIGNATURE OF OFFICIAL: DATE:

NAME OF AGENCY OR COURT:

Do you have any objections to the issuance of this permit?

{Yes orNo )

If yes, please explain your objéctions below:

To ensure your comments are available at the time this application is considered by the Director, please complete and return
this form to ABC Administration, 1515 West 7th Street, Suite 503, Little Rock, AR 72201, within fifteen (15) days of receipt. In
compliance with the Freedom of information Act, this Comment Form will become a matter of public record. Pursuant to ACA
3-2-103, a national fingerprint based background check will be, or has been, conducted. At ACICOs request, do not

run your own criminal history check through ACIC.

Printed On: 09/21/2018 Revised 03/11/2018
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ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL DIVISION
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT TO SELL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES FOR
CONSUMPTION ON THE PREMISES

Check One: () Hotel-Motel New Application X
Replacement i AN e
(x) Restaurant Only : Permit No.

N

I, or we, do hereby make application to the State of Arkansas for a permit to sell alcoholic beverages for
consumption on the premises, and do hereby submit answers to the following questions under cath for your

approval,
RARE Hospitality International, Inc. FEIN# 58-1498312
Corporate/Partnership/LLC Name
NAME___Anthony Lavern Hubbard
First Middle Last
HOME ADDRESS 2405 Bearskin Drive, Sherwood, AR 72120 Pulaski
Street City Zip County
BUSINESS NAME _LongHorn Steakhouse FORMER NAME__N/A
BUSINESS ADDRESS_3911 McCain Blvd., North Little Rock, AR 72116 Pulaski
Street City Zip County
Is proposed location inside or outside city limits? Inside
Are the beverages to be sold in connection with any other business? NO If so, state type of business
Are you the owner of the proposed premises? No If leased, give name and address of owner
Seritage SRC Finance LLC, 489 Fifth Ave., 18th Floor, New York, NY 10017 Does
anyone now hold a permit at this location? No If so, give name, type and permit number(s) of same
N/A

Do you or any other person interested in this permit hold any other type of alcoholic beverage permit? Y€s

. . RE Hospitality Int i Inc. fl ithi t i iates
If 50, give name, place and permit number(s) RA ospitality International, Inc., together with its parent corporation and j’:lfﬁilatﬂ‘
own and operate over Z,U00 restauraiits m the US & Canada; a1l iold alcohol licenses.

Number of sleeping rooms in hotel  N/A Seating capacity of restaurant 208
(NOTE: Seating capacity should also include any lounge or outside seating areas)

(CHECK MEALS SERVED: Breakfast Lunch X _ Dinner _X__ Number of days open per week e

Has there ever been a beer, wlinp of llqudr permit revoked at this location? _ N0 If so, give name and date

revoked






ot |

if applicant is a partnership, give names and addresses of all partners:

N/A

If applicant is a corporation/LLC, give (A) Name and address of stockholders and amount of stock held by

each:

RARE Hospitality International, Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of GMRI, Inc. GMRI, Inc.
owns 100% shares of stock for this entity.

GMRI, Inc., 1000 Darden Center Drive, Orlando, FL 32837

(B) Name and address of President and Secretary:
President -William R. White, TII, 4035 Gilder Rose Place, Winter Park, FL 32792

Secretary - Joseph G. Kern, 112 Kennison Drive, Orlando, FL 32801

*Please note, Mr. White and Mr, Kern have no felony convictions and own 0% stock in above corporations.

NOTE: Schedule A is to be completed by each party to this application and is to be considered a part of
application. Any mis-statements or concealment of fact will be grounds for refusal of application, or
revocation of permit(s) if later disclosed.

Signed this gfl dayofW 20/&

2.4/

Signature of Applicant or Managing Agent
Anthony Lavern Hubbard, Managing Agent

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _/ ZZ '/ O dayof ?—P/’)W@/’ . QO/E

My Commission Expires: DQ Q—Q . pzo 977?' | / W Publite \

. ) KELSEY SULLIVAN
Revised 11/13/09 d Notary Public - Arkansas

Lonoke County

Commission # 12702168
My Commissicn Expies Fob 22, 2028
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DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND ENTERTAINMENT ACTIVITIES
*For all ON PREMISES permits - except private c lubs* £6.J003.D3L674

NAME OF OUTLET  RARE Hospitality International, Inc. d/b/a LongHorn Steakhouse

CITY North Little Rock COUNTY Pulaski

Under the Section 1.34 of the ABC Regulations, any permit issued by this agency is valid only for the
uses described in the original application. Any material change in the outlet's operations or
entertainment other than originally listed in this application, without prior approval of the Director,
shall be grounds for revocation of the permit or other administrative penalties.

Describe the types of business and entertainment activities (cafe / restaurant pool hall, dancing, etc.) to
occur on your permitted premises on the lines below. Use the back of this form if necessary.

If live entertainment is proposed, you must be specific as to the type and description of
entertainment, i.e., live bands, dancers, ete.

FULL SERVICE RESTAURANT SERVING ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES.
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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

MR

NORTH LITTLE ROCK
JOE A, SMITH ' PHONE (501) 975-8601
MAYOR FAX (501) 975-8633
mayor@nlr.ar.gov
CITY HALL
P.0. BOX 5757
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72119-5757
website: www.nlr.ar.gov
MEMORANDUM
TO: Members of the Nogth Little Rock City Council
FROM: Glinda Craigmylejﬁ? J/
DATE: October 1, 2018
SUBJECT: Alcoholic Beverages Permit Request

For your information, I have enclosed a copy of the Assignment and Comments of
Officials form from the State of Arkansas, Alcoholic Beverage Control Division.

The following applicant has applied for an Off Premises retail beer, Small Farm
Winery, Grocery Store Wine and Wine Sampling permit with a change of manager
from Matthew S. Sims:

Tiffany S. Johnson
Wal-Mart Supercenter #4460
12001 Maumelle Blvd.
North Little Rock, AR

Please note the 15 day comment period referred to in the final paragraph of the
Comment page.

Thank you.

Attachments

FILED, AM. 020D M.
sy Glinda C. N‘LQJU(N\(\?&
pate \O- (- (¥

Diaae Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
~ North Litt k, Atkansas
RECEIVED by, P
NS

"An Equal Opportunity Employer”
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Date Received: 09/12/2018 Date Assigned: 09/21/2018
Applicant: TIFFANY S. JOHNSON D.0.B: 08/02/1990

Green Card Number {Permanent Resident Alien):
Home Address: 9408 Lew Circle Unit B, Little Rock, AR, 72209

Home Phone: Business Phone : 501-851-6102 Cell Phone: 501-257-7705

Trade Name: WAL-MART SUPERCENTER #4460
Former Trade Name: WA| -MART SUPERCENTER #4460

Business Address : 12001 Maumelle Blvd., North Little Rock County pylaski

Type Of Investigation: Retail Beer off Premises, Small Farm Wine, Grocery Store Wine & Wine
-Sampling - Change of Manager from Matthew Sims
01456

Dancing, if requested:

Comments / Remarks :

Copies Of Assignment and.  Mayor Joe Smith & City Council
Comment Form Mailed to:

‘Michael Davis; Chief of Police
Doc Holladay, Sheriff
e ,Larr;y Jeéley:, Prosecuting Attorney

Assigned to Investigator: e

Stockholders / Partners / LLC
Members:






y
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL DIVISION Im ﬁﬁ%l‘ ’“

COMMENTS OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS

APPLICANT'S NAME: TIFFANY S. JOHNSON

TYPE OF APPLICATION: Retail Beer off Premises, Small Farm Wine, Grocery Store Wine & Wine -
Sampling - Change of Manager from Matthew Sims

BUSINESS NAME: WAL-MART SUPERCENTER #4460

BUSINESS ADDRESS: 12001 Maumelle Blvd., North Little Rock, AR, 72113

DATE OF APPLICATION: 09/12/2018

NAME OF PUBLIC OFFICIAL.:

TITLE OF OFFICIAL.:

OFFICIAL MAILING ADDRESS:

PHONE : ' o

SIGNATURE OF CFFICIAL; S S ' DATE:

NAME OF AGENCY OR COURT:

Do you have any objections to the issuance of this permit? =

{YesorNo)

If yes, please explain ydur objecti'dns below: !

To ensure your comments are available at the time this application is considered by the Director, please complete and return
this form to ABC Administration, 1515 West 7th Street, Suite 503, Little Rock, AR 72201, within fifteen {15) days of receipt. In
compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, this Comment Form will become a matter of public record. Pursuant to ACA
3-2-103, a national fingerprint based background check will be, or has been, conducted. At ACICIs request, do not
run your own criminal history check through ACIC.

Printed On: 09/21/2018 *~  1° . . ... Revised 03/11/2016
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Change Of Manager / Additional Stockholder(s) / Partner(s) Application
Permit Holder: Matthew Sims

PamitNo  [Trade Name of Business andAddress - . v v e T Business Phone .Contact Phone
01456 WAL-MART SUPERCENTER #4450 501-851-6102

12001 Maumelie Blvd., North Little Rock, AR, 72113

DR Cuirant Address =
Home Address | 11109 Paul Els Drive #102
.| North Little Rock, AR, 72113
Mailing Address 508 SW 8th Street
i ..i Bentonville, AR, 727186-0500

Email Address:

N’Change Of Manager
[] Additional Stockholder(s)
[ Additional Partner(s)

| Pleage chieck applicable permits
Selec |
Retait Beer Off Premises $50.00
4 K SAMPLING - WINE $50.00
X Smail Farm Winery - Retail $50.00
Grocary Storg Wine $50.00
=00
Total Amount : ﬂdw -—

I do hereby acknowledge the receipt of Instructions for Change Of Manager/Additional Stockholder(s) / Partner(s)

and m:z«e a request for the above mentioned change(s). P ﬁ/
; % / Signature
rd

Date

D% V21 disgm
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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

NR

JOE A. SMITH PHONE (501) 975-8601
MAYOR FAX (501) 975-8633
mayor@nir.ar.gov
CITY HALL
P.0. BOX 5757
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72119-5757
website: www.nlr.ar.gov
MEMORANDUM
TO: Members of the North Little Rock City Council
FROM: Glinda Craigmyle \bre_/
DATE: October 2, 2018
SUBJECT: Alcoholic Beverages Permit Request

For your information, I have enclosed a copy of the Assignment and Comments of
Officials form from the State of Arkansas, Alcoholic Beverage Control Division.

The following applicant has applied for a new restaurant beer and wine permit:

Khader A. Qandah
Smokey Joe’s Restaurant
13503 Crystal Hill

North Little Rock, AR

Please note the 15 day comment period referred to in the final paragraph of the
Comment page.

Thank you.

Attachments M 5 S .
BY. ; 6 cr Cbti”j/?ué&-
_ .
¥ty

"An Equal Opportunity Employer”





LR L I T P I SO )

NEWASSG010L e
ASSIGNMENT DBIVIR-HiLuT3 I”[ Eﬁﬁ%ﬁlj m

Date Received: 09/14/2018 Date Assigned: 09/21/2018
Applicant: KHADER A, QANDAH D.O.B: 12/21/1956

Green Card Number (Permanent Resident Alien):
Home Address: 1803 Mapie Ridge, Benton, AR, 72019

Home Phone: Business Phone : 501-803-9445 Cell Phone: 501-590-9355

Trade Name: SMOKEY JOE'S RESTAURANT
Former Trade Name:

Business Address : 13503 Crystal Hill, North Little Rock County pylaski
Type Of Investigation: Restaurant Beer and Wine - NEW

Dancing, if requested:

Comments / Remarks : "Correction of Home Address"

Copies Of Assignmentand  Mayor Joe Smith & City Council
Comment Form Mailed to:
Michael Davis, Chief of Police
Doc Holladay, Sheriff

Larry Jegley, Prosecuting Attorney

Assigned to Investigator:

Stockholders / Partners { LLC AMENDMENT
Members:

Sharon A Qandah, 1803 Maple Ridge, Benton, AR, 72109
DOB: 6/19/1961






ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL DIVISION A

COMMENTS OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS

APPLICANT'S NAME: KHADER A, QANDAH

TYPE OF APPLICATION: Restaurant Beer and Wine - NEW

BUSINESS NAME: SMOKEY JOE'S RESTAURANT
BUSINESS ADDRESS: 13503 Crystal Hill, North Little Rock, AR, 72113
DATE OF APPLICATION: 09/14/2018

NAME OF PUBLIC OFFICIAL:

TITLE OF OFFICIAL:

OFFICIAL MAILING ADDRESS;

PHONE :

SIGNATURE OF OFFICIAL: DATE:

NAME OF AGENCY OR CQURT:

Do you have any objections to the issuance of this permit?

(YesorNoj

If yes, please explain your objections below:

To ensure your commenis are available at the time this application is considered by the Director, please complete and return
this form to ABC Administration, 1515 West 7th Street, Suite 503, Little Rock, AR 72201, within fifteen (15} days of receipt. In
compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, this Comment Form will become a matter of public record. Pursuant to ACA
3-2.103, a national fingerprint based background check will be, or has been, conducted. At ACICOs reyuest, do not

run your own criminal history check through ACIC.

Printed On:  09/21/2018 Revised 03/11/2016
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- STATE OF ARKANSAS
] \& ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL DIVISION
J e APPLICATION TO SELL RESTAURANT BEER
AND WINE (ON PREMISES ONLY)
e
New
Replacement
Permit No.

|, or we, do hereby make application to the State of Arkansas for a permit to sell beer and wine on the
premises of a restaurant and do hereby submit answers to the following questions under oath:

IF CORPORATION/LLC, GIVE NAME Tnwst Co Tacremg_7({-054295°C

name oF appLicant [ ha dee  (Qaa Aaly
' HOME ADDRESS [0 Mru;)lp Ridge Aeon 12019 Sa Ling

Street Address = city , - Zip County
— Rﬁ?fcwm,«k }'/P@
TRADE NAME OF BUSINESS g\ FORMER NAME
ADDRESS OF BUSINESS ;35013 Crustal #i([ Adedh L Hle Reclc 72103
‘ Street'Address () City Zip County Pu ( 6.5
Is proposed location inside or outside the city limits? s \ cL €

I8 your establishment primarily engaged in the business of serving food to the public prepared for consumption

on the premises’? Ve 3

Are you the owner of the proposed premises? _ A/ Do you have the premises leased? ' ff S

If s0, give name and address of owner !Qfogf,_‘ Pran P,'"f'(ré_g LLC /}\{! fesrs Tih
Pov.Box 3645 15 tle Aot fc de. 7220733549

Does anyone now hold a permit at this location? ___AJ O __If so, give hame, type and permit number(s) of

same

Do you or any other person interested in this permit hold any oth;g;";ypé- of alcoholic beverage permit? _ A/ O

if s0, give name, place and permit number(s) R,

v T t u__j: glig?-
MR AL

Will there be dancing on the premises? ALO " Dance Space ' X






aetie |

If applicant is a partnership, give name and address of all partners:

If applicant is a corporation/LLC give (A) hames and addresses of stockholders/shareholders and
amount of stock/shares held by each: ‘

l(hﬁAﬁf C\?Q‘/\lr\c:\r\ | 2o M/u‘()\t: \ 40,
.Q\"&Ci_fn A, (QO\!\CXLL\ [gﬁ% M/.Jﬁlg QI;CL:-‘;Q @f’fl F{‘\.n /4'_&9 7')_('3!Cl 51':)?

{B) Give names and addresses of President and Secretary:

NOTE: Schedule “A"is to be completed by each party to this application and is to be considered a part
of this application; any misstatements or concealment of fact
will be grounds for refusal of application or revocation of permit(s) if later
disclosed. '

Signed this __/ 3 day of q_ 291X .

, o L

" o

e
-

Signature of Applicaint or Managir\xgﬂger;t

Sworn and subscribed before me this \ ) day of SC?‘{@VV) ).74/ Loy
W

Notary Public

Mu‘"

My Commission Expires:

7’/|=5[ )

‘;t'{'_'"x, RACHEL TIDWELL :

L{wnm)§ MY COMMISSION # 12694404 ||

e £ EXPIRES: Jug 18, 2025
Jeiosd ounty

Abithd

Faulknor






DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND ENTERTAINMENT ACTIVITIES
*For all ON PREMISES permits - except private ¢ lubs* T e

NAME OF OUTLET Smé\(e\‘ &\be's &Qr ’%“’Q
crry Nor'\'\r\ L'\‘\?f‘\_o. Rack _ counry Plask

Under the Section 1.34 of the ABC Regulations, any permit issued by this agency is valid only for the
uses described in the original application, Any material change in the outlet's operations or
entertainment other than originally listed in this application, without prior approval of the Director,
shall be grounds for revocation of the permit or other administrative penalties,

i

Describe the types of business and entertainment activities (cafe / restaurant, pool hall, dancing, etc.) to
oceur on your permitted premises on the lines below. Use the back of this form if necessary,

If live entertainment is proposed, you must be specific as to the type and description of
entertainment, i.e., live bands, dancers, etc.

(Q-S‘\'Qu(ax\'\? &) "TJ\/# (]_Jlf/‘ A e {-Q







Mayor Joe A. Smith City Council Members

. . . Ward 1 Debi Ross 753-0733
ity Clerk Diane Whit

City Clerk Diane W bey Beth White 758-2738

City Attorney Amy Fields  w, 42  Linda Robinson 945-8820

Maurice Taylor 690-6444

Ward 3 Steve Baxter 804-0928

Ron Harris 758-2877

Ward 4 Murry Witcher 835-0009

Charlie Hight 944-0670

“We welcome you!”

The City Council meetings the 2nd and 4th Monday of each month at 6:00 p.m.

in the City Council Chambers in City Hall, 300 Main Street

(unless the meeting falls on a State Holiday then subject to change by City Council)
For more information call 501-975-8617 or visit our website at www.nlr.ar.gov

Municipal Institutions Constitute the Strength of Free Nations. By A. de Tocqueville
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City Council Agenda | 2
October 24, 2018 Council Meeting 6:00 p.m.

“The City of North Little Rock welcomes people of diverse cultures and beliefs. Any religious viewpoint
expressed during invocation, or at any other time during the meeting, reflects only the personal opinion of the
speaker. It is not intended to proselytize, advance, or disparage any religious belief.”

PREMEETING PRESENTATION

5:30 p.m. per Mayor Smith — Mr. Jerry Chism, Director of the Arkansas Department of
Aeronautics re: importance of Municipal Airports and their Economic Impact on our
cities and the State of Arkansas.

COMMUNICATIONS
1. Karen Scott, North Little Rock Finance Director re: Utilities Accounting Department
Financial Statements and Supplemental Information with Independent Auditor’s
Report, December 31, 2017 and 2016.

2. Rick Ashley, Owner — The Ashley Group letter to Mayor Joe A. Smith re:
Conditions at North Little Rock Airport.

3. Dennis Oakley, President — Bruce Oakley, Inc. letter to Mayor Joe A. Smith re:
Conditions at North Little Rock Airport.

4, Keith Richardson, Owner — Richardson Properties, LL.C letter to Mayor Smith re:
Conditions at North Little Rock Airport.

5. Steve Williams, Chairman and CEO Maverick Transportation, LLC letter to Mayor
Smith re: Conditions at North Little Rock Airport.

6. Glinda Craigmyle, Mayor’s Office memorandum re: Restaurant Mixed Drink — NEW
for Longhorn Steakhouse, 3911 McCain Boulevard, by Anthony L. Hubbard.

7. Glinda Craigmyle, Mayor’s Office memorandum re: Retail Beer off Premises, Small
Farm Wine, Grocery Store Wine & Wine — Sampling — Change of Manager from
Matthew Sims, for Wal-Mart Supercenter #4460, 12001 Maumelle Boulevard, by
Tiffany S. Johnson.
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8. Glinda Craigmyle, Mayor’s Office memorandum re: Restaurant Beer and Wine —
NEW for Smokey Joe’s Restaurant, 13503 Crystal Hill Road, by Khader A. Qandah.

PRESENTATIONS
Mayor Smith — presentation to Central Arkansas Water re: Imagine A Day Without

Water

Mayor Smith — presentation to North Little Rock Fire Department re: Firefighters 100®
Anniversary

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARING(S) 3 minutes
Please sign in with the City Clerk before the meeting convenes at 6:00 p.m.

CITIZENS PUBLIC COMMENT ON NUMBERED LEGISLATION 3 minutes
Please sign in with the City Clerk before the meeting convenes at 6:00 p.m.
INCLUDES ALL PUBLIC HEARINGS
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UNFINISHED BUSINESS
None,

CONSENT AGENDA
None filed.

NEW BUSINESS
RESOLUTIONS
R-18-198  Mayor Smith
Declaring certain city-owned items and other equipment as surplus; providing for

auction thereof

R-18-199 Mayor Smith
Amending the 2018 Budget for the City of North Little Rock to reauthorize and
include additional expenditures for specified departmental budgets

R-18-200 Mayor Smith
Authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the First Amendment to the
Energy Attributes Sale Agreement with L’oreal USA

R-18-201 Mayor Smith
Recognizing and congratulating the North Little Rock Fire Fighters Union Local
35 of the International Association of Fire Fighters (IAFF) on their 100" Year
Anniversary
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R-18-202 Mayor Smith
Certifying the amount of a Clean Up Lien to be filed with the Pulaski County Tax
Collector against certain real property located at 114 S. Redwood Street (amount:

$2,053.07)

Convene a public hearing

R-18-203 Mayor Smith
Certifying the amount of a Clean Up Lien to be filed with the Pulaski County Tax
Collector against certain real property located at 713 Vine Street (amount:

$5,739.72)

Convene a public hearing

R-18-204 Mayor Smith
Certifying the amount of a Clean Up Lien to be filed with the Pulaski County Tax
Collector against certain real property located at 6505 Medford Lane (amount:

$5,036.89)

Convene a public hearing

R-18-205 Mayor Smith
Certifying the amount of a Clean Up Lien to be filed with the Pulaski County Tax
Collector against certain real property located at 1823 Schaer Street (amount:
$7,038.62)

Convene a public hearing

R-18-206 Mayor Smith
Certifying the amount of a Clean Up Lien to be filed with the Pulaski County Tax
Collector against certain real property located at 126 Marvin Street (amount:

$5,718.06)
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Convene a public hearing

R-18-207 Mayor Smith
Approving and certifying amounts of liens to be filed with the Pulaski County
Tax Collector against certain real properties in the City of North Little Rock as a
result of Grass Cutting and Abatement of other nuisances

Convene a public hearing

ORDINANCES

0O-18-81 Mayor Smith
Amending the General Service Rules and Regulations for the North Little Rock
Electric Department

O-18-82  Mayor Smith
Amending the Power Cost Adjustment for Electric Rates for North Little Rock
Electric Department Customers

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

All persons wishing to speak must have completed a public comment card and return it
to the City Clerk before this meeting is convened, speakers have 3 minutes to address
their topic

Respectfully submitted,

Diane Whitbey, CAM

City Clerk and Treasurer

Words to Live by:
“Be like the leaf fallen from the tree...accept the place wherever the wind takes you.”
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-Swami Brahmananda — found on the internet

For more information, visit our website at www.nlr.ar.gov.
To view council legislation, exhibits, etc., go to the link above, then click on the
Government Tab, then select Council Agenda.







September 24, 2018

Six o’clock P.M.

North Little Rock City Hall Council Chambers
300 Main Street

North Little Rock, Arkansas

The regular meeting of the North Little Rock City Council scheduled for Monday, September 24,
2018, was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by the Honorable Mayor Joe A. Smith.

The roll having been called and the following Council Members answered to their names: DEBI
ROSS, BETH WHITE, LINDA ROBINSON, STEVE BAXTER, RON HARRIS, CHARLIE HIGHT
and MURRY WITCHER (7/0). Council Member MAURICE TAYLOR was not present during roll
call. Assistant City Clerk Katelyn Thomas, Deputy City Clerk Talor Shinn, and City Attorney Amy
Fields were also present.

The prayer and pledge of allegiance were led by Mayor Smith,

On the motion of Council Member Witcher and seconded by Council Member Ross and by consent of
all members present, the minutes from the North Little Rock City Council meeting held on Monday,
September 10, 2018, were approved, accepted and filed as prepared by the City Clerk (7/0).

Council Member Taylor entered the council chambers at 6:01 p.m.

On the motion of Council Member Ross and seconded by Council Member Baxter, and by consent of

all members present, communication #1 was read, accepted and filed (8/0).

1. Jason Carter Attorney at Law, memorandum re: Risk Management Committee Quarterly Report
(Q2, FY18).

Mr. Carter provided the City Council a summary of the Risk Management Committee Quarterly

Report for the second quarter. The City generated revenue in the amount of $26,468.00 through

Iinancial Transmission Rights (FGR) transactions. Mr. Carter advised the City Council that

recommendations for changes should be forthcoming from the Risk Management Committee to better

assist with fluctuations in the market.

On the motion of Council Member Ross and seconded by Council Member Baxter, and by consent of
all members present, communication #2 was not read, but was accepted and filed (8/0).
2. Joyce Brewer, North Little Rock Resident, email re: Recycling Price Rise.

On the motton of Council Member Witcher and seconded by Council Member Hight, and by consent
of all members present, communication #3 was read, accepted and filed (8/0).
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3. Mayor Smith, letter to City Council re: Approved Public Infrastructure Improvement Grant for First
Orion Corporate Headquarters Job Expansion, 600 Main Building and Future Argenta
Developments.

Mayor Smith commended Todd Larson, Economic Development Director, on his effort in aiding the

City with the grant. Mayor Smith stated the grant saved the City almost $900,000.00 to create a

corridor on 6™ Street. He explained the importance of investing in economic development and

economic development executives to gain knowledge.

Mayor Smith provided an update from Scott Springer, North Little Rock Electric Department,
regarding the weekend weather that caused power outages in Dixie, Indian Hills, and downtown
Argenta. The cause was due to various animals in circuits.

Mayor Smith distributed an article to Council Members concerning an opinion on what is killing
recycling.

Mayor Smith invited North Little Rock Fire Marshal John Pflasterer to come forward. Mr. Pflasterer
introduced Mr. Deronda Bryant before the City Council. Mr. Bryant pulled a gentleman from an
active burning structure to safety and tended to the victim while he instructed bystanders to call 911.
Mr. Pflasterer commended Mr. Bryant on his act of heroism and presented him with a proclamation.
Mayor Smith thanked Mr. Bryant for his bravery.

Mayor Smith announced citizen public comment on legislation. Ms. DeLyynn Hearn spoke regarding
R-18-186. The issue with recycling contamination is due to lack of education. Ms. Hearn felt
residents prefer a list of what can or cannot be recycled to reference. She said Waste Management was
not being effective and recommended penalties within the contract with Waste Management if they do
not follow through on the terms. She would approve of rewards if Waste Management reached beyond
their goals. Ms. Joyce Williams spoke regarding R-18-186. She is a resident of Ward 4 and advised
she had spoken to Council Member Hight the previous week concerning this item. She did not mind
paying to recycle, however she felt there was no benefit to recycling if Waste Management claims
residents are not following procedures and the items end up in the landfill. Ms. Williams had no issues
with designated areas in parking lots for recycling drop off if there was no fee being charged, but
acknowledged parking lots could get messy. Ms. Williams feels like residents are doing Waste
Management’s job and would like for the City to look into the cost benefit to recycling.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
None,

CONSENT AGENDA
None filed.
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NEW BUSINESS

R-18-184 (RESOLUTION NO. 9519 —~ MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN CITY-OWNED ITEMS AND OTHER EQUIPMENT AS
SURPLUS; PROVIDING FOR AUCTION THEREQF: AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read.
On the motion of Council Member Witcher and seconded by Council Member Ross, and by consent of
all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0).

R-18-185 (RESOLUTION NO. 9520 — MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A FEMA GRANT FOR $180,773.00 UNDER THE FY 2017
ASSISTANCE TO FIREFIGHTERS GRANT PROGRAM TO FUND AND PURCHASE
PHYSICALS AND CANCER SCREENINGS FOR FIREFIGHTERS, AUTOMATED EXTERNAL
DEFIBRILLATORS, CARDIAC MONITORS, AND RESPIRATOR FIT TESTING EQUIPMENT:
APPROPRIATING THE CITY’S LOCAIL SHARE FROM ACT 833 FUNDS: AND FOR OTHER
PURPOSES, was read. On the motion of Council Member Witcher and seconded by Council Member
Robinson, and by consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0).

R-18-186 (RESOLUTION NO. 9521 — MAYOR SMITH)
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PROPOSAL OF WASTE MANAGEMENT OF ARKANSAS,
INC. TO RENEW CONTRACT FOR RESIDENTIAL RECYCLING CURBSIDE PICK-UP

SERVICES; AUTHORLAING - THE-MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO ENTER-INTOAN

-
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CURBSIDE PICI-UR SERVICES: AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. Mayor Smith stated
he has been negotiating the city’s contract for recycling and referenced previous statements and
concerns made during public comments. Mayor Smith focused on the numbers and concluded that
Waste Management recycles a large volume for the City. Thirty-one percent (3 1%} is being sent to the
landfill due to contamination by residents, however sixty-seven percent (67%) is being recycled. If the
contract is not renewed, it would take 200 full and compressed City garbage trucks (22,000 1bs --
which is equivalent to a month and a half worth of garbage), to deliver waste to the city’s landfill.
Other options were explored, however they were not feasible or affordable. Mayor Smith said the City
would work on lowering the contamination rate. Council Member Ross had an issue voting on a
contract that the City has not seen yet. She proposed an amendment that would require the contract
before a final vote. Council Member Ross highlighted portions of the 2014 contact that Waste
Management hasn’t followed through on. She wants to make sure the future contract has the same
items. Waste management has failed to tag bins as stated in the 2014 contract along with numerous
other items. Mayor Smith said one of the big changes in the new contract will be tagging bins. Waste
Management will help the City with the problematic areas. There are three (3) neighborhoods that are
not in compliance that will be focused on. Mayor Smith said efforts to educate the public is to ensure
future recycling costs stay the same or possibly become lower. Council Member Ross said the input
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she has received from residents is split in half. Some residents want to keep recycling, others wants to
do away with it. Council Member Ross then proposed an amendment that would ensure the contract
come before City Council. Council Member Robinson asked if glass would cost additional money for
the landfill since it would no longer be recyclable under the new contract. Mayor Smith said yes and
that the City pays by the pound for dumping fees. On the motion of Council Member Ross and
seconded by Council Member Witcher, and by consent of all members present, the resolution was
amended as follows:: substitute copy provided this date (8/0). On the motion of Council Member
Witcher and seconded by Council Member Hight, and the following members having voted no:
Council Members Ross, White, Taylor and Robinson; and the following members having voted yes:
Council Members Baxter, Harris, Hight, and Witcher; and the Mayor having voted yes, the resolution
was adopted as amended (5/4).

R-18-187 (RESOLUTION NO. 9522 — MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES AND OTHER STRUCTURES
LOCATED AT 4604 ATKINS STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
TO CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID STRUCTURES:
PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE:
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council Member Ross
and seconded by Council Member Robinson. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing. There being
no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous motion, and by
consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0). (owner: Entropy Inc.
c/o Imran Bohra)

R-18-188 (RESOLUTION NQO. 9523 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES AND OTHER STRUCTURES
LOCATED AT 4904 HAYWOQOD STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK,
ARKANSAS TO CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID
STRUCTURES; PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID
NUISANCE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council
Member Baxter and seconded by Council Member Taylor. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing.
There being no one present wishing to be heard, the public heating was adjourned. On the previous
motion, and by consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0). (owner:
Daverho 3, LLC)

R-18-18% (RESOLUTION NO. 9524 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES AND OTHER STRUCTURES
LOCATED AT 3324 BURKS AVENUE IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK., ARKANSAS
TO CONSTITIUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID STRUCTURES:
PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE:
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council Member Taylor
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and seconded by Council Member Robinson. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing. Mr.
Mohammad Buttes stated he was confused by the condemnation process. He does not own the
property, but he manages it for his daughter who lives in Washington State. e has Power of Attorney
to manage the business affairs. Mr. Buttes was given a citation for the property by the City and went
to court. The Judge gave him three (3) months to clean up the property. Mayor Smith summarized the
condemnation process for Mr. Buttes and advised him to meet with the City Attorney or Code
Enforcement director the following day. City Attorney Fields stated she has been in contact with Mr.
Buttes regarding the procedures of obtaining a rehab agreement for the property. There being no one
else wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous motion, and by consent of
all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0). (owner: Saima Butte)

R-18-190 (RESOLUTION NO. 9525 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES AND OTHER STRUCTURES
LOCATED AT 1901 EAST WASHINGTON AVENUE IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK,
ARKANSAS TO CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID
STRUCTURES; PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID
NUISANCE: AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council
Member Ross and seconded by Council Member Robinson. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing,
There being no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous
motion, and by consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0). (owner:
Jim Jefferson/Hester Young)

R-18-191 (RESOLUTION NQ. 9526 — MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES AND OTHER STRUCTURES
LOCATED AT 400 EAST 215T STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
TO CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID STRUCTURES:
PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE:
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council Member
Robinson and seconded by Council Member Taylor. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing. There
being no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous motion,
and by consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0). (owner: Tracy
Lee Ingle)

R-18-192 (RESOLUTION NO. 9527 - MAYOR SMITL)

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE AMOUNT OF A CLEAN UP LIEN TO BE FILED WITH
THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 1404 WEST SHORT 17™ STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK,.
ARKANSAS; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council
Member Witcher and seconded by Council Member Taylor. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing.
There being no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous
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motion, and by consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0).
(amount: $6,151.32)

R-18-193 (RESOLUTION NO. 9528 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE AMOUNT OF A CLEAN UP LIEN TO BE FILED WITH
THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAI PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 921 ROSECLAIR DRIVE IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council Member
Robinson and seconded by Council Member Taylor. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing. There
being no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous motion,
and by consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0) (amount:
$57,167.96)

R-18-194 (RESOLUTION NO. 9529 — MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE AMOUNT OF A CLEAN UP LIEN TO BE FILED WITH
THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 3805 FREEMAN CIRCLE IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK,
ARKANSAS; AND FOR OTIER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council
Member Witcher and seconded by Council Member Hight. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing.
There being no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous
motion, and by consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0).
(amount: $3,787.32)

R-18-195 (RESOLUTION NO. 9530 — MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE AMOUNT OF A CLEAN UP LIEN TO BE FILED WITH
THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 1106 EAST 2P STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council Member
Robinson and seconded by Council Member Taylor. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing. There
being no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous motion,
and by consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0). (amount:
$7,146.31)

R-18-196 (RESOLUTION NO, 9531 — MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE AMOUNT OF A CLEAN UP LIEN TO BE FILED WITH
THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 2105 WHYTE DRIVE IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK. ARKANSAS;
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council Member
Robinson and seconded by Council Member Taylor, Mayor Smith convened a public hearing. There
being no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous motion,
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and by consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0). (amount:
$7,658.54)

R-18-197 (RESOLUTION NO. 9532 — MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND CERTIFYING AMOUNTS OF LIENS TO BE FILED WITH
THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES IN THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS AS A RESULT OF GRASS CUTTING
EXPENSES AND ABATEMENT OF OTHER NUISANCES: AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was
read. A motion to adopt was made by Council Member Ross and seconded by Council Member
Taylor. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing. There being no one present wishing to be heard, the
public hearing was adjourned. On the previous motion, and by consent of all members present, the
resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0)

0-18-75 (ORDINANCE NO. 9043 - MAYOR SMITH)

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING A TAX ON ALL REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY WITHIN
THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK FOR THE POLICE PENSION AND RELIEF FUND, THE
FIRE PENSION AND RELIEF FUND, THE MUNICIPAL LIBRARY FUND, AND THE NORTH
LITTLE ROCK GENERAL FUND:; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY: AND FOR OTHER
PURPOSES, was read. On the motion of Council Member Hight and seconded by Council Member
Witcher, and by consent of all members present, the readings were suspended (8/0). A motion to adopt
was made by Council Member Witcher and seconded by Council Member Taylor. Mayor advised this
legislation is adopted annually to authorize the collection of the taxes. On the previous motion, and the
roll having been called, and by consent of all members present, the ordinance was unanimously
adopted (8/0). Emergency clause unanimously adopted (8/0).

0-18-76 (ORDINANCE NO, 9044 — MAYOR SMITH)

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2018 QUOTA ORDINANCE (ORDINANCE NO, 8980} FOR
THE NORTH LITTLE ROCK DISTRICT COURT (FIRST DIVISION), ELECTRIC, AND LEGAL
DEPARTMENTS; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY: AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read.
On the motion of Council Member Ross and seconded by Council Member Taylor, and by consent of
all members present, the readings were suspended (8/0). On the motion of Courncil Member Taylor
and seconded by Council Member Ross, and the roll having been called, and by consent of all
members present, the ordinance was unanimously adopted (8/0). Emergency clause unanimously
adopted (8/0).

0-18-77 (ORDINANCE NO. 9045 -~ MAYOR SMITH)

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A WAIVER OF SECTIONS 12.15 AND 15.14 OF THE ZONING
ORDINANCE TO ALLOW THE DEVELOPMENT OF A TRANSITORY DISTRIBUTION
FACILITY ON CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1920 NORTH LOCUST STREET IN
THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS: DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND
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FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. On the motion of Council Membet Ross and seconded by
Council Member Robinson, and by consent of all members present, the readings were suspended (8/0).
Council Member White said she understood that if the building became a permanent structure, the
location the requirements in the Ordinance would not apply to it. Mr. Shawn Spencer, Planning
Department Director confirmed the statement. Mayor Smith said this is a great opportunity to work
with Amazon and show that North Little Rock is corporate friendly. Council Member Ross said the
ordinance would waive certain requirements on a temporary basis. On the motion of Council Member
Witcher and seconded by Council Member Ross, and the roll having been called, and by consent of all
members present, the ordinance was unanimously adopted (8/0)). Emergency clause unanimously
adopted (8/0). (applicant: Thomas R. Pownall)

0-18-78 (ORDINANCE NO. 9046 — MAYOR SMITH)

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 14.26.C OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE
(ORDINANCE NO. 7697), TO EXTEND THE TIME FOR OWNERS TO REPLACE OFF-PREMISE
SIGNS; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY:; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. On the
motion of Council Member Ross and seconded by Council Member White, and by consent of all
members present, the readings were suspended (8/0). City Attorney Fields said the legislation came to
existence due to a billboard owner who approached Planning Director Spencer and requested a
meeting. Current legislation allows thirty (3 0) days for a billboard owner to remove their billboard and
replace it at a different location. The permit (fee) the billboard owner is granted is deposited. An
unidentified representative for billboard owners expressed concern due to the Jack of location approval
by the city and advised they are having difficulty securing a new site within the thirty (30} day time
limit. Council Member Ross asked Ms. Fields how the nine (9) month time period was determined.
Ms. Fields explained that she proposed three (3) months duration and the billboard owners requested
twelve (12) months. They met in the middle and agreed upon nine (9) months. On the motion of
Council Member Robinson and seconded by Council Member Baxter, and the roll having been called,
and by consent of all members present, the ordinance was unanimously adopted (8/0). Emergency
clause unanimously adopted (8/0).

0-18-79 (ORDINANCE NO. 9047 — COUNCIL MEMBER TAYLOR) .

AN ORDINANCE RECLASSIFYING CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED AT 124 EUREKA
GARDENS ROAD IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS. FROM R-1 ZONING
CLASSIFICATION TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) ZONING CLASSIFICATION
BY AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 7697; ADOPTING AN AMENDED LAND USE PLAN FOR
THE SUBJECT PROPERTY; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY: AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES,
was read. On the motion of Council Member Taylor and seconded by Council Member Robinson, and
by consent of all members present, the readings were suspended (8/0). Council Member Taylor said a
grocery store is located on the property in the middle of a residential area, There are new owners.
Council Member Taylor said the Planning Department suggested updating the property’s current
zoning, On the motion of Council Member Taylor and seconded by Council Member Robinson, and

North Little Rock City Council Meeting 9/24/2018
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the roll having been called, and by consent of all members present, the ordinance was unanimously
adopted (8/0). Emergency clause unanimously adopted (8/0). (applicant: Young Chun)

0-18-80 (ORDINANCE NO. 9048 —~ COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON)

AN ORDINANCE VACATING AND ABANDONING AN UNUSED PORTION OF A RIGHT OF
WAY LOCATED ALONG THE RIVER ROAD TRAIL, IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK;
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. On the motion of
Council Member Taylor and seconded by Council Member Robinson, and by consent of all members
present, the readings were suspended (8/0). On the motion of Council Member Taylor and seconded
by Council Member Robinson, and the roll having been called, and by consent of all members present,
the ordinance was unanimously adopted (8/0). Emergency clause unanimously adopted (8/0).
(applicant: Jim Jackson)

PUBLIC COMMENT

Ms. Deanna Robinson recently moved back to North Little Rock. She would like to see the Railroad
Depot Building repurposed. She also proposed the neighborhood (residents) get involved. Mr. Bobby
Taylor continues to have issues with his neighbor. M. Taylor went back to Court and stated that the
Judge told Mr. Taylor’s neighbor to get his grass taken care of. Mr. Taylor expressed his frustration
over the situation. Mayor Smith read the locations for upcoming National Night Out Events scheduled
for Tuesday, October 2, 2018 and corresponding times. He also advised Council Member Baxter will
be promoted to Chief Master Sargent next Wednesday. Mayor Smith advised the scheduled November
121 Council meeting falls on Veterans’ Day which is a holiday and offices will be closed. By voice
vote, and all members present having voted in the affirmative, the City Council Meeting scheduled for
Monday, November 12, 2018, was rescheduled to Tuesday, November 13, 2018 (8/0).

There being no further business to come before the Council, and on the motion of Council Member
Ross and seconded by Council Member Witcher, and by consent of all members present, the meeting
was adjourned at 7:02 p.m. (8/0), until the next regularly scheduled meeting to be held on Monday,
October 8, 2018, at six o’clock p.m. in the City Council Chambers in City Hall, located at 300 Main
Street, North Little Rock, Arkansas.

APPROVED:

MAYOR JOE A, SMITH

ATTEST:

DIANE WHITBEY, CITY CLERK

North Little Rock City Council Meeting 9/24/2018
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0-18-& |
ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GENERAL SERVICE RULES
& REGULATIONS FOR THE NORTH LITTLE ROCK
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY;
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the General Service Rules & Regulations (“Rules and Regulations”™)
for electric service provided by the North Little Rock Electric Department (the
“NLRED”) to its customers were adopted on July 24, 2017 with the adoption of
Ordinance No. 8927; and

WHEREAS, in order to clarify, improve, and simplify the rules, certain
amendments need to be made to the Rules and Regulations and;

WHEREAS, NLRED staff have advised that specific updates need to be made to
certain sections of the Rules and Regulations and;

WHEREAS, City Council has found that it is in the best interest of the City and
its residents that these sections be amended.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Section LA governing establishing service for residential
customers is hereby amended to read as follows:

A. Residential Customers.
Residential accounts may only be established in the name(s) of a property owner
or lessee. The following are required to establish residential accounts.

rnment issued photo ID and-Seeial-Security
Rpres: ate Priver License-orID-—Socia

v R = v =50

Seeurity Number. (Examples: State Driver’s License or ID, Military ID,
or Passport).
2. 3- Residential Deposits.

a. The amount of the deposit will be based on credit risk to
NLRED. The deposit decision reflects the credit risk associated with the
credit report of the individual(s) applying for service. These deposit
decisions are based upon the credit score from a national credit repository.
A credit check fee will be applied for each applicant upon processing. In
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order to process the credit check, the applicant must provide a Social
Security Number (“SSN™). Service will not be denied for failing to provide
a SSN: however, applicants who do not provide a SSN will be charged a
minimum deposit of $300.
i. Residential applicants who pose minimal credit risk will
be charged a minimum of $100.
ii. Residential applicants who pose moderate risk will be
charged a minimum deposit of $200.
iii. Residential applicants who pose substantial credit risk
or no credit history will be charged a minimum deposit of
$300.
b. NLRED may impose or increase the amount of deposit for fraud,
tampering, bankruptcy, previous unpaid balance, non-pay
disconnection or other events related to the creditworthiness of the
customer in $100 increments; provided that the deposit will not
exceed two and one half times the expected highest monthly bill.
c. The deposit is due upon with service application request but is
payable in two equal installments — one payment upon application
and one payment no later than fourteen (14) days of service.
d. No additional arrangements can be made on deposits. Failure to
pay deposit will result in disconnect of service.
e. NLRED will periodically review the sufficiency of all customer
deposits to determine if the amount of the deposit, surety bond or
letter of credit on file is adequate when compared to the usage
history of the customer.
f. Customer deposits with actual accrued interest are only refunded
when the account is closed and no further financial obligation is
owed to NLRED.
3. 4 Fraud - Any person who provides fraudulent information in
connection with an application for service shall be denied service until that
person provides a valid social -security number and documents that
positively identify the applicant. Further, any person who provides
fraudulent information in connection with an application for service shall
be deemed a high credit risk. Submission of a false name, a false
government D, a social security mumber that is returned as deceased, non-
issued, or belonging to a person other than the applicant, shall be presumed
to be fraudulent.

SECTION 2: That the definition of “residential customer” in Appendix

A: Glossary is hereby amended to read as follows:

Appendix A: Glossary.

» C
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Residential Customer means a person who receives electric service from
NLRED at a permanent dwelling, or an authorized accessory building to
a permanent dwelling, for one or more persons to live as a single, nonprofit
housekeeping unit, and such incidental purposes as may be lawfully
conducted.

SECTION 3: That the copies of the NLRED Rules and Regulations on file in the
office of the City Clerk, and on the NLRED website at www.nlrelectric.com shall be
updated to reflect the amendments set forth in this ordinance.

SECTION 4: That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are
hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict.

SECTION 5: That the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be
severable, and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 6: That it is hereby determined and found that is a need to update,
clarify, and simplify the general rules and regulations for electric service in the City, and
that the City and the residents thereof can best be served by the adoption of this
Ordinance; THEREFORE, an emergency is hereby declared to exist, and this Ordinance
being necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety,
shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
\)CE(/Q . é) ;;)LE”%—/
Mayor Joe A. Smith \,QU Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

—>  —

ields, City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/cf

FILED //4S __ AM. __PM
By

: )
DATE 2 O,,é-"’//f?

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Little Rock, Arkans
Page 3 of 3
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE POWER COST
ADJUSTMENT FOR ELECTRIC RATES FOR NORTH LITTLE
ROCK ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT CUSTOMERS; DECLARING
AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas (“City”) is a municipal
corporation authorized by state law, including A.C.A. § 14-54-701(a), to provide
electric light and power to consumers for just compensation as determined by the City
Council, such determination being exempt from regulation by the Arkansas Public
Service Commission by state law, including A.C.A. § 14-200-212 and the rule in
Kitchens v. Paragould, and the City having so operated for over one hundred ten (110)
years; and

WHEREAS, on or about May 14, 2018, the City Council adopted Ordinance No.
9000 establishing the rates and current rate structure of the North Little Rock Electric
Department (“NLRED”); and

WHEREAS, the new rate structures replaced the two-component Energy Cost
Recovery (ECR/ECR-A) variable rider with a single component Power Cost Adjustment
(“PCA”) rider that was easier to calculate and had less variability; and

WHEREAS, NLRED staff believes that the PCA would be further improved by:
smoothing power costs over twelve months, rather than six months
providing for a three-month lag for cost calculation, rather than two-month
better defining distributed generation costs
clarifying the authority of the Risk Management Committee regarding significant
power expenses that were unplanned and not included in factor B; and

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds and determines that the PCA rate
schedule set forth on the attachment made hereto and incorporated herein is just and
reasonable and should by applied accordingly.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the Power Cost Adjustment Rider to North Little Rock
Ordinance No. 9000 is hereby amended as shown on Exhibit A that is attached hereto

and incorporated herein. .
A
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SECTION 2: The NLRED General Manager will implement the changes
described in this ordinance as soon as possible. Any delay in implementation of more
than twenty (20) days will be reported to City Council.

SECTION 3: That the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held to be invalid,
such invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 4: It is hereby found and determined that amending the Power Cost
Adjustment Rider will result in less volatile bills and easier administration of electric
and, as such, is immediately necessary in order to insure the proper and orderly growth
of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, and being necessary for the immediate
preservation of the public health, safety and welfare, THEREFORE, an emergency is
hereby declared to exist and this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and
after its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

Mayor Joe A. Smith %HT: Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
I

Amy Beckman/Fitlds, City Attorney

3
PREPARED BY C. JASON E?ARTER, ATTORNEY AT LAW
REVIEWED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY

man /S MJ@ M.
» W
o‘:nm%&ﬁ
NNy T 2

,:-Jy
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RATE EFFECTTVE FOR BILLS RENDERED
ON AND AFTER (October 1, 2018)

A

NORTH LITTLE ROCK ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
ELECTRIC SERVICE SCHEDULE

POWER COST ADJUSTMENT RIDER (PCA)

POWER COST ADJUSTMENT RIDER (PCA)

The PCA will be calculated using the most recent six twelve month’s actual power cost and applied to each
customer’s following monthly billed energy (kWh) er on a twe three-month lag from when the cost occurred
to when billed.

The PCA Adjustment shall be calculated according to the following formula:
PCA = (P+A)/S-B

P = City-owned generation costs + Wholesale power supplier costs + Plum Point costs + MISO costs +
Distributed Generation costs + Power bill validation costs.

City-owned generation costs = hydro eperation-&-maintenanee costs + other assets costs.
Wholesale power supplier costs = contracted powet supply costs,
Plum Point costs = energy costs (net of applicable MISO credits} + capacity costs.

MISO costs = capacity costs + settlement statement costs 1 transmission costs.

Distributed Generation costs = amount paid or credited to owners of generation
interconnected with the NLRE Distribution System

Power bill validation costs = Contracted monitoring, contract compliance, consulting and analysis.

ommittee-will-determine-whether-thateo hould-be-recovered-overalongerperiod-of-time: *The Risk

Management Committee may recover any significant unplanned power expense over a period of time that

shall not exceed two vears,

A = Accumulated positive or negative balance of recovered cost of power resulting from the application
of the PCA factor to customer bills.

I T . n

§ = Number of kilowatt-hours sold during the same time period as factor “P”.

B = $0.05276. This amount reflects the average cost of power per kilowatt-hour sold and recovered
through base retail rates.

A report will be filed immediately thereafter with the City Cle_rk,identifyjug the amount of the PCA and any other
relevant information.

Schedule PCA
Page | of 1







OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

NR

NORTH LITTLE ROCK

JOE A. SMITH \ Q. / PHONE (501) 975-8601
MAYOR ‘ ‘ FAX (501) 975-8633

mayor@nlr.ar.gov

CITY HALL
P.O. BOX 5757
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72119-5757
website: www.nlr.ar.gov

October 2, 2018

Honorable Members of the North Little Rock City Council
City Hall

300 Main Street

North Little Rock, AR 72114

Dear Council Members:

Please join me for a presentation by Jerry Chism, Director of the Arkansas Department
of Aeronautics, on October 8, 2018 at 5:30 PM in the City Council chambers. It is an
honor to have Mr. Chism come and speak to us about the importance of municipal
airports and their economic impact on cities and the State of Arkansas as a whole. |
strongly urge you all to attend. Please let me know if you have any questions.

B%est regards,

'//1[; /] i(\) ‘
VP2 N gmt
{)oe A. Smith
Mayor

JAS:jf

"An Equal Opportunity Employer”
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN CITY-OWNED ITEMS
AND OTHER EQUIPMENT AS SURPLUS; PROVIDING FOR
AUCTION THEREOF; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, from time to time, the City of North Little Rock (“the City”) has
been given or purchased certain items and pieces of equipment and disposes of the same
through internet auction pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-5 8-306(c)(1)(A); and

WHEREAS, the City has now accumulated a surplus of certain items and pieces
of equipment that are no longer needed by the City, and there is a need to dispose of these
items through an auction (see Exhibit “A” attached hereto); and

WHEREAS, GovDeals provides a unique, state-of-the art, online auction service
which allows cities to conduct online transactions for the sale of surplus, abandoned and
confiscated equipment and property utilizing the global reach of the internet; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City and its residents that the subject
surplus city-owned items and equipment which have been accumulated be disposed of
through the GovDeals online auction website.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the items listed on Exhibit “A” attached hereto, and
incorporated herein by reference, are hereby declared to be surplus equipment, and the
Director of Commerce is directed to sell the items at an auction through GovDeals, an
online auction website utilized by municipalities nationwide for the sale of surplus
equipment.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

Mayor Joe A. Smith b@ Af—  Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
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APPROVED AS TO FORM.:

=

Amy Beckman Bields, Cit)} Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FILED H 05 AM. P.M.
By ﬂ : C\J.»QA5
pate_ |0 -2-19

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY AASser “

#)
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ITEMS FOR AUCTION

EXHIBIT “A”

IT Department (Time Clocks)

S - Equipment Name L Model - | = Serial# | City#
Genus 1 Mark fl, time clock with card reader G’i Mark II 202150003

Genus 1 Mark |l, time clock with no reader G1 Mark |l C202150004 62218
Genus 1 Mark 11, time clock with card reader G1 Mark H C281150001 62221
Genus G1 M il time clock with finger reader G1 Mark |l C230150014

Genus G1 M Il time clock with finger reader G1 Mark |l C356150001 62224
Genus G1 M ll,time clock with finger reader G1 Mark H C356150002 62238
Genus G1 M ll,time clock with finger reader G1 Mark Il C356150003 62227
Genus G1 M 1l time clock with finger reader G1 Mark Il C356150004 62237
Genus G1 M [l ,time clock with finger reader G1 Mark Il C356150005 62235
Genus G1 M li,time clock with finger reader G1 Mark Il C356150006 62236
Genus G1 M IlLtime clock with finger reader G1 Mark Il C356150007

Genus G2 M Il Delux,with finger reader G2 Mark H DLX C023140023

Genus G2 M Hi Delux,with finger reader G2 Mark [I DLX C023140018

Genus G2 M Il Delux,with finger reader G2 Mark Il DLX C023140002

Genus G2 M Il Delux,with finger reader G2 Mark Il DLX C023140019

Schlage HP 2000 time clock - hand reader HP 2000 1453484

Schiage HP 2000 time clock - hand reader HP 2000 1452169

Schlage HP 2000 time clock - hand reader HP 2000 1451036

Schlage HP 2000 time clock - hand reader HP 2000 1452168

Schlage HP 2000 time clock - hand reader HP 2000 1470149

Schiage HP 1000 time clock - hand reader HP 1000 1441645

Schiage HP 1000 time clock - hand reader HF 1000 1408044

Schlage HP 1000 time clock - hand reader HP 1000 1408047

Schlage HP 1000 time clock - hand reader HP 1000 1408046

Schlage HP 1000 time clock - hand reader HP 1000 1408045

Lathem — card reader PC600 SPG10040P

Parks Department

e dtem it CVIN# 1 ... Condtion =
2006 anger Crossroads RV 4VUT0302768007537 Good

Page 1 of 6






Police Department (Hard Drwes Removed)

‘Quantity tem Model# o = Condition . =
4 Server HP DLSSOG4 Worked at the time taken out of Ser\nce
5 Server HP DI380 G5 Worked at the time taken out of Service
1 Tape Library HP MSL2024 Worked at the time taken out of Service
1 KVM Switch KV61085A Worked at the time taken out of Service
3 Network Switch HP 2824 Worked at the time taken out of Service
1 Server HP Storage Works A.04 | Worked at the time taken out of Service
1 Network Switch HP E8206 Worked at the time taken out of Service
1 Network Router Cisco 2600 Worked at the time taken out of Service
2 Network Switch HP 4104qg| Worked at the time taken out of Service

IT Department (Hard Drlves Removed)

~Worked When taken.
L L . outof Service .
Computer | MXL83102G5 HP de5800 51890 Yes
Computer | MXL83102FY HP dc5800 51886 Yes
Computer | MXL83102CZ | HP de5800 51884 Yes
Computer | 3CRO380JBH HP p6000 NONE Yes
Computer | MXL.11608X(Q | HP PRO 3130 NONE Yes
Computer | MXL8150ZSP | HP dc7800 51866 Yes
Computer | MXL0231MSQ | HP 8100 Elite 51978 Yes
Computer | MXL04215V] HP 6000 Pro SFF 62005 Yes
Computer | MXL04215VE | HP 6000 Pro STFF 62002 Yes
Computer | MXL04215VH | HP 6000 Pro SFF 62004 Yes
Computer | MXLO0402WM | HP 8000 Elite SFF 55403 Yes
Computer | MXL2051PZP HP 8200 Elite SFF 620064 Yes
Computer | 2UAT116150Q0 HP 8200 Elite SFF NONE Yes
Computer | MXLI1021DQZ | HP 8000 Elite SFF NONE Yes
Computer | MXL0040DXC | HP dx7500 SFF NONE Yes
Computer | MXL3422GV5 | HP EliteDesk 800 G1 NONE Yes
Computer | MXL34129WC | HP EliteDesk 800 G1 NONE Yes
Computer | 2UA2040MJF HP HP2210 NONE Yes
Computer | 2UA2040MJG | HP HP2210 NONE Yes
Computer | MXL9341GDH | HP dc7900 NONE Yes
Computer | MXL9341GDL | HP dc7900 NONE Yes
Computer | MXL8I150ZSN | HP dc7900 NONE Yes
Computer | 2UA8460MZZ | HP dc7800 NONE Yes
Computer | 2UAB460MZW | HP dc7800 NONE Yes
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IT Department

| Hard Drive
L SR i e e e .| Removed -
Firewall CO17C5BA73B0 | SonicWALL TZ100 Yes N/A
Firewall 0017C5BA9F80 SonicWALL TZ100 62251 Yes N/A
Switch SG944NV064 HP ProCurve 2524 Yes N/A
Switch SG24561736 HP ProCurve 2524 Yes N/A
Storage Works -8
Switch USB315T339 HP SAN Switch Yes N/A
Switch SG30961721 HP ProCurve 4108L Yes N/A
Switch CN36BX443N HP V1910-24G-POE Yes N/A
Switch CN31BX40YK HP V1910-24G-POE Yes N/A
Switch CN31BX40MN HP V1910-24G-POE Yes N/A
Switch CN36BX41TH HpP V1910-24G-POE Yes N/A
Computer 2UA3420SS8 HP 8300 SFF 57776 Yes Yes
Computer MXL3210CBJ HP 8300 SFF Yes Yes
Other USE2193LFT HP DI.180 G6 Yes Yes
Other USEI15N35K HP DI1.385 G7 62160 Yes Yes
. Storageworks
Tape Library HP MS%Z o4 62228 | Yes N/A
DVR 4M§g%?l; sy EverFocus Paragon 264X4 62149 Yes Yes
City Property
TQuantly [ e Coniiaie
1 Covered Boat Dock near Rowmg Club No ionger used
Fire Department
‘Quantity | s ltem e . Condition e
2 Buliard T-3 Max Cameras W|th One Desk They ali power up when the battenes are
Charge and 3 Batteries charged when taken out of service.
MSA Evolution 5000 Cameras with 7 truck .
They all power up when the batteries are
8 mounted char19ers, 4 d_esk chargers, & csnarggd whenptaken out of service.
2 batteries
City Attorney
Quanmy phmimiidle “tem Coia el Saral#E el o Conditien = T ]
Co star CS520I 3 paper tra 8- :
1 Bla‘;‘l’( Mihite only- Faxpalf p Prin¥er 0X00924 | Worked when taken out of service
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Police Department (Some Hard Drlves Removed)

Quantity | = tem - Model# P - Condition .
2 HP ProBook Laptop 4510s Work when taken out of serwce
1 HP Compaq Laptop 6830s Work when taken out of service
1 HP ProBook Laptop 47208 Work when taken out of service
2 Gateway Desktop E6100 Work when taken out of service
1 HP Compag 6305 SFF Work when taken out of service
1 Firebox 700 F2064N Work when taken out of service
8 HP Compagqg 8000 Elite Ultra Slim |- Work when taken out of service
2 HP Compaq DC 7800 SFF Work when taken out of service
2 HP Compag Pro 6305 SFF Work when taken out of service
1 Desktop Serial #: XB133192KS0 | Work when taken out of service

Traffic Department

Quantity |

ltem

Roland VersaCamm SPSOO Large Format

Printer. Printer uses ECO0Sol Max ink
cartridges ~ they are available from Roland
and other Manufacturers. Four ink cartridges
will come with the printer. (one blue, one
magenta, one black and a cleaning cartridge).

Printer is in fair condition, it is 15 years
old. Currently, there are two ink lines
that are clogged (magenta & yeliow).
Blue and black still work. The printer will
print now and everything eise is working.
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE 2018 BUDGET FOR THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK TO REAUTHORIZE AND
INCLUDE ADDITIONAL EXPENDITURES FOR SPECIFIED
DEPARTMENTAL BUDGETS; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the North Little Rock City Council adopted Resolution No. 9380 on
February 29, 2018 to reauthorize and include additional expenditures for certain City
Departments for open purchase orders and unexpended budget of several departments of
the City of North Little Rock (the “City”) because the North Little Rock City Council had
found and determined that it was necessary and desirable to amend the 2018 Budget
(pursuant to Resolution No. 9331 adopted December 11, 2017) to reauthorize and include
these additional expenditures for certain City Departments.

WHEREAS, there were two items that were omitted from the reauthorization and
the North Little Rock City Council has found and determined that it is necessary and
desirable to amend the 2018 Budget (pursuant to Resolution No. 9331 adopted December
11, 2017) to reauthorize and include these additional budget amounts for certain City
Departments.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the 2018 Budget for the City of North Little Rock should be,
and is hereby, amended to reauthorize and include additional expenditures for certain City
Departments as follows:

Street Fund — Pike Avenue Pedestrian Improvements - $28,000
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund — Levy Trail Phase III - $10,500

SECTION 2: That funds for the subject expenditures are hereby appropriated
pursuant to fund appropriation designations listed above.

SECTION 3: That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are
hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict.

SECTION 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith
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SPONSOR: ATTEST:
Mayor Joe A. Smith IQFTH'f" Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM: ;
( Mﬁu FILEﬁr' {: 06 AM. P.M.
Amy Beckma g City Attorney
}l@f DATE l 0 9 [§

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/cf

Page 2 of 2

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Littlgg(‘)ck, Arkansas
RECEIVEDBY __ - u S3Cr ’\/
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR & CITY CLERK
TO EXECUTE THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE ENERGY
ATTRIBUTES SALE AGREEMENT WITH L'OREAL USA; AND
FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock (“City”) owns the Murray
Hydroelectric Plant which generates electricity that is clean, renewable and has no
harmful environmental emissions; and

WHEREAS, L’Oreal USA (“L’Oreal”) is interested in purchasing the rights to
receive clean energy sourced from the Murray Hydroelectric Plant through the purchase
of energy attributes (sometimes referred to as green tags, renewable energy credits, or
RECs) from the City; and

WHEREAS, on or about April 6, 2009, the City and L’Oreal (“Parties”) entered
an Energy Attributes Sales Agreement for Retail Customers (“Agreement”) as authorized
by Resolution No. 7412 of the City, providing for the purchase and sale of Energy
Attributes, as that term is defined in the Agreement, in an amount equal to all energy
consumed at L.’Oreal’s local facility; and

WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement lapsed December 31, 2009, but the Parties
have continued to perform in accordance with the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, on or about April 20, 2017, L.’ Oreal completed construction of a 1.2
MW solar array that is located adjacent to its local facility and produces significant
Energy Attributes; and

WHEREAS, L’Oreal seeks to amend the Agreement to reduce the volume of
Energy Attributes purchased in an amount equal to the volume of Energy Attributes
produced by the solar array and Energy Attributes acquired from third-parties; and

WHEREAS, the City and L’Oreal have met in good faith to negotiate the
amendment attached as Exhibit A. The original agreement is attached for reference as
Exhibit B and shows all changes that will be applied by the approval of the amendment,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute the
First Amendment to the Energy Attributes Sale Agreement (substantially similar to
Exhibit “A” attached hereto) with L’Oreal USA.





SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
Mayor Joe A. Smith D@Pﬁ:— Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

el

Amy Beckmaﬁx@ﬁs, City Attorney

PREPARED BY C. JASON CARTER, ATTORNEY AT LAW
REVIEWED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY

FILED [0S AM.
By ﬂ . F\LLQAS

P.M.

pate_ [0 -2 8

North Little Rock, Arkansas

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

RECEIVED BY 8 1/\ Sgeru?l/






FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE ENERGY ATTRIBUTES
SALE AGREEMENT FOR RETAIL CUSTOMERS
(“Amendment™)

BETWEEN
THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
(“City” or “Seller™)

AND
1’OREAL USA PRODUCTS, INC
(“L’Oreal” ot “Buyer™)

WHEREAS, on or about April 6, 2009, the City and L’Oreal (“Parties”) entered an Energy
Attributes Sales Agreement for Retail Customers (“Agreement”) as authorized by Resolution No.
7412 of the City, providing for the purchase and sale of Energy Attributes, as that term is defined
in the Agreement, in an amount equal fo all energy consumed at L’ Oreal’s local facility; and

WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement lapsed December 31, 2009, but the Parties have
continued to perform in accordance with the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, on or about April 20, 2017, L’Oreal completed construction of a 1.2 MW
solar array that is located adjacent to its local facility and produces significant Energy Attributes;
and

WHEREAS, 1’Oreal seeks to amend the Agreement to reduce the volume of Energy
Attributes purchased in an amount equal to the volume of Energy Attributes produced by the solar
array and Energy Attributes acquired from third-parties.

The Agreement shall be amended as follows:
1. The definition of Designated Energy in Section 1 shall be replaced with the

following definition: '

“Designated Energy” means an amount of Energy estimated to be consumed by the
Buyer as shown on Attachment “A”, not to exceed the Energy produced by the Energy
Resource within ninety (90) days.

2. The definition of Energy True-up shall be added to Section 1, as follows:
“Energy True-up” means the Buyer’s right to adjust any purchase of Designated
Energy by not more than twenty percent (20%) within ninety (90} days that the

purchase is made to reflect actual requirements.

3. The definition of Period of Delivery in Section 1 will be replaced with the following
definition:

Pagelof3






“Period of Delivery” means the period beginning with the approval of this
Amendment by both Parties and ending with the termination of this Agreement as
provided herein,

4. Paragraph 2.1 describing the delivery and sale of energy attributes will be amended as
follows:;

2.1 Delivery and Sale, In accordance with the procedures set forth in Sections 3 and
4 hereof, for each calendar month during the Period of Delivery, City shall sell to
Buyer, and Buyer shall purchase from City, at the Purchase Price, the number of
Energy Attributes associated with the Desi gnated Energy, subject to Energy True-
up within ninety (90) days. Buyer may adjust the schedule shown on Attachment
“A” one time each year by providing said adjustment to Seller in writing sixty
(60) days prior to the anniversary of the date this Amendment was executed by
both parties,

5. Paragraph 6.1 defining the term of the Agreement will be replaced with the following:

6.1 Term. The Agreoment will be effective during the Period of Delivery and shall end
when terminated as provided herein and both Parties shall have fulfilled their

respective payment, delivery and other obligations hereunder with respect to the
Period of Delivery. '

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have each caused this FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE
ENERGY ATTRIBUTES SALE AGREEMENT FOR RETAIL CUSTOMERS to be
executed by their duly authorized representatives.

FOR THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE

ROCK: FOR I R:E%L USA PRODUCTS, INC,
By By: E ;‘39){

Name: Name: ERC o ¥
Title: Titee NP 0P CRATIoNS
Date: Date: q ’ 2.6 I \ ¥

/7 7

/’{// /%7
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ATTACHMENT A

DESIGNATED ENERGY VOLUME FOR ENERGY ATTRIBUTE PURCHASE BY MONTH

MONTH D%s;ge’;z;ed Upper Limit | Lower Limit
(MWh) (+20%) (-20%)
January 908 1089 726
February 1083 1300 867
March 592 710 473
April 498 598 399
May 757 908 605
June 833 1000 665
July 407 488 326
August 907 1088 726
September 776 931 621
October 400 480 320
November 1025 1230 820
December 1025 1230 820
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
ENERGY ATTRIBUTES SALE AGREEMENT
FOR RETAIL CUSTOMERS

| This Energy Attributes Sale Agreement, as it may be amended from time-to-time (the
[ “Agreement”), dated as of April-6,2009September A6 , 2018 (“Effective Date™), is entered into
by and between The City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, a municipal corporation with its
principal business office at 120 Main Street, P.O. Box 5757, North Little Rock, Arkansas 72119
(“City”), and L’Oreal USA Products, Inc. , a retail electric customer of the City with a business
location of 11500 Maybelline Road, North Little Rock, Arkansas (“Buyer”). City and Buyer are
sometimes referred to in this Agreement together as the “Parties” and individually as a “Party.”

This Agreement memorializes the Parties’ understanding concerning their sale and
purchase obligations on and after the Effective Date for the provision of Energy Attributes under
the terms and conditions set forth below,

Section 1 - Definitions

In addition to other capitalized terms set forth elsewhere herein, the following capitalized
terms, whether singular or plural, shall have the meanings specified: o

“Confirmation” means written confirmation, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B,
of each purchase and sale of Energy Attributes under this Agreement.

“Designated Energy” means an amount of Energy estimated to be consumed by the

Buyer as shown on Attachment “A”, not to exceed the Enerpgy produced by the Ener
EY

Resource within mnety (90) days&ﬁ%aﬂd—aH—Eﬂergy-een&maed—by—%he—BuyH—aﬂ

“EA Reporting Rights” means the right to report that it owns the Environmental
Attributes to any agency, authority or other party under any emissions trading or reporting
program, public or private.

“Energy” means physical eleciric energy, expressed in megawatt hours (“MWh”) or
kilowatt-hours (“kWh™) of the character commonly known as three-phase, sixty-hertz
electric energy.

“Energy True-up” means the Buyer’s right to adiust any purchase of Designated Energy

by not more than twenty percent (20%) within ninety (90) days that the purchase is made

to reflect actual requirements.

“Environmental Attributes” shall mean, in the generation of Energy, any and all fuel,
emissions, air quality or other environmental characteristics, credits, benefits, reductions,
offsets and allowances (i) resulting from the purchase, generation or use of Energy or the






avoidance of the emission of any gas, chemical or other substance to the air, soil or water
attributable to such purchase, generation or use, or (ii) arising out of any law, rule or
regulation.

“Energy Attributes” means all Environmental Attributes and the exclusive rights to
claim: (i) that the Energy was generated by the specific Energy Resource and such Energy
was physically delivered to the Point of Delivery; (ii) that the Buyer (or purchaser) is
responsible for the delivery of the Environmental Attributes to the Point of Delivery as a
result of the Energy having been delivered to the Point of Delivery, and (iii) the EA
Reporting Rights. One (1) Energy Attribute shall represent and include all Energy
Attributes associated with one (1) MWh of Energy generated by the Energy Resource and
delivered to the Point of Delivery. For purposes of this Agreement, delivery may have
occurred through physical delivery or through acquired transmission rights.

“Energy Resource” means the Murray Hydroelectric Plant, a 43 MW Hydroelectric
generation facility located in North Little Rock, Arkansas, operating under FERC license
number 3449, and owned by the City, which generation facility is designated as a
Network Resource within the Entergy Services, Inc. transmission and distribution system
and is subject to a Network Integration Service Agreement between Entergy Services, Inc.
and the City.

“Force Majeure” means physical or governmental causes of the kind not reasonably
within the control of the Party claiming suspension and which by the exercise of due
diligence such Party could not have prevented or is unable to overcome. Such causes
shall include interruptions of firm transmission service relied on to make delivery,
planned or forced maintenance outages, the inability to generate due to lack of head or
flow, strikes, labor difficulties, shutdowns in anticipation of strikes, accidents, equipment
breakdown, riots, fire, flood, wars, delays or interruptions in transportation, materially
distuptive actions or failure to act of any government or government agency (whether or
not baving legal force and effect including, without limitation, any Court order or any
environmental compliance order or notice) or any other disabling cause or contingency
not reasonably within the control of the Party claiming such event, whether of the nature
or subject matter herein enumerated. Nothing contained herein, however, shall be
construed to require a Party to prevent or settle a strike against its will. Economic
hardship shall not constitute Force Majeure.

“Metering Point” means the Murray Hydro watt-hour meter located at the Levy No. 3
Substation, representing the point where energy generated by Murray Hydro enters the
transmission system of Entergy Arkansas, Inc.

“Period of Delivery” means the period beginning with the approval of this Amendment
by both Parties and ending with the termination of this Agreement as provided herein,
3 ex 31’ 2999, of uﬂ:til e&ilie*' EEiiﬂiH&ked bj eit}tef






“Point of Delivery” means the point on the transmission system of the City at which
energy generated by the Energy Resource is delivered to the Entergy Transmission
System for transmission to the electrical loads of the City of North Little Rock,
commonly known as the Levy No. 3 Substation.

“Purchase Price” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.3 hereof.

Section 2 ~Sale of Energy Attributes

2.1

2.2

23

Delivery and Sale. In accordance with the procedures set forth in Sections 3 and 4
hereof, for each calendar month during the Period of Delivery, City shall sell to
Buyer, and Buyer shall purchase from City, at the Purchase Price, the number of
Energy Attributes associated with the Designated Energy, subject to Energy True-up

within ninety {90} days. Buyer ma iust the schedule shown “AY
one time each year by providing said adjustment to Seller in writing sixty {60) days

jor to the anniversary of the this Amendment was executed ies,

Representations Watranties and Covenants. Cify represents and warrants that: (a) City
has not sold, and shall not sell, any of the Energy Attributes (or any portion thereof) sold

to Buyer hereunder to any person or entity other than Buyer, and City shall not sell an
amount of Energy Attributes in excess of the Energy delivered to the Point of Delivery by
the Energy Resource during the Period of Delivery or during any applicable calendar
quarter during the Period of Delivery (excluding any periods of time after this Agreement
has been terminated due to a material default by Buyer); (b) any and all Energy
Attributes purchased and sold hereunder shall be fransferred to Buyer free and clear of
any and all liens and encumbrances whatsoever. City further represents and warrants,
with respect to the Designated Energy associated with any and all MWhs of Energy
Attributes purchased hereunder, that City has not made on or prior to the Effective Date,
and shall not make after the date hereof, any claim(s) to any third party regarding any of
the Energy Aftributes associated with such Designated Energy, including without
limitation (1) in any marketing materials, any product content label, or any environmental
or other disclosures regarding fuel mix under applicable law, in each case issued to
customers or to the public, or (ii) in any reports under any emissions trading reporting
program, public or private.  City covenants that City shall confirm with appropriate
governmental and regulatory authorities as necessary that the Energy Attributes
associated with the Designated Energy from the Energy Resources are being sold
separately from the Designated Energy associated with such Energy Attributes.

Purchase Price. The purchase price for each of the Energy Attributes delivered hereunder
shall be: $2.50 per MWh for each Energy Attribute.

Section 3 - Confirmations and Product Verification

3.1

Delivery of Confirmation.






3.2

Within ten (10) days after the end of each calendar month during the Period of Delivery,
City shall email to Buyer at the address set forth below (or such other address of which
Buyer may notify City in writing) (i) a fully completed and executed Confirmation for
that quantity of Energy Attributes delivered to Buyer for such calendar month pursuant to
Section 2.1 above, in a form substantially similar to the form set forth in Exhibit A,
incorporated herein by reference.

Vetification Records. The City shall maintain adequate records of the Designated Energy
generated by the Energy Resource and Energy Attributes sold pursuant to this Agreement
for a period of four (4) years following the date of each Confirmation and shall, upon
request, provide copies of the same to Buyer at a cost no more than the actual cost of
reproduction.  All records shall be sufficient to assist Buyer in complying with the
requirements of any applicable federal or state laws, regulations, or orders.

Section 4 — Payment

Buyer shall pay City for all Energy Attributes delivered to Buyer within fifteen (15) days
of the date on which Buyer receives each Confirmation covering such Energy Attributes
in accordance with the terms hereof. If the due date falls on a non-business day for either
Party, the payment shall be due on the next following business day. Buyer shall make all
payments due hereunder by ACH payment or wire transfer to City at an account specified
by City in writing, or by Buyer’s check or draft.

Section 5 — Indemnification; Liability Limitation

5.1

52

Duiy to Indemnify. Each Party (the "Indemnifying Party") shall indemnify and hold
harmless the other Party, its shareholders, officers, directors, employees and agents, from
and against any and all third party claims, costs, suits, liabilities, damages, losses,
demands and expenses of every kind including, without limitation, reasonable attorney
fees and disbursements, known or unknown, contingent or otherwise (subject to Section
5.2 below), resulting from or arising out of: (a) a material default by the Indemnifying
Party of any covenant or provision of this Agreement; or (b) the willful misconduct by the
Indemnifying Party. It is understood that this agreement does not waive or modify the
City of North Little Rock’s tort or sovereign immunity under the laws of the State of
Arkansas. North Little Rock reserves the right to raise tort or sovereign immunity
defenses in any appropriate case.

Mitigation; Limitation. If a Party defaults under this Agreement, the non-defaulting Party
shall use commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate any and all damages arising from
the default. NEITHER PARTY WILL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR
SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, EXEMPLARY OR PUNITIVE
DAMAGES FOR A BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT, REGARDLESS OF
WHETHER THOSE DAMAGES ARE CLAIMED UNDER CONTRACT,
WARRANTY, INDEMNITY, TORT OR ANY OTHER THEORY AT LAW OR IN
EQUITY.






[

5.3

Notice of Indemnity. The Indemnified Party shall notify the Indemnifying Party promptly
of any claim under this Section 5. The Indemnifying Party shall afford the Indemnified
Party the opportunity to defend or participate in the defense of the claim. The
Indemnifying Party shall make no settlement of an indemnified claim specifically naming
or directly affecting the Indemnified Party without the Indemnified Party’s prior written
approval.

Section 6 - Term; Termination

6.1

6.2

Term. The Agreement will be effective during the Period of Delivery and shall end when

terminated as provided herein and both Parties shall have fulfilled their respective

payment, delivery and other obligations hereunder with respect to the Period of Delivery,

r-ta—-Agrasrmant vl ha oftan a7 At a! e E '~ ¥a) 3 ]

Tetmination. This Agreement is subject to termination under any of the following
provisions:

(a) Either Party shall have the right to terminate this.Agreement, pursuant to Section 7
hereof.

(b) In the event of the occurrence of any of the following events, either Party shall have
the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon providing written notice to the
othet Party if such Party: (i) becomes insolvent or is unable to pay its debts or fails or
admits in writing its inability generally to pay its debts as they become due; (ii) makes a
general assignment, arrangement, or composition with or for the benefit of its creditors;
(iii) institutes or has instituted against it a proceeding secking a judgment of insolvency or
bankruptey or any other relief under any bankruptcy or insolvency law or other similar
law affecting creditors’ rights, or a petition is presented for its winding-up or liquidation,
and in the case of any such proceeding or petition instituted or presented against it, such
proceeding or petition (A) results in a judgment of insolvency or bankruptcy or the entry
of an order for relief or the making of an order for its winding-up or liquidation or (B) is
not dismissed, discharged, stayed, or restrained in each case within thirty (30) days of the
institution or presentation thereof; (iv) passes a resolution for its dissolution, winding-up,
or liquidation; (v) seeks or becomes subject to the appointment of an administrator,
provisional liquidator, conservator, receiver, trustee, custodian, or other similar official
for it or for all or substantially all of its assets; (vi) has a secured party take possession of
all or substantially all of its assets or has a distress, execution, attachment, sequestration,
or other legal process levied, enforced, or sued on or against all or substantially all of its
assets and such secured party maintains possession, or any such process is not dismissed,






discharged, stayed, or restrained, in each case within thirty (30) days thereafter; (vii)
causes ot is subject to any event with respect to it which, under the applicable laws of any
jurisdiction, has an effect analogous to any of the events specified in clauses (i) through
(vi} (inclusive); or (viii) takes any action in furtherance of, or indicating its consent to,
approval of, or acquiescence in, any of the foregoing acts.

(c) This Agreement shall terminate automatically if any judicial, regulatory or legislative
action or change renders performance of this Agreement impossible or illegal. Such
termination shall occur on the date that such action or change renders petformance of this
Agreement impossible or illegal.

(d) This Agreement may be terminated by either Party at any time for any reason upon ninety

(90) days” written notice, Upon such termination this Agreement shall end in the same manner
as if the term of the Agreement in section 6.1 had expired.
Section 7 - Defauli

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Default. The failure of a Party to perform any material duty imposed upon that Party by
this Agreement shall constitute a default. The Party in default under this Agreement shall
be referred to as the “Defaulting Party,” and the other Party shall be referred to as the
“Non-Defaulting Party.”

Notice of Default. The Non-Defaulting Party shall give the Defaulting Party a written
Notice of Default, which shall describe the default in reasonable detail and state the date
by which the Defaulting Party must cure the default. The Defaulting Party must cure the
default within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the Notice of Default.

Opportunity to Cure. If, within the applicable period described in Section 8.2 hereof, the
Defaulting Party cures the default or if the failure is one which cannot in good faith be
corrected within such period and the Defaulting Party begins to cotrect the default within
the applicable period and continues corrective efforts with reasonable diligence until
effecting a cure, the Notice of Default shall be inoperative and the Defaulting Party shall
lose no rights under this Agreement. If, within the specified period, the Defaulting Party
does not cure the default or begin to cure the default as provided above, the Non-
Defaulting Party may exercise the remedies set forth in Section 8.4 hereof,

Rights upon Default. After providing notice and an opportunity to cure as provided
above, the Non-Defaulting Party shall have the right (but not the obligation) to terminate
this Agreement by giving written notice to the Defaulting Party. Upon such termination,
City shall sell the Energy Attributes to a party(ies) other than Buyer in an effort to
mitigate damages in & commerocially reasonable manner.

Remedies Not Exclusive. Each and every power and remedy given to the Non-Defaulting

Party:






7.6

(a) shall be in addition to every other power and remedy now or hereafter
available to the Non-Defaulting Party at law or in equity (including the right to
specific performance),

(b) may be exercised from time to time and as often and in such order as may be
deemed expedient, and

(c) shall be cumulative, so that the exetcise of one power or remedy shall not
waive the right to exercise any other or others.

No delay or omission in the exercise of any power or remedy and no renewal or extension
of any performance due under this Agreement shall impair any such power or remedy or
waive any default.

Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence of each and every obligation set forth in
this Agreement.

Section 8 — Authorizations

Each Party represents and warrants to the other that: (a) it is duly authorized, validly
existing and in good standing under the laws of its jurisdiction of organization; (b) it has
the power and authority and the legal right to enter into, deliver, and perform its
obligations under this Agreement; (c) the execution, delivery and performance of this
Agreement by such Party has been authorized by all necessary action on its part and does
not contravene any provision of its certificate of incorporation, certificate of formation,
bylaws, limited partnership agreement or other constituent documents, as applicable; and
(d) this Agreement constitutes its legal, valid and binding obligation enforceable against it
in accordance with its terms (except as may be limited by any law affecting the
enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and subject to equitable principles of general
application).

Section 9 - Miscellaneous

9.1

9.2

Further Assurances and Cooperation. Each Party agrees to execute and deliver to the
other Party all instruments, documents, and statements including, without limitation,
instruments and documents of recordation, assignment, transfer, conveyance and
clarification and take all other actions necessary or convenient in the reasonable
discretion of the requesting Party to carry out more effectively the purposes of this
Agreement, Unless otherwise provided, no consent or approval provided for in this
Agreement may be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

Force Majeure. In the event either Party is rendered unable, by reason of Force Majeure,
to carry out wholly or in part its obligations under the provisions hereunder, it is agreed
that if such Party gives notice and full particulars of such event of Force Majeure to the
other Party as soon as practicable after the occurrence of the cause relied on, then the
obligations of the Party affected by such event of Force Majeure shall be excused from
the inception and throughout the period of continuance of any such inability so caused,






9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

but for no longer period, and such event of Force Majeure shall, as far as practicable, be
remedied with all reasonable dispatch. No notice shall be required of forced or planned
outages of one or more units at the Energy Resource of a duration less than 30 days or the
inability of the Energy Resource to generate due to lack of head or flow on the Arkansas
River whatsoever the duration,

Entire Agreement. This Agreement states the Parties’ entire agreement with respect to
the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous proposals,
agreements and other communications between the Parties, oral or written, regarding that
subject matter,

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which taken
together shall constitute a single agreement. Facsimile signatures shall have the same
effect as original signatures,

Headings. The Parties have inserted the headings used in this Agreement for convenience
only and cach heading shall not be construed to limit, add to or otherwise affect the
interpretation of the provision in which it appears,

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be exclusively governed by, construed and
enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of Arkansas, without giving effect
to choice of laws or conflicts principles of any jurisdiction.

Amendment; Assignment. This Agreement may not be amended or supplemented
without the written agreement of both Parties. Subject to Section 10.3 hereof,
neither Party may assign or transfer this Agreement or any of its rights or
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other
Party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, either Party may assign this Agreement, without the
consent of the other Party, to any entity either succeeding to all or substantially all
of the business or assets of the assigning Party or purchasing a majority of the
voting stock of the assigning Party; provided that the creditworthiness of such entity
is equal to that of such assigning Party as of the Effective Date; and provided further,
that, in each case, the assignee agrees in writing to be bound by the terms and
conditions of this Agreement and to assume all of assigning Party’s obligations
hereunder.

Notices. Any notice or communication required hereunder (other than Confirmations
and Aftestations which shall be delivered in accordance with Section 3.1 above) shall be
in writing and shall be: (a) delivered in person; (b) sent by United States mail (certified
with return receipt requested) or by overnight courier and addressed to the intended
recipient at the address set forth below; or (c) sent by facsimile or electronic mail if
promptly confirmed in writing by the party providing notice, to the address set forth
below:






For the City: For the Buver;

City of North Little Rock L’Oreal USA Products, Inc.
Attention: City Attorney ATTN:

120 Main Street 11500 Maybelline Road
P.O. Box 5757 North Little Rock, AR

North Little Rock, Arkansas 72119
Fax: 501-340-5341,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have each caused this Energy Atiributes Sale Agreement
to be executed by their duly authorized representatives,

THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK

By:

Name: Patrick H. Hays

Title:__Mayor

By:

Name: Diane Whitbey

Title: City Clerk

BUYER:

By:

Name:

Title:






IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have each caused fhis Energy Attributes Sale Agreement
to be executed by their duly authorized representatives.

THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK

By:

Name: _ Pafrick H. Hays

Title:__Mavor

By:

Name: Diane Whithey

Title: City Clerk

BUYEC

By: AAA&ZS
Name;_ERVC  FoX
Title; Q.26.18
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING AND CONGRATULATING
THE NORTH LITTLE ROCK FIRE FIGHTERS UNION LOCAL
35 OF THE INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FIRE
FIGHTERS (“IAFF”) ON THEIR 100TH YEAR ANNIVERSARY.

WHEREAS, the North Little Rock Fire Fighters Union Local 35 is celebrating
100 years of service to the Fire Fighters of the North Little Rock Fire Department, and

WHEREAS, established in 1918 the North Little Rock Fire Fighters Union now
represents 153 fire fighters that staff 11 fire stations across the greater North Little Rock
area serving 55.5 square miles and over 66,000 residents; and

WHEREAS, firefighting has always been one of the most dangerous positions in
public service, as fire fighters put their service to the community above their personal
safety; and

WHEREAS, our fire fighters serve the citizens of North Little Rock with a wide
range of services, including but not limited to structural firefighting, advance life support
paramedic service, technical rescue, hazardous materials response, fire prevention
education, building inspections, and arson investigations; and

WHEREAS, the IAFF is behind nearly every advancement in the fire and
emergency services in the 21st century; and

WHEREAS, the IAFF have secured through the United States Congress $1.5
billion dollars each year for the last several years for the Staffing for Adequate Fire &
Emergency Response (“S.A.F.E.R.”) grant to hire and retain firefighters and the
Assistance to Firefighters grant (“A.F.G.”) to purchase firefighting and safety equipment
which the City of North Little Rock has been awarded over $4 million dollars in the past
five years.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That this council does hereby recognize and congratulate the North
Little Rock Fire Fighters Union Local 35 of the IAFF on their 100th Anniversary and to
thank our North Little Rock Fire Fighters for conducting themselves with selflessness and
professionalism as they serve the residents and visitors of North Little Rock.





PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

Doe Ay b

Mayor Joe A. Smith l:%t"f’(——-' Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

~

Amy Beckman Mjelds, City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/cf

FILED | '065  AM. P.M.

By Q FL,;/QAS

patE 0D &

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY S -LQQQFT “/
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE AMOUNT OF A CLEAN UP
LIEN TO BE FILED WITH THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX
COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 114 S. REDWOOD STREET IN THE CITY OF
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS; AND FOR OTHER
PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, certain property located at 114 S. Redwood Street in the City of
North Little Rock, Arkansas was declared to be a public nuisance, and the property was
condemned on February 26, 2018 (see Resolution No. 9385 attached hereto as Exhibit
A); and

WHEREAS, Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-903 provides that if the owner(s) or lien
holder(s) of any lot or structure, after having been given seven (7) days’ notice in writing
to do so, refuses to remove, abate or eliminate any nuisance property, the City of North
Little Rock is authorized to do whatever is necessary to correct the conditions and charge
the cost thereof to the owner(s) of the real property; and

WHEREAS, according to the Pulaski County Assessor’s Office, Parcel No.
33N3180032200, described as 114 S. Redwood Street, North Little Rock, Arkansas, is
owned by Don Price who, after receiving notice from the City regarding the conditions
of the property, has failed to abate the conditions; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. §§ 14-54-901, ef seq. and Act 854 of
2007, the City of North Little Rock is authorized to abate the nuisance conditions,
establish a lien for the costs associated therewith, and collect the same in order to protect
the health, safety and welfare of the community.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That upon a hearing of the facts, the City Council hereby declares
that proper notice was given to the owner(s) and lien holder(s) of the subject property to
remove, abate or eliminate the public nuisance conditions on the subject property located
at 114 S. Redwood Street; more specifically described as:

THE EAST 1/2 OF LOT 4 AND THE EAST 1/2 OF NORTH 1/2 OF LOT
5, BLOCK 45, CHOCTAW SUBDIVISION TO THE CITY OF NORTH
LITTLE ROCK, PULASKI COUNTY, ARKANSAS.

SECTION 2: That the City Council further declares that the owner(s) and lien
holder(s) of the subject property failed to remove, abate or eliminate the public nuisance
conditions at the property after it was condemned pursuant to Resolution No. 9385 in the
time allowed by law, and that the City then abated the public nuisance conditions at a cost
of no less than $2,053.07 (See Affidavit attached hereto as Exhibit B.)





SECTION 3: That the City Council further declares that proper notice was given
to the owner(s) and lien holder(s) of the subject property that a public hearing would be
held on October 08, 2018 (see Proof of Publication attached hereto as Exhibit C) to
determine the proper amount, if any, that should be filed as a clean up lien pursuant to
Act 854 0f2007.

SECTION 4: That the City Council further declares that upon presentation of facts
at a public hearing, the City is entitled to a priority clean up lien in the amount of
$2,053.07 (costs of abatement plus an additional $45.00 filing fee for the subject lien
certification) against the subject property. This lien, as provided for in Arkansas Code
Ann. § 14-54-903, may be enforced and collected at any time within ten (10) years after
the lien has been filed in either one of the following manners as provided for in Ark. Code
Ann. § 14-54-904.

(1) By an action for foreclosure in the circuit court; or

(2) The amount so determined at this public hearing, plus ten percent
(10%) penalty for collection, to be certified to the Pulaski County
Tax Collector to be placed on the tax books as delinquent taxes
and collected accordingly.

SECTION 5: That if the owner(s) or lien holder(s) fail to pay the amount of the
herein certified clean-up lien in the time allowed by law, the City Attorney is hereby
directed to pursue any and all proper legal actions for collection of the amount of said
lien plus all applicable costs.

SECTION 6: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
severable, and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 7: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

Mayor Joe A. Smith ]3155\'5(( Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

Af}’ROVED _S TO FORM: FILED | |-6 S AM. P.M.
//0,7,(/(/1 Byﬁ]= QQ_,Q(JS
WBeclmah\ﬂﬁ%, City Attorney DATE } 1 X

PREPARED BY THE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/cf DigiseWhithey, City Clericamd Calleatar

North Littlgnck, Arkansas
!
5 RECEIVED BY . U&S@ ‘/"./
o/
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PRESENTED: 03-05-201803:36:39 PM  RECORDED: 03-05-2018 03:36:39 PM
In Official Records of Larry Crane Circuit/County Clerk
PULASKI CO, AR FEE $25.00
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RESOLUTION NO. 65% sl

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES

> AND OTHER STRUCTURES LOCATED AT 114 S. REDWOOD

‘% 2 »\2.- STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK .TO

5 /4|7 - CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID

%,/ » - STRUCTURES; PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR

T4 _/#< PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE; AND FOR
) e, o’ OTHER PURPOSES.

T

WHEREAS, the buildings and structures whose location is set forth herein are
vacant and have become run down, dilapidated, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious, unsafe,
not fit for human habitation and detrimental to the public welfare of North Little Rock
citizens and residents; and

WHEREAS, the condition of such property constitutes a serious fire and health
hazard to the City of North Little Rock, and unless immediate actions are taken to remedy
this situation by removing, razing and abating said nuisance, there is a great likelihood
that the surrounding property may be destroyed by fire originating from such unsafe and
hazardous structures, and also that since structures are without proper sanitary facilities
and as such are unsafe and hazardous and a breeding place for rats, rodents and other
dangerous germ carriers of diseases, such buildings constitute a serious hazard to the
health and safety of the citizens of North Little Rock, and they should be moved or razed
for the purpose of eliminating such hazards.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Council hereby declares the buildings, houses and
other structures located at the property identified in Section 2 below to be vacant and run
down, dilapidated, unsafe, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious, unsanitary, a fire hazard, a
menace to abutting properties, with the current condition of said structures not being fit
for human habitation; and because of such conditions, the City Council declares the same
to be condemned as a public nuisance and is ordered abated, removed or razed by the
owner thereof.

SECTION 2: That the owner of record of the following described property is
hereby directed to raze the same or otherwise abate the said nuisance within thirty (30)
days after the posting of a true copy of this Resolution at a conspicuous place upon the
structure constituting the nuisance described herein, to-wit:

The E 1/2 of Lot 4 & the E 1/2 of N 1/2 of Lot 5, Block 45, Choctaw
Addition, in the City of North Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas.
(Parcel No. 33N3180032200, located at 114 S. Redwood Street, and
owned by Don Price.)






SECTION 3: If the aforementioned structures have not been razed and/or removed
within thirty (30) days after posting a true copy of this Resolution at a conspicuous place
upon the structures constituting the nuisance, or the nuisance otherwise abated, the
structures shall be torn down and/or removed by the Director of Code Enforcement or his
duly designated representative. Each day after the aforesaid thirty (30) days in which
said nuisance is not abated shall constitute a separate and distinct offense punishable by
a fine of $250.00 for each such separate and distinct offense.

SECTION 4: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:
s /18 /;Zﬁaﬁ?%;#

Mayor J oq’A. Smith

™

SPONSOR: ATTESH:

Mayor Joe A. Smith lf:nﬁp;(:/

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

O/(JAM

Amy Beckntan Felds, City Attorney
PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/kh

iane Whitbey, City Clerk

FlLElﬁQi:;Q M. P.M.
By i ;E’,lé 5
DATE Q' 20-1§

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY _( -],(856.@[
U





EXHIBIT

B

Comes the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas by and through Tom Wadley, who states on oath that;

STATE OF ARKANSAS) Parcel # 33N3180032200
COUNTY OF PULASKI)

tabbies®

AFFIDAVIT OF STATUTORY LIEN

My name is Tom Wadley, | am the Director of Code Enforcement for the City of North Little Rock,
Arkansas (“the City"), and as such | am authorized to make this affidavit.

Acting pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-56-203, the North Little Rock City Council, on February 26'. 2018
Resolution # 9385 condemning a structure or structures located on the following described real property
located in the City of North Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas:

114 S. Redwood
LotE % Lot4 & E %2 N % Lot 5 Block 45 Choctaw

City of Nowth Little Rock, AR

Don Price and due to the Owner’s and/or heirs failure to raze or remove the structure(s), the City
removed said structure(s) incurring a cost of $2,053.07 An itemized account of this indebtedness is as
follows:

Date Issued Fee Amount | Amount Paid | Due Date

03/16/2018 | Demolition $1,925.00 $0.00 | 04/23/2018

03/16/2018 | Administration/Collection Fees $60.00 $0.00 | 04/23/2018

03/16/2018 | Postage Fee $36.10 $0.00 | 04/23/2018

03/16/2018 |Filing Fee $25.00 $0.00 | 04/23/2018

03/16/2018 | Legal Notice $6.97 04/23/2018
Total Due: $2,053.07

The City has made demand for payment and gave the debtor notice of the City’s intent to file this lien and
the debtor has failed to make payment. No part of the debt has been paid and the City of North Little
Rock claims a lien on this real property, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-903(b), in the amount of
$2,053.07 to secure this indebtedness.

WITNESS my hand this A2 _ day of _|M\aLv (I 20
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK

Tom Wadley =
Director of Code Enforcement

My Commission Expires: _{O| | 20271
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R-18- 203
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE AMOUNT OF A CLEAN UP
LIEN TO BE FILED WITH THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX
COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 713 VINE STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH
LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, certain property located at 713 Vine Street in the City of North Little
Rock, Arkansas was declared to be a public nuisance, and the property was condemned
on February 26, 2018 (see Resolution No. 9383 attached hereto as Exhibit A); and

WHEREAS, Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-903 provides that if the owner(s) or lien
holder(s) of any lot or structure, after having been given seven (7) days’ notice in writing
to do so, refuses to remove, abate or eliminate any nuisance property, the City of North
Little Rock is authorized to do whatever is necessary to correct the conditions and charge
the cost thereof to the owner(s) of the real property; and

WHEREAS, according to the Pulaski County Assessor’s Office, Parcel No.
33N3050001500, described as 713 Vine Street, North Little Rock, Arkansas, is owned by
Annie W. Hamilton who, after receiving notice from the City regarding the conditions of
the property, has failed to abate the conditions; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. §§ 14-54-901, et seq. and Act 854 of
2007, the City of North Little Rock is authorized to abate the nuisance conditions,
establish a lien for the costs associated therewith, and collect the same in order to protect
the health, safety and welfare of the community.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That upon a hearing of the facts, the City Council hereby declares
that proper notice was given to the owner(s) and lien holder(s) of the subject property to
remove, abate or eliminate the public nuisance conditions on the subject property located
at 713 Vine Street; more specifically described as:

LOT 10 BLOCK 7, GREENS 2ND SUBDIVISION TO THE CITY OF
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, PULASKI COUNTY, ARKANSAS.

SECTION 2: That the City Council further declares that the owner(s) and lien
holder(s) of the subject property failed to remove, abate or eliminate the public nuisance
conditions at the property after it was condemned pursuant to Resolution No. 9383 in the
time allowed by law, and that the City then abated the public nuisance conditions at a cost
of no less than $5,739.72 (See Affidavit attached hereto as Exhibit B.)

SECTION 3: That the City Council further declares that proper notice was given
to the owner(s) and lien holder(s) of the subject property that a public hearing would be
held on October 08, 2018 (see Proof of Publication attached hereto as Exhibit C) to

1





determine the proper amount, if any, that should be filed as a clean up lien pursuant to
Act 854 of 2007.

SECTION 4: That the City Council further declares that upon presentation of facts
at a public hearing, the City is entitled to a priority clean up lien in the amount of
$5,739.72 (costs of abatement plus an additional $45.00 filing fee for the subject lien
certification) against the subject property. This lien, as provided for in Arkansas Code
Ann. § 14-54-903, may be enforced and collected at any time within ten (10) years after
the lien has been filed in either one of the following manners as provided for in Ark. Code
Ann. § 14-54-904:

(1) By an action for foreclosure in the circuit court; or

(2) The amount so determined at this public hearing, plus ten percent
(10%) penalty for collection, to be certified to the Pulaski County
Tax Collector to be placed on the tax books as delinquent taxes
and collected accordingly.

SECTION 5: That if the owner(s) or lien holder(s) fail to pay the amount of the
herein certified clean-up lien in the time allowed by law, the City Attorney is hereby
directed to pursue any and all proper legal actions for collection of the amount of said
lien plus all applicable costs.

SECTION 6: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
severable, and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions,

SECTION 7: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

Mayor Joe A. Smith Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED TO FORM: FILED ﬁﬁ) AM. P.M.
) - :
B it By AL
Amy Beclqn&@?a) City Attorney DATE ¥ 0’/ Y

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Little Rock, ArkanSas
RECEIVED BY

PREPARED BY THE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/cf
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O ORI 2018013687

PRESENTED: 03-05-2018 03:36:37 PM RECORDED: 03-05-2018 03:26 37 PM

In Official Records of Larry Crane Circuit/County Clerk
PULASKI CO, AR FEE $25.00

R-18- H(»
RESOLUTION NO. o

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES
AND OTHER STRUCTURES LOCATED AT 713 N. VINE STREET
IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK TO CONSTITUTE A
PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID STRUCTURES;

= PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR PROPERTY OWNER TO
& ABATE SAID NUISANCE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the buildings and structures whose location is set forth herein are
vacant and have become run down, dilapidated, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious, unsafe,
not fit for human habitation and detrimental to the public welfare of North Little Rock
citizens and residents; and

WHEREAS, the condition of such property constitutes a serious fire and health
hazard to the City of North Little Rock, and unless immediate actions are taken to remedy
this situation by removing, razing and abating said nuisance, there is a great likelihood
that the surrounding property may be destroyed by fire originating from such unsafe and
hazardous structures, and also that since structures are without proper sanitary facilities
and as such are unsafe and hazardous and a breeding place for rats, rodents and other
dangerous germ carriers of diseases, such buildings constitute a serious hazard to the
health and safety of the citizens of North Little Rock, and they should be moved or razed
for the purpose of eliminating such hazards.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Council hereby declares the buildings, houses and
other structures located at the property identified in Section 2 below to be vacant and run
down, dilapidated, unsafe, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious, unsanitary, a fire hazard, a
menace to abutting properties, with the current condition of said structures not being fit
for human habitation; and because of such conditions, the City Council declares the same
to be condemned as a public nuisance and is ordered abated, removed or razed by the
owner thereof.

SECTION 2: That the owner of record of the following described property is
hereby directed to raze the same or otherwise abate the said nuisance within thirty (30)
days after the posting of a true copy of this Resolution at a conspicuous place upon the
structure constituting the nuisance described herein, to-wit:

Lot 10, Block 7, Greens Second Subdivision, in the City of North Little
Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas. (Parcel No. 33N3050001500, located
at 713 N. Vine Street, and owned by Annie W. Hamilton.)

EXHIBIT

|8

tabbies*






SECTION 3: If the aforementioned structures have not been razed and/or removed
within thirty (30) days after posting a true copy of this Resolution at a conspicuous place
upon the structures constituting the nuisance, or the nuisance otherwise abated, the
structures shall be torn down and/or removed by the Director of Code Enforcement or his
duly designated representative. Each day after the aforesaid thirty (30) days in which
said nuisance is not abated shall constitute a separate and distinct offense punishable by
a fine of $250.00 for each such separate and distinct offense.

SECTION 4: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVEDy]

=ve¥ /Je

Mayor Joe/f}

SPONSOR: : .

% A Grvmn v_, BN
Mayor Joe A. Smith =5 X~ Dfane Whitbey, City Clerk 0'
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

W

Amy Beckimap' Fields, City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/kh

FILED [D.20 am. P.M.
By 'q CQ\C} 3

DATE 2-Q0-1 §

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY 5 -L\%%C“Mx/
),





STATE OF ARKANSAS §
§SS
COUNTY OF PULASKI  §

I, Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Treasurer for the City of
North Little Rock, Arkansas, do hereby certify that the
foregoing instrument is a true and correct copy of the
original of Demolition Agreement Resolution 9383

Book No. 59 filed in this office on the 3rd

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the seal of this office thisz 3rd
day of May - 2018

Diane Whithey, City Clerk and Treasurer

By: Talor Shinn

(SEAL)






STATE OF ARKANSAS) Parcel # 33N30500015{i]
COUNTY OF PULASKI)

AU 2018034508

PRESENTED: 06-04-2018 02;58:04 PM RECORDED: 06-04-2018 02:58:04 PM

In Official Records of Larry Crane Circuit/C
AFFIDAVIT OF STATUToR\é'&ﬁl ::f; OFEEI:T; sr:: ireultCounty Clerk

Comes the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas by and through Tom Wadley, who states on oath that:

My name is Tom Wadley, | am the Director of Code Enforcement for the City of North Little Rock,
Arkansas (“the City"), and as such | am authorized to make this affidavit.

Acting pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-56-203, the North Little Rock City Council, on February 26t , 2018
Resolution # 9383 condemning a structure or structures located on the following described real property
located in the City of North Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ADDRESS OF PROPERTY

713 N Vine
Lot 10 Block 7 Greens 2nd Sub
North Little Rock, AR 72114

Annie W. Hamilton and due to the Owner’s and/or heirs failure to raze or remove the structure(s), the
City removed said structure(s) incurring a cost of $5,739.72 An itemized account of this indebtedness is
as follows:

Date Issued : Fee  Amount | Amount Paid = Due Date f
;57!311-2018777 7 fA&ministratfonlCéileé:ﬁon Fees ’ | 7$760.00 ! 56.50 | 6!50/2018 w'
50312018 |FilngFee | 2500 $0.00 | /3012018 |
5312018 | PostageFee ser2|  so00| ersorzots
:51311261-8 N } Legéi hotice - ‘ 7 $1660 | - S-H.DO ’ 6[50]2018 ‘

5/3112018 | Demolition | $5565.00 $0.00 | 6/30/2018

Total Due: $5,739.72

|
The City has made demand for payment and gave the debtor notice of the City's intent to file this lien and
the debtor has failed to make payment. No part of the debt has been paid and the City of North Little
Rock claims a lien on this real property, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-903(b), in the amount ofc'.i' & C iy,
$5,739.72 to secure this indebtedness. Skt Y i
WITNESS my hand this |5/ dayof___ Stane 20 1€,

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK

= o \_’;-:.)c_, é\ ‘G\
Tom Wadley
Director of Code Enforcement

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this __| {-day of | Sune 20
{'\)J (j-cu‘. I ) l(f‘—k
" NOTARY PUBLIC §

EXHIBIT

My Commission Expires: () '3 I Z2027]

A N '
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R-18-204
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE AMOUNT OF A CLEAN UP
LIEN TO BE FILED WITH THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX
COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 6505 MEDFORD LANE IN THE CITY OF NORTH
LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, certain property located at 6505 Medford Lane in the City of North
Little Rock, Arkansas was declared to be a public nuisance, and the property was
condemned on June 25, 2018 (see Resolution No. 9460 attached hereto as Exhibit A); and

WHEREAS, Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-903 provides that if the owner(s) or lien
holder(s) of any lot or structure, after having been given seven (7) days’ notice in writing
to do so, refuses to remove, abate or eliminate any nuisance property, the City of North
Little Rock is authorized to do whatever is necessary to correct the conditions and charge
the cost thereof to the owner(s) of the real property; and

WHEREAS, according to the Pulaski County Assessor’s Office, Parcel No.
23N0160007900, described as 6505 Medford Lane, North Little Rock, Arkansas, is
owned by Wanda F. Kloss who, after receiving notice from the City regarding the
conditions of the property, has failed to abate the conditions; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. §§ 14-54-901, ef seq. and Act 854 of
2007, the City of North Little Rock is authorized to abate the nuisance conditions,
establish a lien for the costs associated therewith, and collect the same in order to protect
the health, safety and welfare of the community.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That upon a hearing of the facts, the City Council hereby declares
that proper notice was given to the owner(s) and lien holder(s) of the subject property to
remove, abate or eliminate the public nuisance conditions on the subject property located
at 6505 Medford Lane; more specifically described as:

LOT 2 BLOCK 4, LANSBROOK SUBDIVISION TO THE CITY OF
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, PULASKI COUNTY, ARKANSAS.

SECTION 2: That the City Council further declares that the owner(s) and lien
holder(s) of the subject property failed to remove, abate or eliminate the public nuisance
conditions at the property after it was condemned pursuant to Resolution No. 9460 in the
time allowed by law, and that the City then abated the public nuisance conditions at a cost
of no less than $5,036.89 (See Affidavit attached hereto as Exhibit B.)

SECTION 3: That the City Council further declares that proper notice was given
to the owner(s) and lien holder(s) of the subject property that a public hearing would be
held on October 08, 2018 (see Proof of Publication attached hereto as Exhibit C) to
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determine the proper amount, if any, that should be filed as a clean up lien pursuant to
Act 854 of 2007.

SECTION 4: That the City Council further declares that upon presentation of facts
at a public hearing, the City is entitled to a priority clean up lien in the amount of
$5,036.89 (costs of abatement plus an additional $45.00 filing fee for the subject lien
certification) against the subject property. This lien, as provided for in Arkansas Code
Ann. § 14-54-903, may be enforced and collected at any time within ten (10) years after
the lien has been filed in either one of the following manners as provided for in Ark. Code
Ann. § 14-54-904.

(1) By an action for foreclosure in the circuit court; or

(2) The amount so determined at this public hearing, plus ten percent
(10%) penalty for collection, to be certified to the Pulaski County
Tax Collector to be placed on the tax books as delinquent taxes
and collected accordingly.

SECTION 5: That if the owner(s) or lien holder(s) fail to pay the amount of the
herein certified clean-up lien in the time allowed by law, the City Attorney is hereby
directed to pursue any and all proper legal actions for collection of the amount of said
lien plus all applicable costs.

SECTION 6: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
severable, and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 7: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

Mayor Joe A. Sm1th L%lpﬂ Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

PP ROVED AS TO FORM: FILED ZZ4Y  AM. P.M.
By ﬁ%%%

Amy Beckma “l?\s/ Clty Attomey DATE /2, c)%?

PREPARED BY THE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/cf Disne Whithey, City Clerk and Collector

North Little Rock, Arkapsas
RECEIVED BY &5;%/
”//
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RESOLUTION NO. Q éé

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES::“é :
AND OTHER STRUCTURES LOCATED AT 6505 MEDFORD
LANE IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK TOH
CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID,**
STRUCTURES; PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR"',,fq," v &
PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE; AND FOR "”*-'.,ffg'comﬂ‘\-\:\\\“
OTHER PURPOSES.

r“.

WHEREAS, the buildings and structures whose location is set forth herein are
vacant and have become run down, dilapidated, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious, unsafe,
not fit for human habitation and detrimental to the public welfare of North Little Rock
citizens and residents; and

WHEREAS, the condition of such property constitutes a serious fire and health
hazard to the City of North Little Rock, and unless immediate actions are taken to remedy
this situation by removing, razing and abating said nuisance, there is a great likelihood
that the surrounding property may be destroyed by fire originating from such unsafe and
hazardous structures, and also that since structures are without proper sanitary facilities
and as such are unsafe and hazardous and a breeding place for rats, rodents and other
dangerous germ carriers of diseases, such buildings constitute a serious hazard to the
health and safety of the citizens of North Little Rock, and they should be moved or razed
for the purpose of eliminating such hazards.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Council hereby declares the buildings, houses and
other structures located at the property identified in Section 2 below to be vacant and run
down, dilapidated, unsafe, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious, unsanitary, a fire hazard, a
menace to abuiting properties, with the current condition of said structures not being fit
for human habitation; and because of such conditions, the City Council declares the same
to be condemned as a public nuisance and is ordered abated, removed or razed by the
owner thereof.

SECTION 2: That the owner of record of the following described property is
hereby directed to raze the same or otherwise abate the said nuisance within thirty (30)
days after the posting of a true copy of this Resolution at a conspicuous place upon the
structure constituting the nuisance described herein, to-wit:

Lot 2, Block 4, Lansbrook Subdivision in the City of North Little Rock,
Pulaski County, Arkansas. (Parcel No. 23N0160007900, located at 6505
Medford Lane, owned by Wanda F. Kloss).

EXHIBIT
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SECTION 3: If the aforementioned structures have not been razed and/or removed
within thirty (30) days after posting a true copy of this Resolution at a conspicuous place
upon the structures constituting the nuisance, or the nuisance otherwise abated, the
structures shall be torn down and/or removed by the Director of Code Enforcement or his
duly designated representative. Each day after the aforesaid thirty (30) days in which
said nuisance is not abated shall constitute a separate and distinct offense punishable by
a fine of $250.00 for each such separate and distinct offense.

SECTION 4: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED:
L/
SPONSOR:
oz Mo 5302 4 ) =
Mayor Joe A. Smith I%Pﬂ/ Didne Whitbey, Clty Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

—

Amy Be}k?:n}mJFields, City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/kh

FILED H ,Sﬁ . PM
AQ’!M [-\O QO.S

DATE (_12 19- (&

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

<
RECEIVED BY __¢ ) 2,{5“’%63 oS
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STATE OF ARKANSAS) Parcel # 23N0160007900
COUNTY OF PULASKI)

AFFIDAVIT OF STATUTORY LIEN
Comes the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas by and through Tom Wadley, who states on oath that:

My name is Tom Wadley, | am the Director of Code Enforcement for the City of North Little Rock,
Arkansas (“the City"), and as such | am authorized to make this affidavit.

Acting pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-56-203, the North Little Rock City Council, on June 25', 2018
Resolution # 9460 condemning a structure or structures located on the following described real property
located in the City of North Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ADDRESS OF PROPERTY

6505 Medford
Lot 2 Block 4 Lansbrook Sub
North Little Rock, AR 72117

After notice of the above mentioned condemnation was given to the owner’s and /or heirs Wanda
F. Kloss and due to the Owner's and/or heirs failure to raze or remove the structure(s), the City removed
said structure(s) incurring a cost of $5,036.89 An itemized account of this indebtedness is as follows:

DATE_ TYPE OF WORK  COST |

Date Issued gFee ;Amount Arz_lount fDue Date :
3 fPald ! [

08/10/2018 | Admin/Collection Fees | $60.00 | $0.00 | 9/12/2018 |

081072018 FilingFee $5000  |$0.00 | 9/12/2018 |

|08/1022018 | PostageFee |$2166  |$0.00 | 9/1212018

| 08/102018 | Legal Notice $523  |$0.00 | 9/12/2018

| 08/10/2018  Demolition 1$4,900.00 |$0.00 | 9/1212018

I

Total Due: $5,036.89

The City has made demand for payment and gave the debtor notice of the City's intent to file this lien and
the debtor has failed to make payment. No part of the debt has been paid and the City of North Little
Rock claims a lien on this real property, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-903(b), in the amount of
$5,036.89 to secure this indebtedness.

WITNESS my hand this _|A4 day of %a{}} 201%.
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK \
N \L/LSS

Tom Wadley 5
Director of Code Enforcement

\
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this Q‘hday of %[7}‘

; .
(’QL/LE [ i:u mu
_ NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires: l(bs 5‘ 21

EXHIBIT oo
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R-18- /W~
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE AMOUNT OF A CLEAN UP
LIEN TO BE FILED WITH THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX
COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 1823 SCHAER STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH
LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, certain property located at 1823 Schaer Street in the City of North
Little Rock, Arkansas was declared to be a public nuisance, and the property was
condemned on February 26, 2018 (see Resolution No. 9384 attached hereto as Exhibit
A); and

WHEREAS, Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-903 provides that if the owner(s) or lien
holder(s) of any lot or structure, after having been given seven (7) days’ notice in writing
to do so, refuses to remove, abate or eliminate any nuisance property, the City of North
Little Rock is authorized to do whatever is necessary to correct the conditions and charge
the cost thereof to the owner(s) of the real property; and

WHEREAS, according to the Pulaski County Assessor’s Office, Parcel No.
33N2560010500, described as 1823 Schaer Street, North Little Rock, Arkansas, is owned
by Ronnie Treat who, after receiving notice from the City regarding the conditions of the
property, has failed to abate the conditions; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. §§ 14-54-901, et seq. and Act 854 of
2007, the City of North Little Rock is authorized to abate the nuisance conditions,
establish a lien for the costs associated therewith, and collect the same in order to protect
the health, safety and welfare of the community.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That upon a hearing of the facts, the City Council hereby declares
that proper notice was given to the owner(s) and lien holder(s) of the subject property to
remove, abate or eliminate the public nuisance conditions on the subject property located
at 1823 Schaer Street; more specifically described as:

LOT 12 BLOCK 16, SCHAERS SUBDIVISION TO THE CITY OF
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, PULASKI COUNTY, ARKANSAS.

SECTION 2: That the City Council further declares that the owner(s) and lien
holder(s) of the subject property failed to remove, abate or eliminate the public nuisance
conditions at the property after it was condemned pursuant to Resolution No. 9384 in the
time allowed by law, and that the City then abated the public nuisance conditions at a cost
of no less than $7,038.62 (See Affidavit attached hereto as Exhibit B.)

SECTION 3: That the City Council further declares that proper notice was given
to the owner(s) and lien holder(s) of the subject property that a public hearing would be

1





held on October 08, 2018 (see Proof of Publication attached hereto as Exhibit C) to
determine the proper amount, if any, that should be filed as a clean up lien pursuant to
Act 854 of 2007.

SECTION 4: That the City Council further declares that upon presentation of facts
at a public hearing, the City is entitled to a priority clean up lien in the amount of
$7,038.62 (costs of abatement plus an additional $45.00 filing fee for the subject lien
certification) against the subject property. This lien, as provided for in Arkansas Code
Ann. § 14-54-903, may be enforced and collected at any time within ten (10) years after
the lien has been filed in either one of the following manners as provided for in Ark. Code
Ann. § 14-54-904:

(1) By an action for foreclosure in the circuit court; or

(2) The amount so determined at this public hearing, plus ten percent
(10%) penalty for collection, to be certified to the Pulaski County
Tax Collector to be placed on the tax books as delinquent taxes
and collected accordingly.

SECTION 35: That if the owner(s) or lien holder(s) fail to pay the amount of the
herein certified clean-up lien in the time allowed by law, the City Attorney is hereby
directed to pursue any and all proper legal actions for collection of the amount of said
lien plus all applicable costs.

SECTION 6: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
severable, and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 7: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
Qe NS St
Mayor Joe A. Smith l’\,(sfﬂ:/ Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO EORM: FILED /.45 _ AM. A P.M.
' > _ By ' (%
Amy Beckmax@dﬁ, City Attorney DATE /0 / "%)7
North Little Rock, Arkangas
RECEIVED BY % a %\/
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In Official Records of Larry Crane Circuit/County Clerk

PULASKI CO, AR FEE $25.00
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RESOLUTIONNO. &7 % &

R-18- 47

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES
", AND OTHER STRUCTURES LOCATED AT 1823 SCHAER
~» % STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK TO

*3\2.% CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID

-STRUCTURES; PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR

"7/ . PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE; AND FOR

74/ oTHER PURPOSES,
L7} *

i WHEREAS, the buildings and structures whose location is set forth herein are

vacant and have become run down, dilapidated, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious, unsafe,
not fit for human habitation and detrimental to the public welfare of North Little Rock
citizens and residents; and

WHEREAS, the condition of such property constitutes a serious fire and health
hazard to the City of North Little Rock, and unless immediate actions are taken to remedy
this situation by removing, razing and abating said nuisance, there is a great likelihood
that the surrounding property may be destroyed by fire originating from such unsafe and
hazardous structures, and also that since structures are without proper sanitary facilities
and as such are unsafe and hazardous and a breeding place for rats, rodents and other
dangerous germ carriers of diseases, such buildings constitute a serious hazard to the
health and safety of the citizens of North Little Rock, and they should be moved or razed
for the purpose of eliminating such hazards.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Council hereby declares the buildings, houses and
other structures located at the property identified in Section 2 below to be vacant and run
down, dilapidated, unsafe, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious, unsanitary, a fire hazard, a
menace to abutting properties, with the current condition of said structures not being fit
for human habitation; and because of such conditions, the City Council declares the same
to be condemned as a public nuisance and is ordered abated, removed or razed by the
owner thereof.

SECTION 2: That the owner of record of the following described property is
hereby directed to raze the same or otherwise abate the said nuisance within thirty (30)
days after the posting of a true copy of this Resolution at a conspicuous place upon the
structure constituting the nuisance described herein, to-wit:

Lot 12, Block 16, Schaers Addition, in the City of North Little Rock,
Pulaski County, Arkansas. (Parcel No. 33N2560010500, located at 1823
Schaer Street, and owned by Ronnie Treat.)

EXHIBIT
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SECTION 3: If the aforementioned structures have not been razed and/or removed
within thirty (30) days after posting a true copy of this Resolution at a conspicuous place
upon the structures constituting the nuisance, or the nuisance otherwise abated, the
structures shall be torn down and/or removed by the Director of Code Enforcement or his
duly designated representative, Each day alter the aforesaid thirty (30) days in which
said nuisance is not abated shall constitute a separate and distinet offense punishable by
a fine o' $250.00 for each such separate and distinet offense,

SECTION 4: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared 10 be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such

invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after

its passage and .lppmvul.
e / %@’#

Smith

PASSED; APPROVIED;,

Nl.lym Joe &

SPONSOR: /\'I"I‘l_-"a"l"

. s i / " ,i’ ( 2 - .l\\.‘ _r_‘ \ |'- —
Mayor Joe A. Smith SV wF

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

u{ LA i
Amy Beckm: in & mlds City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/Kh

Il‘ll,lil)[,{!;;;)g)__ AM. __ pM.
By J:L’ -'ﬂ-’[c;‘s _______
DATE_43--00 /&

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Colleetor
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY "&S 'z ) 5;5(? ‘ £'>.\/
[





STATE OF ARKANSAS) Parcel # 33N256001¢ ]
COUNTY OF PULASKI)

RN 2018034509

PRESENTED: 06-04-2018 02:58.05 PM  RECORDED; 06-04-2018 02:58.05 PM
n Official ﬁeoords of Larry Crane Circuit/County Clerk

AFFIDAVIT OF STATUTO’;M\'S% CO, AR FEE $15.00

Comes the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas by and through Tom Wadley, who states on oath that:

My name is Tom Wadley, | am the Director of Code Enforcement for the City of North Little Rock,
Arkansas (“the City”), and as such | am authorized to make this affidavit.

Acting pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-56-203, the North Little Rock City Council, on February 26" , 2018
Resolution # 2384 condemning a structure or structures located on the following described real property
located in the City of North Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ADDRESS OF PROPERTY

1823 Schaer
Lot 12 Block 16 Schaer’s Addition
City of North Little Rock, AR

Ronnie Treat and due to the Owner’s and/or heirs failure to raze or remove the structure(s), the City

removed said structure(s) incurring a cost of $7,038.62 An itemized account of this indebtedness is as
follows:

|Date Issued Fee Amount | Amount Paid = DueDate |
%5]31!201778 \Admlm_stratlonICollect(on Fees 7 } _$60 00 ‘ $0 00 l 6!36)2018 i
5/3112018 | Filing Fee  s200) 5000 6/s02018
s12018 '}Zs{ég;};e | sam s éfso:zma.
5312018 LegalNotice $10. 30\ $0.00 | 6/30/2018
I‘5i3112018 Be;lc;lttlon - 1‘ $6 900 oo' B i$0.00 | 6-136;;0‘i8|

[
' Total Due: $7 038.62 |

The City has made demand for payment and gave the debtor notice of the City’s intent to file this lien and
the debtor has failed to make payment. No part of the debt has been paid and the Clty of North Little
Rock claims a lien on this real property, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-903(b), in the amount of
$7,038.62 to secure this indebtedness.

b

WITNESS my hand this l&i day of —Sume, 2018
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
T éLQ
Tom Wadley

Director of Code Enforcement

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ) 57L day of auN e

\,\/ﬂxt-{f\; //y :

" NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires: IO! A J 07

EXHIBIT
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R-18- Q0

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE AMOUNT OF A CLEAN UP
LIEN TO BE FILED WITH THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX
COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 126 MARVIN STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH
LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, certain property located at 126 Marvin Street in the City of North
Little Rock, Arkansas was declared to be a public nuisance, and the property was
condemned on February 26, 2018 (see Resolution No. 9386 attached hereto as Exhibit
A); and

WHEREAS, Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-903 provides that if the owner(s) or lien
holder(s) of any lot or structure, after having been given seven (7) days’ notice in writing
to do so, refuses to remove, abate or eliminate any nuisance property, the City of North
Little Rock is authorized to do whatever is necessary to correct the conditions and charge
the cost thereof to the owner(s) of the real property; and

WHEREAS, according to the Pulaski County Assessor’s Office, Parcel No.
23N0230100200, described as 126 Marvin Street, North Little Rock, Arkansas, is owned
by Maggie F. Winford who, after receiving notice from the City regarding the conditions
of the property, has failed to abate the conditions; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. §§ 14-54-901, et seq. and Act 854 of
2007, the City of North Little Rock is authorized to abate the nuisance conditions,
establish a lien for the costs associated therewith, and collect the same in order to protect
the health, safety and welfare of the community.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That upon a hearing of the facts, the City Council hereby declares
that proper notice was given to the owner(s) and lien holder(s) of the subject property to
remove, abate or eliminate the public nuisance conditions on the subject property located
at 126 Marvin Street; more specifically described as:

LOTS 2 AND 3, BLOCK 0, HALE KELLY SUBDIVISION TO THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, PULASKI COUNTY, ARKANSAS.

SECTION 2: That the City Council further declares that the owner(s) and lien
holder(s) of the subject property failed to remove, abate or eliminate the public nuisance
conditions at the property after it was condemned pursuant to Resolution No. 9386 in the
time allowed by law, and that the City then abated the public nuisance conditions at a cost
of no less than $5,718.06 (See Affidavit attached hereto as Exhibit B.)

SECTION 3: That the City Council further declares that proper notice was given
to the owner(s) and lien holder(s) of the subject property that a public hearing would be
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held on October 08, 2018 (see Proof of Publication attached hereto as Exhibit C) to
determine the proper amount, if any, that should be filed as a clean up lien pursuant to
Act 854 of 2007.

SECTION 4: That the City Council further declares that upon presentation of facts
at a public hearing, the City is entitled to a priority clean up lien in the amount of
| $5,718.06 (costs of abatement plus an additional $45.00 filing fee for the subject lien
certification) against the subject property. This lien, as provided for in Arkansas Code
Ann. § 14-54-903, may be enforced and collected at any time within ten (10) years after
the lien has been filed in either one of the following manners as provided for in Ark. Code
| Ann. § 14-54-904:

(1) By an action for foreclosure in the circuit court; or

(2) The amount so determined at this public hearing, plus ten percent
(10%) penalty for collection, to be certified to the Pulaski County
Tax Collector to be placed on the tax books as delinquent taxes
and collected accordingly.

SECTION 5: That if the owner(s) or lien holder(s) fail to pay the amount of the
herein certified clean-up lien in the time allowed by law, the City Attorney is hereby
directed to pursue any and all proper legal actions for collection of the amount of said
lien plus all applicable costs.

SECTION 6: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
severable, and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 7: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

e YDy sz

Mayor Joe A. Smith V,;_))\\DF” Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
C

APPROVED-AS TO FORM: FILED // 45 AM. P.M.
% o By
Amy Beckmé@[’ds, City Attorney DATE / 0/ /24

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

PREPARED BY THE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/cf
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY &VWA‘\__/
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PRESENTED: 03-05-2016 03:36:40 PM  RECORDED: 03-05-2018 03:36:40 PM
In Official Records of Larry Crane Circuit/County Clerk
PULASKI CO, AR FEE $25.00

RESOLUTION NO. %

R-18- 44

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES
4t Cire,,  AND OTHER STRUCTURES LOCATED AT 126 MARVIN
‘&, = % STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK TO
\2.~ CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID
|7 - STRUCTURES; PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR
PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

i WHEREAS, the buildings and structures whose location is set forth herein are
- vacant and have become run down, dilapidated, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious, unsafe,
not fit for human habitation and detrimental to the public welfare of North Little Rock

citizens and residents; and

WHEREAS, the condition of such property constitutes a serious fire and health
hazard to the City of North Little Rock, and unless immediate actions are taken to remedy
this situation by removing, razing and abating said nuisance, there is a great likelihood
that the surrounding property may be destroyed by fire originating from such unsafe and
hazardous structures, and also that since structures are without proper sanitary facilities
and as such are unsafe and hazardous and a breeding place for rats, rodents and other
dangerous germ carriers of diseases, such buildings constitute a serious hazard to the
health and safety of the citizens of North Little Rock, and they should be moved or razed
for the purpose of eliminating such hazards.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Council hereby declares the buildings, houses and
other structures located at the property identified in Section 2 below to be vacant and run
down, dilapidated, unsafe, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious, unsanitary, a fire hazard, a
menace to abutting properties, with the current condition of said structures not being fit
for human habitation; and because of such conditions, the City Council declares the same
to be condemned as a public nuisance and is ordered abated, removed or razed by the
owner thereof,

SECTION 2: That the owner of record of the following described property is
hereby directed to raze the same or otherwise abate the said nuisance within thirty (30)
days after the posting of a true copy of this Resolution at a conspicuous place upon the
structure constituting the nuisance described herein, to-wit:

Lot 2 & 3, Block 0, Hale Kelly Subdivision, in the City of North Little
Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas. (Parcel No. 23N0230100200, located
at 126 Marvin Street, and owned by Maggie Winford.)

EXHIBIT

1 B






SECTION 3: If the aforementioned structures have not been razed and/or removed
within thirty (30) days afier posting a true copy of this Resolution at a conspicuous place
upon the structures constituting the nuisance, or the nuisance olherwise abated, the
structures shall be torn down and/or removed by the Director of Code Enforcement or his
duly designated representative. Each day afier the aforesaid thirty (30) days in which
said nuisance is not abated shall constitute a separate and distinet offense punishable by
a fine of $250.00 for cach such separale and distinet offense.

SECTION 4: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
scverable and if any scetion, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such

invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 5; That this Resolution shall be in Rull Foree and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED:

}’DZ' “/g)

SPONSOR:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

APPROVEID AS TO FORM:
Pt

drue
C\"l’ny BedkmarrTields, City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY /kh

FILED /O A M. PM,

DATE 9 S| X

Diane Whithey, City Clerk and Colteetor
North Litte Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY B : )/(SSC’V' by

U
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In Official Records of Larry Crane Circuit/County Clerk
AFFIDAVIT OF STATUTO%\U’Lkg%FC 5 AUEEE 15100

Comes the City of North Littie Rock, Arkansas by and through Tom Wadley, who states on oath that:

My name is Tom Wadley, | am the Director of Code Enforcement for the City of North Little Rock,
Arkansas ("the City"), and as such | am authorized to make this affidavit.

Acting pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-56-203, the North Little Rock City Council, on February 26t , 2018
Resolution # 9386 condemning a structure or structures located on the following described real property
located in the City of North Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ADDRESS OF PROPERTY

126 Marvin
Lot 2 & 3 Block 0 Hale Kelly Subdivision
City of North Little Rock, AR

Magagie Winford and due to the Owner's and/or heirs failure to raze or remove the structure(s), the City

removed said structure(s) incurring a cost of $5,718.06 An itemized account of this indebtedness is as
follows:

'Date Issued ?— Fee . Amount | Amount Paid . Due Date |
513112018 | Administration/Collection Fees $60.00 | $0.00 | 6/30/2018
s3112018 | FilingFee ‘ _gés.obf‘  $0.00 | 6/30/2018 |
fs}éilébié -{i’ost;ge Fee | - 7555.{6”1” rso.cniol 6/30/2018
513112018  Legal Notice 7 | '5'107.30{  s0.00] é!30/zd1éj
S i C O T

| Total Due: $5,718.06 ,

The City has made demand for payment and gave the debtor notice of the City’s intent to file this lien and

the debtor has failed to make payment. No part of the debt has been paid and the City of North Little

Rock claims a lien on this real property, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-903(b), in the amount of
$5,718.06 to secure this indebtedness. withiiG,

\

‘s,
W )
N ,

WITNESS my hand this |/ day of __“uane .20 |R. “* Sk e ¢
) “f o
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK 3
RS Q“\f\\wbt‘ng\“‘? = :",“’ '

Tom Wadley
Director of Code Enforcement

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this |5} day of Dot
{ 2 . -
C "‘))J,LLCUL 'V\e He
NOTARY PUBLIC
EXHIBIT

My Commission Expires: IOL%! 3 |

UNTY, P2
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R-18-D0 |

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND CERTIFYING AMOUNTS OF
LIENS TO BE FILED WITH THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX
COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES IN THE CITY
OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS AS A RESULT OF GRASS
CUTTING EXPENSES AND ABATEMENT OF OTHER NUISANCES;
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, Section 8.3.1 of North Little Rock Municipal Code (NLRMC) Chapter 8
(Nuisance Abatement and Property Maintenance), requires all property owners and occupants
within the municipal boundaries of the City of North Little Rock (the City) to cut weeds, grass and
abate other nuisances and unsanitary conditions on their property; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann, § 14-54-901, the City has the authority to do
whatever is necessary to correct the unsightly and unsanitary conditions and to charge the costs
thereof to the owners of lots or properties who neglect or refuse to remove, abate or eliminate any
weed or grass conditions after having been given seven (7) days written notice to do so; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-901, the City of North Little Rock
has corrected conditions existing on certain lots or other real properties within the City of North
Little Rock and is entitled to compensation pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-904; and

WHEREAS, the City has demanded payment in the amount allowed by law from the
property owners where work was performed and notified said owners of the City’s intent to file a
lien against their properties; and

WHEREAS, said property owners have failed to make payment, no part of the debt has
been paid, and the City claims a lien on the herein referenced properties (listed on Exhibit A
attached hereto) pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. §§ 14-54-901 and 14-54-903; and

WHEREAS, state law also provides for a lien against the subject properties, with the
amount of liens to be determined by the City Council at a hearing held after notice to the owner(s)
thereof by certified mail or publication (see Exhibit A attached hereto), with said amounts (plus a
ten percent collection penalty) to be thereafter certified to the Pulaski County Tax Collector; and

WHEREAS, a hearing for the purpose of determining such liens has been set for 6:05 p.m.,
October 08 2018, in order to allow for service of the attached notice of same upon the listed
property owners, by certified mail or publication as is necessary.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That after notice to property owners, a public hearing was held at 6:05 p.m.
on October 08, 2018, for the purpose of determining the amount of liens, if any, to be filed against
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certain real properties as the result of grass cutting and abatement of other nuisances by the City
of North Little Rock.

SECTION 2: That after said public hearing, and upon the verification of the Director of
the North Little Rock Code Enforcement Department, the amounts listed on Exhibit A is hereby
certified as an obligation that is owed to the City and proper to be filed with the Pulaski County
Treasurer and Assessor as a lien against the real properties associated therewith.

SECTION 3: That the Director of the Code Enforcement is hereby ordered to file liens as
provided in this resolution; except that, prior to submission, he will update the list to remove any
lien amounts that have been paid in full prior to forwarding the list to the County.

SECTION 4: That the Director of the Code Enforcement is authorized to execute and file
such documents as are necessary to release any liens that is paid in full.

SECTION 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage
and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

ey S’

Mayor Joe A. Smith %ﬁ’(’/ Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM.:

FILED //.05  AM. P.M.

Amy Beckn‘l@@ds, City Attorney TORE——

By A%L%M
PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/ABF /

DATE ¢ /¢, 19.74457

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Littlg Roc rkansas

[/ “h

RECEIVED BY






PARCEL 24N0130001100
Dorthory Carter

2924 Llincoln Ave

LOT 4 BLOCK 63 Topfs Sub
AMIOUNT $ 185.00

PARCEL 33N2110013800
James Howard Ingram

1704 MAIN ST

LOT 5 BLOCK 24 North Argenta
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N2460010700
Professional Housing & Land
1901 Moss 5t

LOT 6 BLOCK 10 Missouri Pacific
AMOUNT $ 185.00

PARCEL 33N2460000500

Nova Mentis Corporation
2102 Moss St

LOT 8 BLOCK 1 Missouri Pacific
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N2670000700
JPMorgan Chase Bank NA NA1328
Nannette St

LOT 7 BLOCK O River View Sub
AMOUNT S 185.00

PARCEL 33N2560009500
Ronnie Treat

1822 Pike Ave

LOT 1 BLOCK 16 Schaers
AMOUNT S 185.00

PARCEL 33N2570006700
Melvin Thomas Ewart

1609 Schaer St

L.OT 6 BLOCK 5 Holts Industrial
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N3180028200
Clarence & Gloria Nalls
120 S Spruce St

LOT A BLOCK 42 Choctaw
AMOUNT 5185.00

PARCEL 33N2240104400

Judy & Elton Morgan

1607 N Vine St

LOT 12 BLOCK 7 Fulk's Sub of Haney's
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33n1880004400

Marvin Gitbert

3709 Willow §T

LOT A BLOCK 2 Moores Glendale
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 24N0130001200
Dorthory Carter

Abt 2926 Lincoln Ave

LOT 1 BLOCK 64 Topfs Sub
ANMOUNT $ 185.00

PARCEL 33N2570015300

Kina Berry Hayes

1508 Marion St

LOT 11 BLOCK 10 Holts Industrial
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N2460010400
Benjamin Needham

1917 Moss 5t

LOT 3 BLOCK 10 Missouri Pacific
AMOUNT § 185.00

PARCEL 33N2460000600

Gadi Sujan /Ricky Conley
2104 Moss St

LOT 9 BLOCK 1 Missouri Pacific
AMOUNT $ 185.00

PARCEL 33N2110031300
Curtis Easter

1414 Orange St

LOT 4 BLOCK 37 North Argenta
AMOUNT $ 185.00

PARCEL 33N2890109000
George Bates 1l /Randy Bogard
1322 N Poplar St

LOT 1 BLOCK 9 Davis Addn
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N0480003100
Goree Wright

5801 Shamrock Dr

LOT 26 BLOCK 3 Valley View
AMOUNT % 185.00

PARCEL 33N3050001500
Annie W Hamilton

713 Vine St

LOT 10 BLOCK 7 Greens 2nc
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N3180029100
Odelia Walker

2506 E Washington

LOT 10 BLOCK 42 Choctaw
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N3060000200
Travis P Waiton

800 N Locust

LOT 6 BLOCK 1 Greens
AMOUNT § 185.00

PARCEL 33N2570015500
independence Asset LLC

1518 Marion St

LOT 13 BLOCK 10 Holts industrial
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N2460010300
Benjamin Needham

1921 Moss St

LOT 2 BLOCK 10 Missouri Pacific
AMOUNT § 185.00

PARCEL 33N2460001300

Eola Melancon

2105 Moss St

LOT 3 BLOCK 2 Missouri Pacific
AMOUNT $ 185.00

PARCEL 33N2110024200

Billy E Ford

1600 Orange St

LOT 6 BLOCK 29 North Argenta
AMOUNT 5 185.00

PARCEL 24N0060009100

Kevo Holdings LLC

142 Saunders Dr

LOT 91 BLOCK 0 Walters Sub #3
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N3180028400
Clarence & Gloria Nalls
116 S Spruce 5t

LOT C BLOCK 42 Choctaw
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N2240104500

Professional Housing & Land

1605 Vine St

LOT 12 BLOCK 7 Fulk's Sub of Haney's
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N0220002000
Tina Marie Brown

5405 Westview Dr

LOT 17 BLOCK 1 Pike View
AMOUNT $185,00
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PARCEL 33N308001.9900
Sheiia Renee Jones

Abt 1212 E 2nd St

LOT 4 BLOCK 21 East Argenta
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N2850005100
Robert Coats

820 E 14th St.

LOT 7 BLOCK 6 East Central
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N2260007900
Diversified Land Co

1215 E 16th St.

LOT 17 BLOCK & Industrial
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N2270002000
Brian Patrick Johnson

1501 W 20th St.

PT SE NE NWSWBEG 20 FTN & 20 FT W OF SE
CORTH N 140 FT,W 100 FT,S 140 FT,E 100 FT TO
BEG 27 2N 12W

AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33MN1770024500
Geroonimo Moncada

701 W 34th ST

LOT 10 BLOCK 29 Booher's Addn
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N2570000700
Michael Williams

1711 Allen St

LOT 6 BLOCK 1 Holts Industriat
AMOUNT 5185.00

PARCEL 24N0110001700
Charles Godsey

305 Cheryl 5t

LOT 17 BLOCK 0 Younts W C
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N2430000400
Wade Jearlean Mcfadden
2518 Franklin St

LOT 4 BLOCK 0 Carman
AMOUNT 5185,00

PARCEL 33N3180035800
Brian Lee Walker

2511 Lincoin Ave

LOT 4 & 5 BLOCK 49 Choctaw
AMOUNT $ 185,00

PARCEL 24N0130000500
Ketina L Washington

2902 Lincoln Ave

LOT 3 BLOCK 62 Topfs Sub
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N3150009900

Vickie Nickerson

1608 E 2nd St

LOT 2 BLOCK 33 East Argenta Annex
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N2110021%00
Elizabeth Duty

223 E 16th St.

LOT 12 BLOCK 26 North Argenta
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33M2530000900
Ochoa Raquel fTina Pesina
1212 W 18th St

LOT 3 BLOCK 2 Maloney
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N2450001800
Danny Jones

1101 W 23rd St

LOT 1 BLOCK 3 Coor's
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N1510010600
Alita Kalamasz

818 W 45th St

LOT 2 BLOCK 10 Holeads
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N2510001700
Sedric Davenport

1900 Augusta St

LOT 7 BLOCK 2 Harts
AMOUNT $185,00

PARCEL 33N0320002500
Phyliss Ann Thorne

113 Farmere Cir

LOT 24 BLOCK 0 Farmere's 4th
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N0180812800
Jennifer L Craft

406 Highhill Rd

LOT 3 BLOCK 65 Park Hill 8N
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 32N3180033300
Top Ten Inc C/O Tom Burl
Abt 2703 Lincoln Ave
LOT 2 BLOCK 47 Choctaw
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 24N0130000800
MecCormick Investments LLC
2904 Lincoln Ave

LOT 1 BLOCK 63 Topfs Sub
AMOUNT $ 185,00

PARCEL 33N2850008100
Modene Woods

Abt 918 E 13th St

LOT 4 BLOCK 7 East Central
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N2240101800

Estate of Emmitt Chestnut

710 E 16th St.

LOT 10 BLOCK 2 Fulk's Sub of Haney's
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N24%0000600

Terry L Melton

1718 W 19th St

LOT 6-7 BLOCK 1 Walthour & Flake Addn
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N2420001900
Angela Gibson

1212 W 25th 5t,

LOT 1 BLOCK 3 Union Heights
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N0370002100
Michael Davin

211 W 47th St

LOT 1 BLOCK 3 Massie West Sub
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N3050004600
Troynetta & Etals Jefferson
629 Cedar

LOT 12 BLOCK 11 Greens 2nd
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 33N2490001800

Karin Demonbreun

1928 Flora St

LOT 9 BLOCK 2 Walthour & Flake Addn
AMOUNT $185,00

PARCEL 33N3180038400

Wames Qualis

211§ Laurel St

LOT 51/3 OF LOTS 7, 8 & 9 BLOCK 51 Choctaw
AMOUNT $185.00

PARCEL 24N0130000600
Ketina L Washington
2900 Lincoln Ave

LOT 3 BLOCK 62 Topfs Sub
AMOUNT 5185.00

PARCEL 24N0130000900
MicCormick Investments LLC
2906 Lincoln Ave

LOT 2 BLOCK 63 Topfs Sub
AMOUNT S 185.00





